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February 24, 2025

\o

Her Excellency. Governor Kelly A. Ayotte
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division for Behavioral Health,
to enter into a Sole Source amendment to an existing contract with Arkansas Foundation for
Medical Care, Inc. (VC#333439-P001), Little Rock, Arkansas, to modify the scope of services and
add administration of the School Health Profiles survey, by increasing the price limitation by.
$50,000 from $2,513,166 to $2,563,166 with no change to the contract completion date of June
30,2026, effective upon Governor and Council approval. 100% Federal Funds.

The original contract was approved by Governor and Council on August 26, 2020, Item
#14, amended on February 16. 2022, item #36, and most recently amended on May 29, 2024.
item #33.

Funds are available in the following accounts for State Fiscal Years 2025 and are
anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Year 2026, upon the availability and continued
appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with the authority to adjust budget line items
within the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years through the Budget Office,
if needed and justified.

05-95-90-900510-16290000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS,
HNS: DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF INFORMATICS, YRBS 100% Federal Funds

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

Job

Number
Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised
Budget

2025 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
90051629 $0 $50,000 $50,000

Subtotal $0 $50,000 $50,000

05-95-92-920510-33820000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS,
HHS: DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH. BUREAU OF DRUG AND ALCOHOL. GOVERNOR
COMMISSION FUNDS (100% Other Funds)

State

Fiscal

Year

Class}

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised
Budget
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2021 102-500731 "
Contracts for I

Prog Svc ^
92058502 $298,201 $0 $298,201

2022 074-500585
Community

Grants
92058502 $303,074 $0 $303,074

2023 074-500585
Community

Grants
92058502 $154,517, $0 $154,517

2024 074-500585
Community

Grants
92058502 $451,633 $0 $451,633

2025 - 074-500589
Community •

Grants
92058502 $451,633 $0 $451,633

2026 074-500589
Community

Grants
92058502 $451,633 $0 $451,633

Subtotal $2,110,691 $0 $2,110,691

)

05-95-92-920510-33640000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEFT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS,
HKS; DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, BUREAU OF DRUG AND ALCOHOL, CLINICAL
SERVICES (66% Federal Funds 34% General Funds)

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2021 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
92057501 $99,400 $0 $99,400

2022 ; 074-500585 ,
Community
Grants

92057501 $101,025 $0 $101,025.

2023 ■ 074-500585
Community

Grants
92057501 $101,025 $0' $101,025

2024 , 074-500585
Community

Grants
92057501 $101,025 $0 $101,025

'  Subtotal $402,475 $0 $402,475

Total $2,513,166 $50,000 $2,563,166

EXPLANATION

This request is Sole Source because the Department is amending the scope of services
and adding funding received from the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC) to add
the School Health Profiles Survey, which assesses the impact of school health policies, practices,
and programs on student health and academic perfonnance, to the current CDC Youth Risk
Behavior Survey developed and implemented by the Contractor on behalf of the Department. The
Department determined adding the School Health Profiles Survey aligns with the current work the
Contractor is performing for the Youth Risk Behavior Survey and is most cost-effective method to
implement these services.

The purpose of this request Is to add the School Health Profile Survey to the scope of
services for this Contractor. The Contractor will collect data through the bi-annual survey of school
administrators and teachers which will enable the Department and school administrators to
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identify, understand, and address gaps in policies and practices that can affect student health and
academic performance.

Participation in the School Health Profile Survey is voluntary. Approximately 250 schools,
with any of grades 6 through 12, will receive School Health Profile Survey questionnaires bi-
annually.

The School Health Profile Survey will enable the Department to monitor the current and
future status of school health education requirements and content; physical education and
physical activity; practices related to-bullying and sexual harassment; school health policies
related to nutrition and tobacco-use prevention; school-based health and mental health services;
family engagement and community involvement; and school health coordination.

The Contractor will provide administrative assistance to the -Department for the survey
implementation, including assisting the Department with creating the survey in accordance with
CDC requirements; collecting and scanning completed surveys in both electronic and paper
formats; providing survey interpretation and translation of data to the Department; and creating
useable reports for school level and/or regional level reports for the Department and its providers.

The Department will monitor School Health Profile Survey services through regularly
scheduled meetings and the submission and review of monthly reports to ensure:

•  Surveys are developed, implemented, and interpreted in accordance with CDC
requirements.

\

•  Services inform and aid. In the Improvement of substance misuse policies,
programs, and practices.

.  Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request, the Department will be unable
to conduct the bi-annual School Health Profile Survey, limiting the Department's ability to better
understand and address gaps in school health policies and practices that can affect student health
and academic performance in middle and high school.

Area served: Statewide.

Source of Federal Funds; Assistance Listing Number 93.079, FAIN NU87DP000053.

in the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, additional General
Funds will not be requested to support this program.

Respe^ujjy submitted,

Lori A\ Weaver

Commissioner

The Deportment of Health and Human Seruices'Mission is to join commuhilies and families,
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.
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State of New Hampshire

Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment#3

This Amendment to the Program Evaluation and Data Services for the Alcohol and Other Drug
(AGO) Services System contract is by and between the State of New Hampshire, Department of
Health and Human Services ("State" or "Department") and Arkansas Foundation for Medical
Care, Inc. ("the Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Govemor and Executive
Council on August 26, 2020 (Item #14), as amended on February 18, 2022 (Item #36), and as
most recently amended on May 29, 2024 (Item #33), the Contractor agreed to perform certain
services based upon the terms and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and in
consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, the Contract may be amended upon
written agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions
contained in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37, General Provisions. Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$2,563,166

2. Modify Exhibit B, Scope of Services; Section 1.5, to read:

1.5.Surveys Administration and Technical Support

1.5.1. The Contractor shall provide administrative assistance to the Department for the
implementation of the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC) NH Youth
Risk Behavior Survey (YRBS) and School Health Profile Survey (SHPS), which
includes, but is not limited to:

1.5.1.1. Assisting the Department with creating the survey including, but not
limited to:

1.5.1.1.1. Providing input in survey question selection, as requested by
the Department;

1.5.1.1.2. Validating questionnaire and answer options;

1.5.1.1.3. Formatting survey in compliance with printer and online
requirements;

1.5.1.1.4.' Ensuring the final document is press-ready PDF; and

1.5.1.1.5. Ensuring survey modality is approved by the Department in
writing no plater than five (5) weeks prior to survey
administration.

1.5.1.2. Printing, delivering, distributing survey questionnaire and supplies to
participating schools, statewide, formatted in accordance with the
requirements of the CDC and the Department.

1.5.1.3. Developing and formatting survey questionnaire in online format (web
version) in a HIPAA compliant and secure platform approvpch'by the

JS
Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care, inc. A-S-1.3 Contractor Initials

2/3/2025-
RFP-202i-BDAS-01-PROGR-01-A03 Page 1 of4 Date
v7.12.23
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Department. The final web version survey shall be reviewed and
approved by CDC and the Departrrient before distributing.

1.5.1.4. Collecting and scanning completed surveys in a confidential and secure
manner as approved by the Department;

1.5.1.5. Developing clean datasets to include a universal file and CDC sample file
of coded results, approved by the Department;

1.5.1.6. Providing the data to the Department in a format required by the CDC;

1.5.1.7. Providing consultation and information regarding the clean data format
and results;

1.5.1.8. Providing evaluations interpretation and translation of raw data into a
useable report for school level and/or regional level reports for the
Department and its providers, as requested;

1.5.1.9. Upon request by the Department, providing YRBS survey questionnaire
with at least five (5) languages other than English;

1.5.1.10. Providing technical support for YRBS to participating schools prior to, and
on, the survey day; and

1.5.1.11. Hosting and facilitating YRBS training webinar and providing recording
and training materials to the Departrnent.

3. Modify Exhibit C, Payment Terms; Section 1, to read:

1. This Agreement is funded by:

1.1. 12.31% Federal Funds

1.1.1. 10.36% Substance Use Prevention, Treatment and Recovery Block Grant
(SUPTR-BG), awarded by the Department of Health and Human Services,
Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration (SAMHSA),
Center for Substance Abuse Treatment (CSAT), ALN 93.959, as awarded
on:

1.1.1.1. 10/1/2019, FAINTI083041;

1.1.1.2. 2/1/2021, FAIN TI083464;

1.T1.3. 2/10/2022, FAIN.TI084659; and

1.1.1.4. 2/15/2023. FAINT1085821.

1.1.2. 1.95% Improving NH Youth Health and Weil-Being through School-Based
Surveillance Grant, awarded on 7/25/24 by the Centers for Disease
Control and Prevention (CDC), ALN 93.079, FAIN NU87DP000053.

1.2. 82.35% Other Funds (Governor's Commission).

1.3. 5.34% General Funds.

4. Modify Exhibit C-5 Budget SFY2025, Amendment #2, by replacing it in its entirety with
Exhibit C-5 Budget SFY2025. Amendment #3, which is attached hereto and incorporated
by reference herein.

Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care, Inc. A-S-1.3 Contractor Initials
2/3/2025

RFP-2021-BDAS-01-PROGR-01-A03 Paae 2 of 4 Dale
v7.12.23

-Initiat

JS
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All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not modified by this Amendment
remain in full force and effect. This Amendment shall be effective upon Governor and Council
approval. ' -

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire

Department of Health and Human Services

2/14/2025

Date

~DocuSlgned by:

— 6POOOtBMCt»<4a.

Name:

Title:. Director

Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care, Inc.

2/3/2025

Date

-SlgiMd by:

j6(uA.

Name: seiig

Title: president,& Chief Executive Officer

Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care, Inc. A-S-1.3

RFP-2021-BDAS.01-PROGR-01-A03 Page 3 of 4
V. 7.12.23

•Initial

JS

2/3/2025
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(  ■

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form,
substance, and execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

DocuSign«d by:

olauvL Q2/14/2025 I
.lAATiA«4AaA*AI^

Date Robyn .Guar-ino

Title; Attorney

1 hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive
Council of the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of
hieeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care. inc. A-S-1.3

RFP-2021-BDAS-01-PROGR-01-A03 Page 4 of 4
V. 7.12.23
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C-5 Budget SFY 2025, Amendment #3 RFP-2021-8DAS-01-PROGR-01-A03

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Contractor Name: Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care, Inc.

Budget Request for: Program Evaluation and Data Services

Budget Period SFY 2025 July 1, 2024 - June 30, 2025

IrKllrect Cost Rate (if applicable) 28.7

- - 0.287

Line Item Program Cost - Funded by DHHS

1. Salary & Wages $186,622

2., Fringe Benefits $92,359

3. Consultants $0

4. Equipment

Indirect cost rate cannot be applied to
equipment costs per 2 CFR 200.1 and
Appendix IV to 2 CFR 200. $0

5.(a) Supplies - Educational $0

.5.(b) Supplies - Lab - $0

5.(c) Supplies - Pharmacy $0

5.(d) Supplies - Medical $0

5.(e) Supplies Office $2,270

6. Travel $14,952

7. Software/Telephone $34,166

8. (a) Other - Marketing/ Communications $0

8. (b) Other - Telephone $0

8. (c) Other - Other (specify below) $0

Other (Printing/Postage) $59,400

Other (please specify) $0

Other (please specify) $0

Other (please specify) $0

9. Subrecipient Contracts $0

Total Direct Costs $389,769

Total Indirect Costs $111,664

TOTAL $501,633

Contractor Initial;
JS

RFP-2021 -BDAS-01 -PROGR-01-A03 Date:
2/3/2025
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, David M. Scanlan, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby cerlily that ARICANSAS FOUNDATION FOR

MEDICAL CARli, INC. is a Arkansas Nonprofit Corporation registered io transact business in New Hampshire on June 26, 2020.

I further certify that all fees and documenLs required by the Secretary of State's ofllce have been received and is in good standing

as far as this oITice is concerned.

Business ID: 845208

Certificate Number: 0007041613

S&.

■9

(§>

IN'FESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 4th day of February A.D. 2025.

David M. Scanlan

Secretary of Slate
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Healthy People. Healthy Businesses;

Healthy Gommunlties.

Certificate of Authority

I, AnnaMarie SuHivan. AFMC Corporate Secretary hereby certify that:

1. lama duly elected Clerk/Secretary/Officer of AFMC (Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care).

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of

Directors/shareholders, on February 5. 2025. at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders
were present and voting.

VOTED: That John Selig. President & CEO and Marilyn Strickland. Chief Operating Officer are

duly authorized on behalf of AFMC (Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care) to enter into

contracts or agreements with the Sate of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or
departments and further is authorized to execute any and all documents, agreements, and
other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, modifications thereto, which may in
his/her judgement be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. I hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in fiill force and
effect as of the date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached.

This authority was valid thirty (30) days prior to and remains valid for thirty (30) days from the
date of this Certificate of Authority. I further certify that it is understood that the State of New
Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed above currently
occupy the posltion(s) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To
the extent that there are any limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the
corporation in contracts with the State of New Hampshire, all such limitations are expressly
stated herein.

February 5, 2025

Date Signature of Elected Officer

AnnaMarie Sullivan

Printed Name

102.0 W.-4TH.ST,; SyiTEv4pg \ LITTLE ROCK,.-AR 72201 |-501-212-8600 |'FAX: 501-375^0705
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ACORCf CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MM/OO/YYYY)

8/8/2024

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER{S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy((es} must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer riqhts to the certificate holder In lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER

Cadence Insurance
17900 Chenal Parkway. Ste. 1(K)
Little Rock AR 72223

COMTACT . "
NAME: Bill Birch
PHONE FAX
IA«:. No. ExH: 501-614-1170 |A«.No):

bill.birch^cadenceinsurance.com

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAICS

INSURER A: Accident Fund Ins Co of America 10166
INSURED ' ARKAFOU-02

Arkansas Foundaticxi for Medical Care, Inc.
1020 West 4th Street, Ste. 300
Little Rock AR 72201

INSURERS: Cincinnati Insurance Company 10677

INSURER c:

INSURER 0:

INSURER E:

INSURER F:

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 209162185 REVISION NUMBER:
THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF /UVY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR
UR TYPE OF INSURANCE

AODL

jtlia
SUBR

POUCYNUMBER
POLICY EFF
imwod/yyyyi

POLICY EXP
imm/dd/yyyyi LIMITS

COMMERCIAL GENERAL UABILITY

CLAIMS-MADE OCCUR

ECP 0691775 8/1/2024 8/1/2025 EACH OCCURRENCE

PREMISES (Ea occurrence!

MED EXP (Any one pertoo)

PERSONAL S ADV INJURY

GEtn AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:

POLICY I I I I LOC
OTHER:

GENERAi. AGGREGATE

PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG

>1.000,000

$300,000

$10,000

$1,000,000

$2,000.000

$2,000,000

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

ANY AUTO

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
lEa Actidftrtl

BODILY INJURY (Per person)

OWNED
AUTOS ONLY
HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

SCHEDULED
AUTOS
NON-OWNED

AUTOS ONLY

BODILY INJURY (Per seddenl)

PROPERTY DAMAGE
fPer seddenll

UMBRELLA UAB

EXCESS UAB

OED

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

EACH OCCURRENCE

AGGREGATE

RETENTIONS-

WORKERS COMPENSATION

AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY

ANYPROPRIETORIPARTNER^XECUTIVE
OFFICER/MEUBEREXCLUDEO?
(Mandatory In NH)
I' yes, dacoibe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS bekNr

100041202 8/1/2024 8/1/2025 Pik
STATUTE

"5Ttr"
ER

□ E.L. EACH ACCIDENT $1,000,000

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE $1,000,000

E.L. DISEASE ■ POLICY LIMIT $1,000,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS'VEHICLES (ACORD101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached II more space Is required)

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

State of New Hampshire, DHHS
129 Pleasant Street
Concord NH 03301

'

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POUCY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03)
® 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
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AFMC Mission Statement

Our mission is to promote and inspire innovation in health, wellness and technology
through partnerships in our communities.
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Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care, Inc.

Financial Statements and Supplemental Information

June 30, 2024. 2023, and 2022

(With Independent Auditor's Report Thereon)
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Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care, Inc.

Financial Statements

June 30,2024, 2023, and 2022

Address:

EIN:

Phone number;

Director:

Contact person:

Cost of audit;

P.O. Box 1508

Fort Smith, Arkansas 72902

23-7237381

(479)' 649-8501

Phyllis Rogers, Chief Financial Officer

Jenna demons, Controller

Available upon request



Docusign Envelope ID: 0F7E5149-7E8A-4FDF-BCC6-C3692D27DDSC

'  Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care, Inc.
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(^LANDMARK
^^^CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Board of Directors

Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care, Inc.

Fort Smith, Arkansas

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care, Inc. (a nonprofit

organization), which comprise the statements of financial position as of June 30, 2024, 2023, and 2022,

and the related statements of activities and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to

the financial statements.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial

position of Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care, Inc. as of June 30, 2024, 2023, and 2022, and the

changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting

principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of

America (GAAS) and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing

Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those

standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

section of our report. We are required to be independent of Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care, Inc.

and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements

relating to our audits. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate

to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibility of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in

accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of Internal control relevant to the preparation and fair

presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or

error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions

or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Arkansas Foundation for

Medical Care, Inc.'s ability to continue as a going concern for one year after the date that the financial

statements are issued.

Landmark PLC, Certified Public Accountants

3101S 70th Street I Fort Smith, AR 72903 1 telephone (479) 484-5740 I Fax (479) 484-0670 | vvvvw.landmarkcpas.com
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Board of Directors

Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care, Inc.

Auditor^s Reisponsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are

free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
Includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but Is not absolute assurance and
therefore Is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing
Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resujting from error, as fraud may Involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Misstatements are considered material if there Is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the
aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial

statements.

In performing an audjt in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards, we:

•  Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

•  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether

due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks.
Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements.

•  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care,'lnc.'s internal

control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

•  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of

significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall

presentation of the financial statements.

•  Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the
aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care, Inc/s
ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related
matters that we identified during the audit.

Supplementary Information

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole.

The accompanying Schedules of Expenditures of Federal Awards and State Awards, as required by Title 2
U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and
Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance), and Arkansas Department of Human Services

are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the financial statements.
Such Information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has
been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain

additional procedures. Including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements

themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America. In our opinion, the Schedules of Expenditures of Federal Awards and State

Awards are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the financial statements as a whole.
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Board of Directors

Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care, Inc.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated November 2,
2024, on our consideration of Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care, Inc.'s internal control over financial

reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and
grant agreements, and other matters. The purpose,of that report is solely to describe the scope of our

testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not.
to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care, Inc.'s internal

control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care,

Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Fort Smith, Arkansas

November 2, 2024
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Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care, Inc.

Statements of Financial Position

June 30, 2024, 2023, and 2022

2024 2023 2022

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents S  9,234,322 $ 8,412,229 S 11,161,937

Accounts receivable

Federal contracts 160,430 140,990 281,508

State contracts 2,322,961 6,028,909 4,829,136 ■

COVID contracts - 166,379 231,158

Private carrier contracts 1,469,755 1,371,446 1,291,450

interest receivable 14,321 13,342 3,820

Prepaid expenses 1,150,765 1,037,598 1,049,968

Total Current Assets 14,352,554 17,170,893 18,848,977

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, NET 7,848,305 7,235,549 5,367,256

INVESTMENTS AND OTHER ASSETS

Marketable securities 18,029,663 14,444,569 13,541,401

Real estate 1,099,900 1,099,900 1,060,000

.  19,129,563 15,544,469 14,601,401

TOTAL ASSETS $ 41,330,422 $ 39,950,911 S 38,817,634

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accounts payable $  634,738 $ 521,372 $ 952,889

Accrued expenses 2,496,524 2,501,752 2,265,071

Total Current Liabilities 3,131,262 3,023,124 3,217,960

NET ASSETS WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS

Designated for future severance pay 2,364,030 2,063,269 1,911,112

Undesignated 35,835,130 34,864,518 33,688,562

38,199,160 36,927,787 35,599,674

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS -  $ 41,330,422 S 39,950,911 S 38,817,634

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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Arkansas Foundation for Medical Carep Inc.

Statements of Activities

Years ended June 30, 2024,2023, and 2022

2024 2023 2022

OPERATING REVENUES

Federal contracts

State contracts

COVID contracts

Private carrier contracts

$  1,066,680

31,411,347

172,102

7,086,852

$  951,729

32,841,210

2,569,328

4,424,572

S  717,451

23,918,534

15,764,025

5,258,605

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES 39,736,981 40,786,839 45,658,615

OPERATING EXPENSES

Direct

Indirect

Non-reimbursable

32,212,669

8,387,457

340,052

32,248,575

8,332,491

492,438

36,102,586

7,978,790

296,850

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 40,940,178 41,073,504 44,378,226

OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) (1,203,197) (286,665) 1,280,389

OTHER INCOME (LOSS)

Interest and dividend income

(Loss) on disposal of property and equipment

Net realized and unrealized gains (losses)

on investments

Paycheck Protection Program loan forgiveness

Real estate investment income, net

569,757

1,775,432

129,381

472,856

1,017,775

124,147

434,874

.  (196)

(1,907,609)

3,630,230

103,092

TOTAL OTHER INCOME 2,474,570 1;614,778 2,260,391

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS 1,271,373 1,328,113 3,540,780

NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 36,927,787 35,599,674 32,058,894

NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR $ 38,199,160 S 36,927,787 $  35,599,674

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care, Inc.

Statements of Cash Flows

Years ended June 30,2024, 2023, and 2022

2024 2023 2022

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Change in net assets without donor restrictions

Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets

without donor restrictions to net cash

from (used for) operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization

Loss on disposal of property and equipment

Net realized and unrealized (gains) losses

on investments

Paycheck Protection Program loan forgiveness

Changes in:

Accounts receivable

Interest receivable

Prepaid expenses

Accounts payable

Accrued expenses

Total adjustments

Net Cash From (Used For) Operating Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of property and equipment

Purchase of marketable securities

Proceeds from sale/maturity of

marketable securities

Net Cash From (Used For) Investing Activities

NET CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS,

BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR

S  1,271,373 S  1,328,113 S  3,540,780

651,942 461,496 460,048

196

(1,775,432) (1,017,775) 1,907,609

(3,630,230)

3,754,578

(979)

(113,167)

113,366

(5,228)

(1,074,472)

(9,522)

12,370

(431,517)

236,681

2,404,002

(238)

(151,567)

(397,552)

(340,745)

2,625,080 (1,822,739) 251,523

3,896,453 (494,626) 3,792,303

(1,264,698)

(7,526,719)

(2,369,689)

(6,223,674)

(39,750)

(791,926)

5,717,057 6,338,281 988,247

(3,074,360) (2,255,082) 156,571

822,093 (2,749,708) 3,948,874

8,412,229 11,161,937 7,213,063

S  9,234,322 S  8,412,229 $ 11,161,937

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care, Inc.

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30,2024,2023, and 2022

NOTEl: NATURE OF BUSINESS

The Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care, Inc. (the Organization) operates primarily in the State of

Arkansas to improve health and health care by providing education, outreach, data analysis,

information technology, medical case utilization and review, and marketing/communications services
for Medicaid beneficiaries and health care providers in all settings.. During the year ended June 30,

2021, the Organization also expanded services to mobilize a contact tracing team under a sub
contract agreement with the Arkansas Department of Health and hosted COVID testing and vaccine
events, provided staff augmentation for hospitals and university health centers, and expanded call-
center services to provide vaccine support services. During the year ended June 30, 2023, ail of the

COVID services listed above ended. However, the Organization is continuing COVID vaccine clinics and

inspection services and COVID education.

NOTE 2: SUMMARY OFSIGINIFICANTACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Accounting ,

The Organization's policy is to prepare its financial statements on the accrual basis of accounting in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Revenues

are recognized, net of any applicable sales tax, In the period in which they are earned. Expenses are
recognized in the period in which they are incurred.

Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the Statements of Cash Flows, the Organization considers cash equivalents to be all
short-term, highly liquid investments that are both readily convertible to known amounts of cash and

are so near their maturity that they present insignificant risk of changes in value because of changes

in interest rates. At June 30, 2024, 2023, and 2022, the Organization had cash equivalents of

approximately $111,000, $1,616,000 and $1,290,000, respectively.

Accounts Receivable

The Organization considers accounts receivable to be fully collectible. Accordingly, no allowance for
credit losses is deemed necessary. If accounts become uncollectible, they will be charged to

operations when that determination is made. Determination of uncollectibllity is made by
management based on knowledge of individual accounts and consideration of such factors as current

economic conditions. Credit extended is generally uncollateralized. Past-due status is based on

contractual terms. Past-due accounts are not charged interest.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment is accounted for at cost or, if donated, at the approximate fair value at the
date of donation. Depreciation of property and equipment is computed on the straight-line method

over the estimated useful lives of the assets, which range from three to thirty-nine years. For the

years ended June 30, 2024, 2023, and 2022, depreciation expense was $648,672, $458,226, and
$452,278, respectively.

All acquisitions of nonexpendable, tangible personal property having a useful life of more than one

year and an acquisition cost which equals or exceeds $5,000 are capitalized.

8
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Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care, Inc.

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30,2024,2023, and 2022

At June 30, 2024, 2023, and 2022, the Organization had fully depreciated assets still in service with an
■  . original cost of approximately $4,077,000, $3,900,000, and $4,500,000, respectively.

}

Amortization

The Organization follows the policy of amortizing computer software costs over various periods up to
three years. For the years ended June 30, 2024, 2023, and 2022, amortization expense was $3,270,
$3,270, and $7,770, respectively.

Long-Llved Assets

In accordance with Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Codification Topic Property, Plant
and Equipment, Section Subsequent Measurement, management evaluates long-lived assets and
certain identifiable intangibles held and used by the Organization for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable.
During the years ended June 30, 2024, 2023, and 2022, no amounts were written off as impaired.

Investments

The Organization has portfolio investments in marketable equity and debt securities. Management
determines the appropriate classification of the securities at the time they are acquired and evaluates the
appropriateness of such classifications at each statement of financial position date. The classification of
those securities and the related accounting policies are as follows:

Available-for-sale securities

. Available-for-sale securities consist of marketable equity and debt securities not classified as
trading or held-to-maturlty. Available-for-sale securities are stated at fair value, and unrealized
^holding gains and losses are reported on the Statement of Activities..The fair value of the
investments in equity and debt securities is based upon public market rates. See Note 6 for
discussion of fair value measurements. Realized gains and losses, including losses from
declines in value of specific securities determined by management to other-than-temporary,
are included in income. Realized gains and losses are determined by specific identification for

each security sold. Dividends are recorded on the ex-dividend date.

Non-Exchange Revenue

The majority of the Organization's revenue is derived from non-exchange contracts and grants which are
conditioned upon certain performance requirements and/or the incurrence of allowable qualifying
expenses. Amounts received are recognized as revenue when the Organization has met performance
requirements or incurred expenditures in compliance witfTspedfic contract or grant provisions. Amounts"
received prior to meeting performance requirements or incurring qualifying expenditures are reported as
deferred revenue in the Statements of Financial Position. The Organization has various cost reimbursable
grants that have not been recognized at June 30, 2024, 2023, and 2022 because the qualifying
expenditures have not yet been incurred.
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Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care, Inc.

Notes to Financial Statements .

June 30,2024,2023, and 2022

Exchange Revenue

The Organization provides security risk analysis to private carriers. These are short-term fee for service

contracts. Performance obligations are satisfied at a point in time, and revenue is recognized when the

services are provided to customers and additional services are no longer required. The Organization
determines the transaction price based on standard charges.for the services provided. These program

service fee revenues are included as part of "Private carrier contracts" on the Statements of Activities.

Federal and State Contracts

Federal contracts on the Staterhents of Activities include only contracts that are directly awarded and

received from the federal government. State contracts on the Statements of Activities include contracts

•that are direct awards from the state or are federal awards passed through the state.

Compensated Absences

The Organization accrues the obligation for employee rights to receive compensation for future

absences, such as vacation.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in

the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect

the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the

date of the financial statements and reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the

reporting period. In these financial statements, the provision for self-insured employee health claims

involved extensive reliance on management's estimates (See Note 9). Actual results could differ froiti

those estimates.

Income Tax and Uncertain Tax Positions

The Organization qualifies as an organization exempt from income taxes under section 501(c)(3) of
the Internal Revenue Code and a similar state statute and Is not subject to tax at the entity level for

federal and state income tax purposes. The Organization accounts for uncertain tax positions in

accordance with the provisions of FASB Codification Topic Income Taxes. FASB Codification Topic

Income Taxes clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes and requires the Organization to

recognize in their financial statements the impact of a tax position taken or expected to be taken in a
tax return, if that position is more likely than not to be sustained under audit, based on the technical

merits of the position. Management has assessed the tax positions of the Organization and

determined that no positions exist that require adjustment or disclosure under the provisions of FASB

Codification Topic/ncome Toxes.

The Organization files Informational "Return of Organization Exempt from Income Tax" (Form 990) in

the U.S. federal jurisdiction.

Functional Allocation of Expenses

The Organization allocates its expenses on a functional basis among its various prograrhs and support

services. Expenses that can be identified with a specific program and support service are allocated

directly according to their natural expenditure classification. Allocable expenses that are common to

several functions are allocated based on units of time expended. Indirect expenses are allocated to

the programs based on allowable rates.
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Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care, Inc.

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30,2024,2023, and 2022

Advertising

The Organization follows the policy of,charging advertising to expense as incurred. For the years

ended June 30, 2024, 2023, and 2022, advertising expense was approximately $48,000, $85,000, and
$94,000, respectively.

Allowance for Credit losses

In June 2016, the FASB issued guidance (FASB ASC 326) which significantly changed how entities will

measure credit losses for most financial assets and certain other instruments that aren't measured at

fair value through net income. The most significant change in this standard is a shift from the incurred

loss model to the expected loss model. Under the standard, disclosures are required to provide users

of the financial statements with useful information in analyzing an entit/s exposure to credit risk and

the measurement of credit losses. Financial assets held by the Organization that are subject to the

guidance in FASB ASC 326 were accounts receivable.

The Organization adopted the standard effective July 1, 2023. The impact of this adoption was not

considered material to the financial statements and primarily resulted in enhanced disclosures only.
s

NOTES: FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS WITH RISK OF ACCOUNTING LOSS

The Organization uses financial institutions in which it maintains cash balances, which at times may

exceed federally insured limits or are uncollateralized. The Organization has not experienced any

losses in such accounts, and management believes it is not exposed to significant credit risk related to

cash. At June 30, 2024, the Organization had no uninsured cash or cash equivalents.

At June 30, 2024, the Organization had investments in marketable securities valued at $18,029,663,
which are subject to market risk.

NOTE 4: PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, NET

Property and equipment for the years ended June 30, 2024, 2023, and 2022 are as follows: i

2024 2023 2022

Furniture and equipment

Software

Building

Leasehold improvements

Less accumulated depreciation and amortization

r-.

$  4,161,123 S 3,407,029 $ 3,846,760

1,765,333 - -  1,765,333 1,721,073

9,307,517 8,816,287 6,854,852

424,668 424,668 424,668

15,658,641 14,413,317 12,847,353

.  7,810,336 , 7,177,768 7,480,097

$  7,848,305 s 7,235,549 $ 5,367,256
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Arkansas Foundation for Medical Carejnc.

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30,2024,2023, and 2022

NOTES: INVESTMENTS IN AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE SECURITIES

As stated in Note 2, investments in marketable equity securities with readily determinable fair values
and all investments in debt securities are carried at fair value. The cost, fair value, and unrealized
appreciation of these investments for the years ended June 30, 2024, 2023, and 2022, are

summarized as follows:

2024 2023 2022

Cost of investments

Equity securities $ 9,247,426 $  9,880,927 $ 9,887,629

Debt securities 3,655,607 502,447 502,895

S 12,903,033 S  10,383,374 S 10,390,524

Fair value of investments
I

Equity securities $ 14,367,560 $  13,961,114 S 13,041,756

Debt securities 3,662,103 483,455 499,645

$ 18,029,663 $  14,444,569 $ 13,541,401

Unrealized appreciation

on Investments $ 5,126,630 $  4,061,195 $ 3,150,877

The following schedule summarizes the investment return and its classification in the Statemer

Activities for the years ended June 30, 2*024, 2023, and 2022.

2024 2023 2022

Interest and dividend income $ 569,757 S , 472,856 $ 434,874

Net unrealized gains (losses) 1,065,435. 910,318 (2,089,151)

Net realized gains 709,997 107,457 181,542

$ 2,345,189 S  1,490,631 s ■ (1,472,735)

NOTE 6: FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

FASB Codification Topic fd/r Value Measurements and Disclosures establishes a framework for measuring
fair value. That framework provides a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation
techniques used to measure fair value. The fair value hierarchy gives the highest priority to quoted prices

in active markets for identical assets or liabilities {Level 1) arid the lowest priority to unobservable inputs
(Level 3). If the inputs used to measure the investments fall within different levels of the hierarchy, the

categorization is based on the lowest level of. input that is significant to the fair value measurement of the

investment.

12
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Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care, Inc.

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2024, 2023, and 2022

Investments recorded in the accompanying Statements of Financial Position based on the inputs to

valuation techniques are as follows:

Level 1 - These are investments where values are based on unadjusted quoted prices for

identical assets in an active market that the Organization has the ability to access. These

investments are comprised of equity securities.

Level 2 - These are investments where values are based on quoted prices in markets that are

not active or model inputs that are observable either directly or indirectly for substantially
the full term of the investments. These investments are comprised of ctebt securities.

Level 3 - These are Investments where values are based on prices or valuation techniques

that require inputs that are both unobservable and significant to the overall fair value

measurement. These inputs reflect assumptions of management about assumptions market

participants would use in pricing the investments.

The assefs or liability's fair value measurement level within the fair value hierarchy is based on the

lowest level of any input that is significant to the fair value measurement.

Valuation techniques used need to maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of

unobservable inputs.

Following is a description of the valuation methodologies used for assets measured at fair value.
■ There have been no changes in the methodologies used at June 30, 2024, 2023, and 2022.

Equity securities: Valued at closing price reported on the active market on which the security is
traded.

Debt securities: Valued at the present value of the corporate bond's coupon payments and the

repayment of the principal.

The preceding methods described may produce a fair value calculation that may not be indicative of
net realizable value or reflective of future fair values. Furthermore, although the Organization

believes its valuation methods are appropriate and consistent with other organizations, the use of

different methodologies or assumptions to determine the fair value of certain financial instruments

could result in a different fair value measurement at the reporting date.

13



Docusign Envelope ID: 0F7E5149.7E8A-4FDF-BCC6-C3692D27DD5C

Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care, Inc.

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30,2024,2023, and 2022

The foHowIng table presents the Organization's hierarchy for the Investments measured at fair value

on a recurring basis as of June 30, 2024, 2023, and 2022.

Equity securities

Debt securties

Equity securities

Debt securties

June 30.2024

(Levell) (Level 2) (levels)

$  14,367,560 $ - $

3,662,103

June 30. 2023

(Levell) (Level 2) (Levels)

S  13,961,114 $ - $

483,455

Equity securities

Debt securties

June 30. 2022

(Levell) (Level 2)

S  13,041,756 S

499,645

(Level 3)

NOTE 7: LINE OF CREDIT

The Organization maintains a $500,000 revolving line of credit with a bank. The interest rate was

8.50% at June 30, 2024, 7.00% at June 30, 2023, and 3.25% at June 30, 2022. The line of credit is

secured by the Organization's federal, state, and private carrier contracts, with interest due monthly.

The line of credit matures in December 2024. As of June 30, 2024, there were no outstanding
advances on the line of credit.

NOTE S: LEASING ARRANGEMENTS

Capital Lease

Assets acquired under capital leases have been capitalized and are included in property and
equiprhent on the Statements of Financial Position. As of June 30, 2024 and 2023, there were no

assets acquired under capital leases. As of June 30, 2022, assets were acquired under capital leases at
a cost of $729,746, with accumulated depreciation of $729,746.

There were no capital lease obligations as of June 30, 2024, 2023, and 2022.

Operating Leases

Lessee

The 0/ganization leases office space and various pieces of office equipment under long-term
operating lease agreements. The total rental expense for operating leases for the years ended June

30, 2024, 2023, and 2022 was approximately $2,478, $86,000, and $108,000, respectively.

14
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Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care, Inc.

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30,2024, 2023, and 2022

The following is a schedule of future minimum rental payments required under the above operating
leases:

Years ending June 30, 2025 S 2,478

2026 1,652

Lessor

A portion of the Organization's building is being used for the Organization's operations and the

remainder is being leased out under operating lease agreements. Rent income was approximately
$207,000, $195,000, and $167,000 for the years ended June 30, 2024, 2023, and 2022, respectively.

Maintenance expense related to this income was approximately $77,0^0, $71,000, and $64,000,
respectively, for the years ended June 30, 2024, 2023, and 2022, which is netted against the rent
Income in the Statements of Activities as "Real estate investment income, net".

NOTE 9: EMPLOYEE HEALTH CLAIMS

In January 2011, the Organization established a self-insured health plan. Substantially all of the

Organization's employees and their dependents are eligible to participate in the Organization's

employee health insurance plan. The Organization is self-insured for health claims of participating
employees and dependents up to an annual aggregate amount of approximately $4,072,000 at June
30, 2024. Commercial stop-loss insurance coverage is purchased for claims in excess of the aggregate

annual amount. \

A provision is accrued for self-insured employee health claims including both claims reported and

^  claims incurred but not yet reported. The accrual is estimated based on cpnsideration of prior claims

experience, recently settled claims, frequency of claims, and other economic and social factors. It is

reasonably.possible that the Organization's estimate-will change by a material amount in the near
term. Total expense for claims for the years ended June 30, 2024, 2023; and 2022, was $3,255,316,

$3,336,493, and $3,568,676, respectively.

NOTE 10: EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

The Organization has a 401(k) profit sharing plan (the Plan}. All employees who are not leased
employees nor nonresident aliens are eligible to participate in the Plan. The Organization's funding
policy for the Plan is to make safe harbor contributions based upon 3% of each participant's

compensation. The Organization also has the ability to make a discretionary profit sharing
contribution to participants. Employees are immediately vested in the safe harbor contribution.

Employees become fully vested in discretionary profit sharing contributions after five years of service.
For the years ended June 30, 2024, 2023, and 2022, the Organization made plan contributions of

approximately $659,000, $634,000, and $654,000, respectively. The Board of Directors has
established a severance pay program. See Note 12 for further details.
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Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care, Inc.

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30,2024, 2023, and 2022

NOTE 11: CONCENTRATIONS, CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

A material part of the Organization's operations is derived from federal and state contracts. State

contracts are renegotiated annually. For the years ended June 30, 2024, 2023, and 2022, these

contracts represented 82%, 83%, and 54% of the Organization's total operating revenues,

respectively. The loss of these contracts would have an adverse effect on the Organization's ability to

continue in existence.

Support funded by these contracts is recognized as the Organization performs the services or incurs

outlays eligible for reimbursement under the contract agreements. The .services and. outlays are

subject to audit and acceptance by the awarding agency or their representatives and, as a result of

such audit, adjustments could be required.

\

During the year ended June 30, 2021, the Organization also expanded services to include COVID

contract services (See Note 1). These contracts represented 35% of the Organization's total operating

revenues for the year ended June 30, 2022. These services are expected to be temporary, however,

the Organization is prepared to adjust resources as these contracts close out and therefore does not

believe that these contracts ending will have an adverse effect on the Organization's ability to

continue.

The Organization grants unsecured credit for services provided based on these contracts and other

privately funded services. At June 30, 2024,-2623, and 2022, the Organization had extended credit
(accounts receivable) of approximately $3,953,000, $7,708,000, and $6,633,000, respectively.

The Organization's employees maintain credit cards that are guaranteed by the Organization. At June

30, .2024, there were no outstanding balances and the available credit line was approximately

$153,000. The Organization monitors the employees' payments of these balances and may withhold

payment from the employees' payroll checks.

NOTE 12: DESIGNATED NET ASSETS

The Board of Directors has established a severance pay program for the benefit of all employees. This

program is intended to compensate employees in the event the federal and/or state contracts are

eliminated, either through termination or nonrenewal. For the years ended June 30, 2024, 2023, and

2022, employees who would be terminated for this reason are entitled to one week's severance pay

for each year of service up to 12 years. Any expense that would be incurred under this plan will be

recognized when it becomes likely that payment of severance pay will be made. At June 30, 2024,

2023, and 2022, the balance of this severance pay is included in "Designated for Future Severance

Pay" on the Statements of Financial Position.
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Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care, Inc.

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30,2024, 2023, and 2022

NOTE 13: LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABIUTY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

The Organization regularly monitors liquidity required to meet its operating heeds and other
contractual commitments, while also striving to maximize the investment of its available funds. The
Organization has various sources of liquidity at its disposal, including cash and cash equivalents,
marketable debt and equity securities (see Note 5), and a line of credit (see Note 7).

The Organization monitors cash weekly to meet general expenditures and transfers funds from its
investment account or draws on the line of credit as necessary for short-term cash flow delays.

. The following table reflects the Organization's financial assets as of June 30, 2024, 2023, and 2022, to
meet general expenditures within one year of the Statement of Financial Position date.

2024 2023 2022

Cash and cash equivalents

V

$  9,234,322 $  8,412,229 $ 11,161,937

Accounts and interest

receivable ,  3,967,467 7,721,066 6,637,072

Investments 18,029,663 ■ 14,444,569 13,541,401

Less; Designated for future severance pay 2,354,030 2,063,269 1,911,112"

$ 28,867,422 $ 28,514,595 $ 29;429,298

NOTE 14: FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

During the years ended June 30, 2024, 2023, and 2022, functional expenses were incurred as folh

June 30, 2024

General and

Program Administrative

Services Costs Total

~ Salaries $ 17,479,094 S  1,268,457 $ 18,747,551

Leave 2,569,840 186,493 2,756,333

Fringe 5,761,795 418,133 6,179,928-

Physician advisors 34,511 - 34,511

Consultants 5,805,598 166,541 . 5,972,139

Travel 460,056 54,756 .  514,812

Other costs 5,788,329 521,942 6,310,271

Pass through costs 424,633 - . 424,633

$ 38,323,856 $  2,616,322 $ 40,940,178
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Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care, Inc.

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30,2024,2023, and 2022

June 30, 2023

General and

Program Administrative

Services Costs Total

Salaries $ 16,951,858 $  1,042,468. $ 17,994,326

Leave 2,555,202 157,127 2,712,329

Fringe 5,965,216 366,837 6,332,053

Physician advisors 39,566 - 39,566

Consultants 6,495,623 173,929 6,669,552

Travel 591,479 33,511 624,990

Other costs 5,378,899 586,148 , 5,965,047

Pass through costs 735,641 735,641

$ 38,713,484 $  2,360,020 $ 41,073,504

June 30, 2022 r

General and

Program Administrative

. Services ' Costs Total

Salaries $ 17,248,691 $. 823,670 S 18,072,361

Leave 2,656,536 126,857 2,783,393

Fringe 6,326,603 302,112 6,628,715

Physician advisors 18,905 18,905

Consultants 9,784,466 114,637 9,899,103

Travel 320,602 8,131 328,733

Other costs 5,945,875 454,675 6,400,550

Pass through costs 246,466 - 246,466

$ 42,548,144 $  1,830,082 . $ 44,378,226

NOTE 15: SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Management has evaluated subsequent events through November 2, 2024, the date that the financial

statements were available to be Issued.
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Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care, Inc.

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

Year ended June 30,2024

FEDERAL GRANTOR/

PASS THROUGH GRANTOR/

PROGRAM TITLE

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE:

Direct programs:

Harold Rogers Prescription Drug

Monitoring Program (PDMP)

Total United States Department of Justice

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES:

Direct programs:

Telehealth Program - Rural Communities

Opioid Response (Planning)

Primary Care Training and Enhancement

Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services

Projects of Regional and National Significance

Pass-through programs from Arkansas Department

of Human Services:

Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services

Projects of Regional and National Significance

Medicaid Cluster-Medical

Assistance Program Title XIX

Opioid STR

Pass-through programs from Arkansas Department

of Health:

Injury Prevention and Control Research and State

and Community Based Programs - Substance Use Disorder

Activities to Support State, Tribal, Local, and Territorial

(STLT) Health Department Response to Public Health .

or Healthcare Crises - Historically Black

Colleges and Universities

Cancer Prevention and Control Programs for

State, Territorial and Tribal Organizations

Pass-through programs from Zero to 3:

Maternal and Child Health Federal Consolidated Programs

Total United States Department of Health and Human Services

TOTAL EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

ASSISTANCE

LISTING FEDERAL

NUMBER EXPENDITURES

16.754

93.211

93.884

93.243

93.243

93.778

93.788

93.136

93.391

93.898

93.110

15,635

15,635

408,395

. 91,485

539,855

29,243

17,546,199

60,777

26,528

178,892

18,805

8,721

18,908,900

S 18,924,535

See Independent Auditor's Report.

20



Docusign Envelope ID; 0F7E5149-7E8A-4FDF-BCC6-C3692D27DD5C

Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care, Inc.

Schedule of Expenditures of State Awards
Year ended June 30,2024

PROGRAM AGENCY/

PROGRAM NAME

ARKANSAS DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN SERVICES

Medicaid Managed Care Services
\  ̂

Medicaid Review Agent for Arkansas

Medicaid Inspections of Care

ARKANSAS DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH

Cancer Prevention and Control Programs for
State, Territorial-and Tribal Organizations

TOTAL EXPENDITURES OF STATE AWARDS

STATE

AWARD

19,337

STATE

EXPENDITURES

$  9,990,132 $ 9,781,030

1,800,592 1,851,127

1,310,766 1,380,901

13,101,490 13,013,058

18,805

$ 13,120,827 $ 13,031,863

See Independent Auditor's Report.
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Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care, Inc.

Notes to Schedules of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards

Year ended June 30,2024

NOTEl:

The accompanying Schedules of Expenditures of Federal Awards and State Awards includes the federal

and state grant activity of Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care, Inc. and is presented on the accrual

basis of accounting. The information, in these schedules. are presented in accordance with the

requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200m Uniform Administrative

Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance) and the

Arkansas Department of Human Services. Because the schedules present only a selected portion of the

operations of Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care, Inc., they are not intended to and do not present

the financial position, changes in net assets, or cash flows of Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care, Inc.

NOTE 2:

Expenditures reported on the schedules are recognized following the cost principles contained in the

Uniform Guidance, wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to

reimbursement. Arkansas Foundation for Medical-Care, Inc. has not elected to use the 10-percent de-

minimis indirect cost rate allowed under Uniform Guidance. (
I

See Independent Auditor's Report.
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LANDMARK
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER

FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS

BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED

IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Board of Directors

Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care, Inc.
Fort Smith, Arkansas

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America

and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of Arkansas Foundation for Medical

Care, Inc. (a nonprofit organization), which comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30,

2024, and the related statements of activities and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes

to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated November 2,2024.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Organization's internal
control over financial reporting (internal conlxol) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are

appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but

not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization's internal control.

Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization's internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow

management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or

detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a

combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material

misstatement of the Organization's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and

corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in

internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by

those charged with governance.

Our consideration of Internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this

section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material

weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitMions, during our audit we did not identify any

deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material,

weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.
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Board of Directors

Arkansas Foundation forMedical Care, Inc.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Organization's financial statements are free

of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements, nbncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the.

financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an

objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed

no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government
Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and

compliance arid the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the.effectiveness of the

Organization's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Organization's internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Fort Smith, Arkansas

November 2,2024
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0LANDMARK
CERTIFIED PU8LIC ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM

AND REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPUANCE

IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

Board of Directors

Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care, Inc.

Fo'rt Smith, Arkansas

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care, Inc.'s (a nonprofit organization) compliance
with the types of compliance requirements identified as subject to audit in the U.S. Office of Management
and Budget (0MB) Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of the

Organization's major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2024. The Organization's major federal
program is identified in the summary of independent auditor's results section of the accompanying
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs.

In our opinion, the Organization complied, In all material respects, with the cornpliance requirements
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the
year ended June 30, 2024.

Basis for Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America (GAAS); the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States {Government Auditing
Standards); and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform
Guidance). Our responsibilities under those standards and the Uniform Guidance are further described

in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section of our report.

We are required to be independent of the Organization and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in
accordance with relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on compliance for each
major federal program. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of the Organization's
compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above.

Responsibilities of Management for Compliance

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the design,
implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the requirements
of laws, statutes, regulations, rules and provisions of contracts or grant agreements applicable to the
Organization's federal programs.
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Board of Directors

Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care, Inc.

Auditor^s Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with the
compliance requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and express an
opinion on the Organization's compliance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance but Is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with GAAS, Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance will alwiays detect
material noncompliance when it exists. The risk of not detecting material noncompliance resulting from
fraud is higher than for that resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Noncompliance with the compliance
requirements referred to above is considered material, if there is a substantial likelihood that,"
individually or in the aggregate, it would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user of the
report on compliance about the Organization's compliance with the requirements of each major federal

program as a whole.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform
Guidance, we:

•  Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
•  Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, and

design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the Organization's compliance with the
compliance requirements referred to above and performing such other procedures as we
considered necessary in the circumstances.

•  Obtain an understanding of the Organization's internal control over compliance relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances and to test

and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization's internal

control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in
internal control over compliance that we identified during the audit.

Report on Internal Control over Compliance

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or^ employees, in the normal course of performing their
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect, and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over
compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that
there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of
a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant
deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in Internal
control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe
than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention
by those charged with governance.
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Board of Directors

Arkansas Foundation for Medical Carejnc. . ' ^

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed to identify all
deficiencies in Internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies in internal control over compliance. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not
Identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material

. weaknesses, as defined above. However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies In internal
control over compliance may exist that were not identified.

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal
control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over compltance.and the results of that testing based on the requirements of
Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Fort Smith, Arkansas

November 2, 2024
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Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care, Inc.

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

Year ended June 30,2024 ^

SECTION I. SUMMARVOF INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S RESULTS

/

1. The opinions expressed in the independent auditor's report were:

S Unmodified □ Qualified □ Adverse □ Disclaimer

2. The independent auditor's report on internal control over financial reporting disclosed:

Significant deficiency(ies)? □ Yes E None reported
Material weakness(es)? □ Yes E No

3. Noncompllance considered material to the financial statements was disclosed by the audit?
□ Yes E No

4. The independent auditor's report on internal control over compliance with requirements that could
have a direct and material effect on each major federal awards program disclosed:

Significant deficiency(ies)? □ Yes E None reported
Material weakness(es)? ' □ Yes E No '

5. The opinions expressed in the independent auditor's report on compliance with requirements that
could have a direct and material effect on each major federal awards program were:

E Unmodified □ Qualified □ Adverse □ Disclaimer

6. The audit disclosed findings required to be reported by the Uniform Guidance?

□ Yes E No

7. The Organization's major program was the Medical Assistance Program Title XIX {ASLN 93.778).

8. The threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs as those terms are defined
in Uniform Guidance was $750,000.

9. The Organization qualified as a low-risk auditee as that term is defined in the Uniform Guidance?
E Yes □ No
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Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care, Inc.

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

Year ended June 30,2024

SeaiON II. FINDINGS RELATING TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT AUDIT AS REQUIRED TO BE REPORTED

IN ACCORDANCE WITH GENERALLY ACCEPTED GOV^fR/VMfWrAL/O/nWGSTAWDAffbs

There were no audit findings for the year ended June 30, 2024.

SECTION III. FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS FOR FEDERAL AWARDS

There were, no audit findings for the year ended June 30, 2024.

(■
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Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care, Inc.

Summary Schedule of Prior Year Audit Findings

Year ended June 30,2024

There were no prior year audit findings for the year ended June 30, 2023.
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Healthy People.

Healthy Commuhities.

AFMC Board of Directors 2024-2025

'  - ' Executive Committee

Danny Wilkerson, MD, Chair

UAMS

Term expires in 2025
(Noi eligible for re-election)

Kristin Martin, DO, Vice Chair

River Valley Medical Wellness
femi expires in 2025

Derek Pierce, Treasurer

FORVIS

rerm expires in 2025

Chris Hardin, MD, V\CP, Secretary
MANA- Fayettcville Diagnostic Clinic

Term expires in 2026 •
(Not eligiblefor re-election)

Jill Mhyre, MD, Memher-ai-Large
UAMS

Term expires in 2025

General Mernbers

Pete Atkinson
Independent Consultant

Term expires in 2025

Matt Troup
Conway Regional Medical Center

Term expires in 2025
(completing term of Gary Paxson)

Marta Loyd, EdD

Vistage Worldwide
rerm expires in 2025
[completing term of Roderick Smothers)

Michael Stewart

Methodist Charlton Medical Center, TX
Fenn expires in 2026

Angie Walker
Randy D. Walker MD PLLC

Term expires in 2026
(Not eligible for re-election)

Glen Fenter, EdD
Marion School District

Term expires in 2026
(Not eligible for re-election)

Joshua Dilley, MD

Arkansas Anesthesia Associates

Temi expires in 2026
(Not eligible for re-election)

Debby Nye, JD
Kutak Rock, LLP

Tcnn expires in 2026
(Not eligible for re-election)

Huda Sharaf, MD
Pal Walker Health Center, University of Arkansas

Term expires in 2027

Amanda Deel, DO
NYIT, College of Oslcopathic Medicine

Term expires in 2027

Updated 11/03/2024
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Krishna L Bondurant, PhD, MPH, CIC
Director ai>id Epidemiologist, Data Sciences and Public Health

Programs

As an epidemiologist, microbiologist, project manager, and program evaluator, Dr. Bondurant has
developed a diverse set of skills. She is a strong communicator with established relationships
among clients and communities. Her goal is to continue utilizing her unique background to
evaluate, educate, and support quality improvement efforts.

Education

Master of Public Health, Emphasis in

Epidemiology, Integration Project:

"Primary Immunodeficiency Diseases in

Arkansas"

University of Arkansas for Medical Sciences

Little Rock, AR, 2011

Doctor of Philosophy

Major: Microbiology and Immunology

OtSSERTATlON: "T CELL RESPONSES TO

Novel Ovarian Tumor Antigens"

. University of Arkansas for Medical Sciences

Little Rock, AR, 2004

Core Competencies

SAS 9 Certified Base Programmer

: Program evaluation, analytics/data sciences,

survey administration

, Management of ongoing business activities

; Research rnethodology

Pilot program design and implementation

Public health initiatives including prevention
.programs, community engagement, health
service connection, and educational events

Epidemiology

Online graduate-level instruction

■ through Blackboard.

Bachelor OF Arts, Biology

Undergraduate Research Fellowship through the Science Information Liaison

Office of the State of Arkansas: "DNA fingerprinting ofAzolla, an aquatic fern."
Hendrix College, Conway, AR, 1997

Certifications

•  Certified in Infection Control (CIC), Certification Board,of Infection Control and

Epidemiology, 2022

•  SAS Certified Base Programmer, 201S

Experience

Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care (AFMC), Little Rock. AR (2012 - Present)

Director AND Epidemiologist, Data Sciences & Public Health Programs (2022 - Present)

Responsible for research, development, coordination, implementation, operations, and

monitoring of specific projects, programs, and activities related to AFMC's data
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(

Kristina Bondurant, PhD, MPH, CIC

sciences and public health programs departments.

•  Program Evaluation

o Direct evaluation efforts on various substance use prevention, treatment, and recovery
contracts for the States of'Arkansas and New Hampshire - SAHMSA-related efforts

including Department of Justice, Category 6 Grant, State Opioid Response (SOR), First

Responders<omprehensive Addiction and Recovery Act (FR-CARA), and Synar

o Arkansas Department of Health COVID-19 Health Disparities needs assessment and

focus groups to determine counties at highest risk of negative health outcomes related

to COVID-19 and educational sessions to support positive health outcomes

•  Surveys and Data Mining

o Direct ongoing survey projects including CAHPS surveys as well as non-CAHPS

beneficiary satisfaction for Arkansas Department of Human Services programs. Key
online surveys include the CDC Youth Risk Behavior Survey (YRBS) for the state of New

Hampshire and a Young Adult Survey (YAS) for the state of Wyoming. Data mining
efforts focus on claims data analysis to support various health-related contract efforts.

•  Public Health Programs •

o Vaccine REACH Project subcontractor for DAMS (2022 - 2023): Directed a community

health wprker (CHW) team of 29 CHWs and three community-based organizations ,
(CBOs) tasked with strengthening vaccine confidence, providing information and

education on vaccines, and improving vaccine rates in Arkansas. AFMC teams conducted

over 5,000 outreach and educational events, conducted over 200 vaccine events, and

administered nearly 1,500 COVID-19 vaccines,

o Hospital to Home pilot subcontractor for Arkansas DHS (2024 - present): Direct care

transitions program coordinating non-clinical and clinical in-home services for referred

patients during the processing of Medicaid waiver or Provider-Led Arkansas Shared

Savings Entity (PASSE) program applications. The AFMC team comprises Care Transition

Specialists, RNtase Managers, an RN Clinical Lead, a Physician Clinical Lead, and an
Eligibility Specialist. Up to 75 participants will receive support from the pilot for up to

120 days.

Interim Director, Contact Tracing, Research Services Department (2020 - 2022)

• ManagedCOVID-19respons"eeffortsincludingcontacttracing, case investigation,

COVID testing, community vaccination clinics, vaccine scheduling hotline, vaccine

reminder/recall, and COVID-19 provider vaccine inspections with teams of over 500

, staff under contract with the Arkansas Department of Health.

Epidemiologist, Analytics Department (2017- 2020, 2012 - 2015)

•  Provided leadershipof the Arkansas State Epidemiological Outcomes Workgroup
(2012 - 2015) including investigation of patterns and risk factors related to
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substance use disorders, prevention efforts, research, stakeholderengagement, and
community education

•  Continued epidemiological support (2017 - 2020) for projects and programs
including analysis, Investigations, and interpretation of results

•  Served as data manager for SAMHSA's Performance Accountability and Reporting
System (SPARS); entered data into SPARS forthe Arkansas Prescription Drug/Opioid
Overdose-Related Deaths (PDO) SAMHSA grant.

Supervisor, Program Evaluation (2015 -2017)

•  Supervised data scientists and program management of the Arkansas State
Epidemiological Outcomes Workgroup including investigation of patterns and risk

factors related to substance use disorders, prevention efforts, research, stakeholder
engagement, and community education.

ATC Scientific, North Little Rock, AR (2018 - Present)

Consultant- Microbiologist

Fay W. Boozman College of Public Health, UAMS, Little Rock, AR (2007 - 2018)

Adjunct Instructor, Dept. of Environmental and Occupational Health (2012 - 2018)

Instructor, Dept. OF Epidemiology (2009- -2011)

Breast CANCEFi Research Study Director, Department of Epidemiology, (2007 -2011)

Affiliations

Home for Healing, Little Rock, AR (2022 - Present)

Secretary, 2024

Board Member, 2022 - 2023

Council of State and Territorial Epidemiologists (CSTE) (2014 - Present)

American Evaluation Association (2015- Present)

American Public Health Association (2022-^ Present)

Arkansas Environmental Education Association (2019 -2022)

Treasurer, 2020 - 2022

Board Member, 2019

Training

•  International Hazard Analysis Critical Control Points(HACCP) Alliance Introductory

Course for Development of HACCP, 2021
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, • National Poultry Improvement Plan Avian Influenza Diagnostic Workshop, 2020

•  NPIP Salmonella Diagnostic Workshop, 2019

Relevant Publications

1. Bondurant, K., Joshi, A., Ray, N. 2020. Physician's role in COVID-19 contact tracing. Journal of
the Arkansas Medical Society, Nov;117(5):108-9.

2. Bondurant, Kristina L; Wheeler, J. Gary; Bursac, Zoran; Holmes, Tereasa; Tilford, J. Mick.
Corhparison of Office-Based versus Outsourced Immunization Recall Services. Clinical

Pediatrics. Clin Pediatr(Phila). 2017 Jun;56(6):555-583.

3. ■ Bondurant, K. 2016. Preventing substance abuse with data-driveri coalitions. Journal of

the Arkansas Medical Society, Apr;112(12):228-9.

,  , 4. Jeanette Y. Lee, PhD; V. Suzanne Klimberg, MD; Kristina Bondurant, PhD, MPH; Martha

Phillips, PhD, MPH, MBA; Susan Kadlubar, PhD. 2014. Cross-sectional study to assess the
association of population densitywith breast cancer risk. The Breaist Journal Cancer. 2014

Nov-Dec;20(6):615-21. Doi: 10.1111/tbj.12330.

5. Bondurant, k.L, Luhdgreen A., Herrick J.S., Kadlubar S.A., Wolff R.K., Slattery M.L 2013.
Ihterleukin genes and associations with colon and rectal cancer risk and survival.

International Journal of Cancer. Feb 15;132(4):905-15. Doi: 10.1002/ijc.27660.

6. Slattery, M.L, Lundgreen A., Kadlubar S.A., Bondurant, K.L, Wolff, R.K. 2013.
JAK/STAT/SOCS- signaling pathway and colon and rectal cancer. Mol Carcinog.
Feb;52(2):155-66. doi: 10.1002/mc.21841.

7. slattery, M.L, Herrick, J.S., Bondurant, K.L, Wolff, R.K. 2012. Toll-like receptor genes and
their association with colon and rectal cancer development and prognosis. International
Journal of Cancer. Jun T5;130{12):2974-80. doi: 10.1002/ijc.26314

8. Slattery, M.L, Lundgreen A., Bondurant, K.L, Wolff, R.K. 2011. Tumor necrosis factor-

related genes and colon and rectal cancer. Int J Mol Epidemiol Genet. 2(4):328-38. Epub
20110ct20. ■

9. Slattery, M.L, Lundgreen A., Bondurant, K.L, Wolff, R.K. 2011. Interferon-signaling
pathway: associations with colon and rectal cancer risk and subsequent survival.
Carcinogenesis. Nov;32(11):1660-7

10. Bondurant, K.L., Harvey S.A., Klimberg, S., Kadlubar, S.A., Phillips, M.M. 2011.

Establishment of a Southern Breast Cancer Cohort. The Breast Journal. May-Jun
17{3):281-288. DOI: 10.1111/j.1524-4741.2011.01082.x

11. Bondurant, K.L, Crew, M.D., Santiri, A.D., O'Brien, T.J., Cannon, M.J. 2005. Definition of an

immunogenic region within the ovarian tumor antigen stratum corneum chymotryptic
enzyme. Clin. Cancer Res. 11(9):3446-3454.

12. KhanolkarSt, A., Fu, Z., Underwood, LJ., Bondurant, K.L, Rochford, R. and Cannon, MJ.

2003. CD4+ T cell-induced differentiation of EBV-transformed lymphoblastoid cells is
associated with diminished recognition by EBV-specific CD8+ cytotoxic T cells. J.
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Kristina Bondurant, PhD, MPH, CIC

Immunol. 170:3187-3194.

13. Cannon, M.J., O'Brien, T.J., Underwood, U., Crew, M.D., Bondurant, K.L, and'Santin, A.D.
2002. Novel target antigens for dendritic cell immunotherapy of ovarian cancer. Exp. Rev.
Anticancer Therapy 2:89-97.
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KENT THOMPSON, MPH
Manager, Data Sciences

Dedicated and accomplished professional In data collection, analysis, and surveillance, program

evaluation and survey design, with 13+ years' experience managing rhultiple projects. Offers expertise

on the full range of evaluation design and analysis. Experienced REDCap administrator> successfully

planning system design, and leading and managing system development, testing, and maintenance, and

training users.

EDUGATION

Master of Public Health, Emphasis in

Blostatistics

2014 University of Arkansas for Medical

Sciences

Little Rock, AR

Bachelor of Arts, Biology

2007 Hendrix College

Conway, AR

AFMChGURRENTJPROJEGTS

University of Arkansasiatlittie^Rdck

MldSpUTH Center for Prevention and

Training / FFY-2622;-,present
Manager, Data Sciences

Supervisor, Program Evaluation

AFMC created the Arkansas Substance

Abuse Prevention and treatment Block

Grant (SABG)/Block Grant Regional Monthly

Report that replaced the Web Infrastructure

for Treatment Services (WITS) System. This

program was created in AFMC's REDCap -

instance and then uploaded to UALR's

REDCap system.

Core Competencies

10 years program evaluation and survey experience

AFMC ArcGIS Administrator

AFMC REDCap Adminihrator

13 years REDCap system design, development, testing,
r

user.training, technical assistance ;

REDCap system quality assurance and quality control

Direct program evaluation operations

Collaborate with clients and sta*keholders to develop

projects and solutions

Data collection, analysis, and reporting

Survey and evaluation design

Create and maintain data dictionaries

Develop user guides and training materials

Develop Standard Operating Procedures (SOPs) for

usirig, managing, and updating REDCap systems

Project management

SAS Certified Specialist: Base Programming

AFMC Salesforce Administrator

New;Hampshlre Department of Health and Human Services

Manager, Data Sciences

Supervisor, Program Evaluation

AFMC's team created the New Hampshire Substance Abuse Prevention and Treatment Block Grant

(SABG) Report in REDCap that replaced their WITS system.
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Kent Thompson, MPH

Arkansas Department of Human Services, blvlsion of Adult, Aging, and Behavioral Health Services

(DHS-DAABHS) ^ 2018-present

Manager, Data Sciences

Supervisor, Program Evaluation

AFMC developed a data collection and management plan utilizing REDCap and the SPARS. Subgrantees

enter project-related data into the database, which provides browser-based methodology for designing

clinical and translational databases. AFMCs Analytical Services team monitors monthly and quarterly

reports in SPARS and REDCap to track progress on performance measures and objectives as well as

relevant clinical, administrative, and field activities for the projects.

Responsibilities; For each of the projects above, I performed the following duties as a Supervisor,

Program Evaluation:

•  Approve projects and project changes

•  Administer and rhonitor REDCap software and schedule future upgrades

• Work with the Information Technology department to ensure system integrity by evaluating,

implementing, and managing technical solutions

•  Provide ongoing technical support and end user education

New Hampshire Department of Health and.Human Services 2020-present,

Manager, Data Sciences

Lead Evaluator

AFMC developed evaluation protocol for the prevention, treatment, and recovery programs in the state.

Project includes staff and client interviews and data collection analysis. Created virtual data collection

instruments for state and federal reporting purposes, geospatial data dashboards, and intensive

evaluations of the prevention, treatment, and recovery programs. AFMCs team created the New

Hampshire Substance Abuse Block Grant Report in REDCap that replaced their WITS system.

Arkansas Department of Human Services, Division of Adult, Aging, and Behavioral Health Services
(DHS-DAABHS) 2018-present

Manager, Data Sciences

Lead Evaluator

AFMC developed a data collection and management plan utilizing REDCap and the SPARS. Subgrantees

enter project-related data into the database, which provides browser-based methodology for designing

clinical and translational databases. AFMCs Analytical Services team monitors monthly and quarterly

reports in SPARS and REDCap to track progress on performance measures and objectives as well as

relevant clinical, administrative, and field activities for the projects.

Responsibilities; For the two projects listed above, I performed the following duties as a Lead Evaluator:

•  Collect, analyze, interpret, and report data for the purposes of providing and informing

• substance misuse policies, programs, and practices

•  Design evaluation protocol

•  Assist in data collection, analysis, and reporting
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Kent Thompson, MPH

!

•  Manage staff and activities

AFMGiPAST^PROJEGTS

Arkansas Department of Human Services, Division of Adult, Aging; and Behavioral Health Sciences

(DHS-DAABHS) . _ 2016-2022

Department of Justice, Category 6 Grant: Data Collection Through Collaboration: Building a
Comprehensive Dashboard and Archival Risk Factors 2018 - 2022

Program Manager

Data-sharing initiative that included receiving and compiling an opioid database from the AR
Department of Health Prescription Monitoring Program, the State Crime Laboratory, AR Coroner's
Association, and the Arkansas Hospital Association. AFMC developed an online dashboard that protects
patient confidentiality that is available to the public and stakeholders. The data helps support in-depth

research and identifies spikes in drug crimes, areas of special need, and resource gaps.

State Targeted Response to the Opiold Crisis (STR) Grant 2018 - 2021

Lead Evaluator

AFMC evaluated outcomes of education, training programs, naloxone distribution and assessed

availability of treatment/prevention resources across the state, primarily Medication-Assisted

Treatment (MAT) with buprenorphine. AFMC's statistical efforts informed need for additional measures

and evaluated high-needs communities by assessing program implementation & progress toward goals.

Prescription Drug/Opiold-Related Deaths (PDO) Grant 2016 - 2021

Lead Evaluator^
AFMC evaluated outcomes of education', training programs, and naloxone distribution and assessed

availability of treatment/prevention resources across the state, primarily Medication-Assisted
Treatment (MAT) with buprenorphine. AFMC's statistical efforts informed the need for additional

measures and served to evaluate high-needs communities by assessing program implementation and

progress toward goals.

State Epidemlologlcal Outcomes Workgroup (SEOW) 2017 - 2020
Lead Evaluator

AFMC provided policy-relevant analysis to state and community leaders by comprehensively assessing
the health and societal factors that.contrlbute to substance abuse.

Partnership for Success (PFS) Grant 2017-2020

Lead Evaluator

AFMC's evaluation team members provided a state-level evaluation plan, submitted community-level
outcomes data, and provided technical assistance for both contracting agencies and 31 community-level

sub-recipients of PFS funding located throughout Arkansas. AFMC reported evaluation findings to the
State, funded subrecipients, and federal partners.

Responsibilities: For each of the projects above, I performed the following duties as a Lead Evaluator:
•  Provide statewide needs assessment

Assist in data collection, research, and planning
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•  Perform substance abuse primary evaluation activities

•  Oversee internal and federal reporting programs

Alabama Department of Mental Health 2018-2019

State Targeted Response to Opioid Crisis (STR) Grant

Lead Cvofuator

Designed to provide states vvith the support needed for reducing unmet treatment needs and reducing

opioid overdose-related deaths through the provision of prevention, treatment, and recovery activities

for opioid use disorder (DUD). AFMC evaluated these services.

Medication Assisted Treatment - Prescription Drug and Opioid Addiction (MAT-PDOA) Grant

Lead Evaluator

Designed to affect targeted capacity expansion in Jefferson and Walker counties which had experienced

significantly higher opioid overdose and subsequent death rates per population when compared to

other AJabama counties. Grant' objectives included increasing access to MAT for sufferers of opioid use

disorder, raising awareness of the opioid epidemic in the state, reducing the misuse of prescription

opioids, and making Naloxone available in these underserved areas.

EXPERIENCE

Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care (AFMC), Little Rock, AR 2015- present

Manager, Data Sciences 2022 - present

Supervisor, Program Evaluation 2017 - 2022

•  Manage and direct Analytic and Program Evaluation staff to conduct activities for multiple

contracts

o  Needs Assessments

■  Annual Opioid Needs Assessment to determine which Arkansas counties are at

highest risk for opioid overdose and need intervention

o  Evaluation Plans, evaluations, data-driven instruction, and analysis

o  Data Dashboards
I

■  Ex. Arkansas Opioid Response Dashboard
/

o  Surveys

o Treatment and Recovery Center Site Visits, both in person and virtual

o  Interviews

o  Focus Groups

■  Arkansas Works Medicaid Expansion

■  Arkansas Prevention Tools

•  Collaborate with clients and stakeholders to design projects and solutions

•  Design, develop, test, perform walkthroughs, and develop reports for external REDCap systems

Statistician II 2015 ̂  2017

•  Implemented and managed local (AFMC) install of REDCap electronic data capture system;

included creation and distribution of numerous electronic surveys as well as utilized the double-

data entry.feature to allow data entry staff to enter paper data accurately and efficiently
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Data analysis with multiple projects associated with Arkansas's Medicaid program and the State

Epidemiological Outcomes Workgroup (SEOW)

s Created yearly report/informational tools for the SEOW

. Technical assistance for subrecipients of the PFS grant
Salesforce administrations specifically with Patient-Centered Medical Home - Quality Assurance
program

University of Arkansas for Medical Sciences, Little Rock, AR

Childhood Obesity Prevention Research Program - Arkansas Children's Hospital

Administrative Specialist 2011-2015
•  Conducted statistical analysis, Including agreement analysis and logistic analysis

•  Data management

•  Created and implemented a mobile REDCap system '
•  Created physical and electronic data collection instrument

•  Collected data on numerous populations including middle school students, parolees, medical

students, etc. . ^ .

•  Trained and supervised masters-level dietetic and public health interns

•  Graphical design including the creation of newsletters, scientific posters, and various other
publicity materials

• Website design and management .

SELECTED^ADDITIONAmTEGHiMICAL'EXPERIENCE

Lead Evaluator

Analyzing Health Disparities in Arkansas January-August 2014
Conducted a Bayesian analysis of the 10-year disparity in life expectancy between counties in northwest
and southeast Arkansas

CONFERENCES

REDCapCon 2015-2017,2020-2022

Provides REDCap administrators, technical team members, and end users who maintain and support
REDCap at their own institutions and who provide global support of REDCap through consortium efforts
to connect, increase their knowledge base, and learn about upcoming features of the REDCap platform.

Harvard Catalyst, Boston, Massachusetts 2022

Online/Virtual via Zoom 2021

Online/Virtual via Zoom 2020

Weil! Cornell Medicine, New York City, New York 2017

Duke University, Durham, North Carolina 2016

Oregon Clinical and Translational Research Institute, Portland, Oregon ' 2015
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Sydney S. Lewis
Curriculum Vitac

Home Address/Phone

_  <£-mail:

EDUCATION

University of Arkansas for Medical Sciences, Little Rock, Arkansas
Concentration: Biostatistics

Master of Public Health

August 2017 - Present
Degree:
Attended:

Tentative

Graduation: May 2019

Lyon College, Batesville, Arkansas
Major: Psychology
Degree: Bachelor of Arts
Awarded: May 2016
Attended: January 2014 - May 2016

University of Arkansas Community College at Batesville, Batesville,
Arkansas

Major: General Education
Degree: Associate of Arts
Awarded: December 2013

Attended: August 2012 - December 2013

PRECEPTORSHIP

Aug. 2018-
Dec. 2018

Analytics Department Intern
Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care, Little Rock, Arkansas
Created a Needs Assessment based on Adverse Childhood

Experiences (ACEs) for counties in Arkansas. Worked extensively with
SAS. Iniproved skills in SAS, including: PROC SQL, PROC GMAP,
macros, left joins, and right joins.
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EXPERIENCE

Jan 2023

Current

Supervisor Data Sciences
Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care

Responsible for managing SuA'cy Research, data collection and reporting by
controlling internal utilization and external dissemination of the survey
research, managing related staff and coordinating with appropriate staff to
provide improved readability, timely analysis and reporting, benchmarking,
and trending of survey research data for research and quality improvement
within AFMC, and to optimize related services to all AFMC clients. Support
the organization's mission, vision, and values by exhibiting the following
behaviors: Honesty, Excellence Accountability, Respect and Teamwork.

Aug 2021- Healthcare Data Scientist 11
Jan 2023 Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care

Feb2019- Statistician

Aug 2021 Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care

October 2018- Principle Investigator
Feb 2019 Integrated Learning Experience, UAMS

ILE title: ''A Preliminary Analysis of Potential Indicators of the Opioid
Epidemic in Arkansas." The purpose of this analysis is to identify possible
indicators of opioid-related over dose deaths throughout the 75 counties in
Arkansas. Statistics will be analyzed using SAS and R. Research will be
collected and analyzed over two semesters. Research will then be presented
during Student Research Day at UAMS.

Aug. 2015- Researcher
May 2016 Senior Thesis, Department of Psychology, Lyon College

Senior thesis title: "Perceptions of Yourself and Others: The Relationship
between Emotional Intelligence and Gender." The purpose of this study was
to determine if there was a relationship between emotional intelligence and
different aspects of gender: masculinity, femininity, and androgyny.
Participants were asked to predict the emotions of a series of facial
expressions after being primed to think in a masculine way, feminine way, or
androgynous way. Research was conducted and data was analyzed
independently over the course of two semesters. Statistics were analyzed
using SPSS. Research was subsequently presented to an audience of
approximately 100 peers and colleagues.

Aug. 2015- Researcher
Dec. 2015 Intermediate Research Methods, Department of Psychology,

Lyon College
Research included: examination of the relationship between emotional
intelligence in student athletes versus emotional intelligence in college
students. Statistics were analyzed using SPSS. Research was conducted and
data was analyzed with a group of three other student researchers.
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Aug. 2014- Researcher
Dec. 2014 Psychology of Propaganda, Department of Psychology, Lyon

College
Research included; content analysis of the types of messages conveyed in a
variety of political propaganda commercials. Statistics were analyzed using
SPSS. Research was collected and data was analyzed with two other student
researchers.

AWARDS AND HONORS .

2016 Member of Psi Chi, the International Honor Society in Psychology
2014 Dean's List, Lyon College
2012-2013 Member of Phi Theta Kappa Honor Society
2012-2013 Dean's List, University of Arkansas Community College at Batesville

■  ■ • ACTIVITIES

Member, Circle K International, Lyon College & University of Arkansas Community
College at Batesville, August 2012 - May 2016

Volunteer, Big Brothers Big Sisters Organization, Batesville, AR, November 2012 -
May 2013

Volunteer, Arkansas Special Olympics, 2011 - Present

REFERENCES

Patrick Mulick, Ph.D., Vice President for Student Life and Dean of Students; Assistant
Professor

Department of Psychology
Lyon College
Batesville, AR 72501
(870) 307-4247

D. Keith Williams, PhD., Professor
Department of Biosiatistics
Universit)' of Arkansas for Medical Sciences
Little Rock, AR 72205
501-526-6721

Jennifer Daniels, Ph.D., Assistant Professor
Department of Psychology
Lyon College
Batesville, AR 72501
(870) 307-7497
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Diego Caraballo

Authorized to work In the US for any employer

Work Experience

Healthcare Data Scientist

AFMC - Little Rock. AR

September 2021 to Present

Currently working on maintaining and updating AFMC's dashboards on Methamphetamine Use and one
Peer Recovery Support in New Hampshire. Other projects include working with MidSOUTH on the
state's SYNAR project, and AFMCs yearly Arkansas Risk Factors report.

Demographic Researcher
University of Arkansas at Little Rock - Little Rock. AR

January 2019 to September 2021

Working as support for various projects as part of the Arkansas Economic Development Institute doing
data gathering and analysis. Independently created short blog posts discussing different aspects of
demographic trends, impacts, and Inequalities in Arltansas.

Auditor

RSM Puerto Rico - San Juan

March 2018 to May 2018 ^
Worked across Puerto Rico auditing various communications towers as a subcontract from Sprint and
Open Mobile (PR Wireless)

Independent Researcher

University of Texas at Austin - Austin. TX

August 2017 to May 2018

Provided consultation and data analysis for Erin Rodriguez on a project related to. predictors on childhood
asthma. ' , j

Independent Researcher

Kenyon College - Gambler. OH

June 2016 to May 2017

Provided consultation and data analysis for Irene Lopez on a project related to predictors on chlldhoo'd
panic attacks. . . -

Research Assistant

Puerto Rican Census Department - San Juan. PR

August 2016 to October 2016 -

Internship. Assisted in editing databases and creating map charts on QGIS to illustrate the prevalence
of various causes of death in Puerto Rico.

Research Assistant

Center for Behavioral Research • University of Puerto Medical Sciences campus - San Juan.-PR
October 2015 to^May 2016 ■>

Performed data analysis on" survey data for Rafael Ramirez, Ligia Chavez, and Irene Lopez.
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Research Assistant

Center for Socio-medical Research - University of Puerto Rico Medical Sciences campus - San Juan, PR

2013 to 2014 ,

Prepared data bases and documented descriptive analysis of variables utilizing SPPS and SAS.

Education
f  ' «

SAS Certified Specialist: Base

ProgratTimIng Using SAS 9.4

SAS Global Certification Prpgram

2023

Master's in Demographic Studies
University of Puerto Rico Medical Sciences Campus

2015 to 2018

Certificate in Sampiing Program for Survey Statisticians
University of Michigan

2017

Bacheliors in mathematics

University of Puerto Rico in Cayey - Cayey, Puerto Rico. Us
August 2009 to May 201 S .

Skills^

Research (4 years)

Data Analysis

Statistics

Blogging

SAS

R

SQL

Languages

• Spanish - Fluent

• English - Fluent

Publications

Seif-Reported heaith Status and Mortality Among Oider Adults in Puerto Rico
Between 2002 and 2006

Demography master's thesis. Utilized survey data to research various demographic, medical, and

economic predictors in relation to how elderly people in Puerto Rico viewed their health and their

mortality.

What Predicts an Ataque de Nervio? — Preliminary Results of a Longitudinal .
Study with Puerto Rican Children

Septembei'2016
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In coordination with other researchers, utilized survey data to study various predictors and their

relationship to childhood panic attacks.

Does the Predictive Power of Comparative Health Status for Subsequent
Mortality Vary by Comparison Frame Arhong Elder Puerto Ricans?
2016

Used data from the Puerto Rican Elderly Health study to explore how mortality was affected based on

how elderly people compared their health to others.
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HAKEEM YATIM

I at Dakota State University with a Master's degree in Analytics and exposure to R. Python. Julia, SAS,
PowerBI, and Tableau. I chose analytics because I enjoy identifying trends and figuring out things that numbers and data can tell you. I
am very critical of how I complete my work, appreciate punctuality and thoroughness. I am also highly adaptable as I have lived in
Indonesia, Dubai, Canada, and United States, and in 3 different states (California, Arkansas, South Dakota).

Work Experiences

Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care - Little Rock, AR, USA Jan 2025 • Present

Healthcare Data Scientist .

University of Central Arkansas College of Natural Scl & Math - Conway, AR, USA Nov 2023 - Jan 2025

Data Science Research Intern ' . ■

•  Aiding the conversion of the DART summer Fythcn workshop from Google Colab to Positron.

•  Developing virtual machine options for Data Science Projects.

•  Developing Teaching Materials.

•  Developing a Research project.using a variety of Python Data Science tools.

Dakota State University Baseball - Madison, SO, USA. Aug 2023 - May 2024

Graduate Assistant

•  Responsible for the outfield development, assisting with hitting development, serving as the head coach for developmental
team, and other various program operations.

• ' Led the Developmental Team with a winning record of 12-4 and had multiple players hitting at>ove .300.

■  Learned to lead better and honed my communication skills, while also learning how to collaborate with different coaches and
players.

•  Improved my problem-solving skills dealing with different tasks and resporisibilitles.

Ventura College Tutoring Center • Ventura, CA, USA Apr2016 - Dec 2018

Math Tutor " ' • _

•  Assigned as a drop-in and private tutor to help.students understand how to solve math problems, which extends to Calculus 2.'

•  Helped students in private tutoring Improve their grades from failing to C or higher.

•  Improved my skills ori understanding different clients with different needs using ciear communication.

•  Adapt to different methods and perspectives to make clients understand different concepts and problems.

Education Level - .

Dakota State University • Madison, SD, USA Aug 2022 - May 2024

Masters Degree in Analytics, 3.75/4.00

• 2023 All-Academic NSAA Conference Award

• 2023 NSAA Champions of Character Award Recipient for Baseball
• 2023 Dean's List •

Lyon College - Batesville, AR, USA Jan 2021 - May 2022

Bachelor Degree in Mathematics, 4.00/4.00

• Graduated with Summa Cum Laude

• 2022 All-Academic AMC Conference Award

• 2022 Lyon College Mathematical Book Award

• 2022 Lyon College John T and Diana March Dahlquist Scholar-Athlete Award Recipient

• 2022 Lyon College The Mathematical and Chemical Family Graduate School Scholarship
• 2021 All-Academic AMC Conference Award

Organizational Experience

College Baseball - United States Aug 2017 - May 2023

InTielder . .

• Played in the NCAA DI, NAIA, and Junior College Level.

• Won the AMC regular season and conference tournament with Lyon College on the 2022 Season.

• Also played for the Indonesian National Team for 2018 Asian Games in Jakarta, Indonesia and winning a Bror\ze medal 2019 SEA
Games in Clark, Philippines.

International Student Association - United States Jan 2021 - May 2022

Logistic Specialist
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•  In charge of finding needs for events, making sure we get the stuff that's needed for events, and executing the events.

• Held events in International Education Week like Cricket Night and tntemational Food Tasting. .

Projects

Validation of the Concept of Hip/Shoulder Separation Using Driveline Basebail Data Summer 2024

» Used Driveline Basebaii's OpenBioMechanics data to explore the concept of hip/shoulder separation in hitting.

• Utilized data visualization and data mining techniques to validate initial assumptions.
• Practiced my problem-solving skills by being able to identify a problem and attempt to solve it on my own.
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TONOKA SETTLES

CAREER OBJECTIVE

Experienced Bankruptcy Paralegal with over 15 years customer service, legal and administrative experience, seeking a full-
time position in a result driven organization.

SUMMARY OF.QUALIFICATIONS

•Strong accounting skills; accounts payable, accounts receivable, general ledger, inventory control
•Enthusiastic and determined individual with ability to build long-lasting relationships, and ensure high levels of customer
satisfaction '

•Excellent written, oral, and presentation skills

•Strong planning, organizational, and multi-tasking skills
•Outstanding interpersonal skills

•Extensive customer service experience
•Self-motivated, entrepreneurial initiative, strong work ethic and passion for success
•Exceptional Computer Skills: LPS, CPl, FX, Truslee.Network 13 Website, PACER, Aacer Best Case, Top Form,
QuickBooks, Microsoft Office XP, Windows Vista and (Word, PowerPoint,"Excel, Outlook)

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

Arkansas Foundation of Medical Care, Little Rock, AR February 2017- Present ^
Senior. Data Specialist (2024), Specialist Healthcare Evaluation (2021), Admin Support 11 (2017)

Assist in coordinating team schedules provide excellence in customer service,-providc administrative support, support
project management, assist in coordination of employee relations activities, coordinate and organize team internal and
external business meetings, communicate effectively with all internal and external customers, coordinate exhibit
opportunities and attend exhibitions, maintain inventory of prevention tools and maintain the database of prevention tool
requests from the prevention website. Communicate with community stakeholders and assist with questipns pertaining to
prevention tools and books.

Wilson and Associates,.LLC, Little Rock, AR Feb 2006-March 2007 & August 2012 -May 2016
CSA lI-.Legal Assistant
Promoted to Legal Assistant December 2015 Responsible for accurately and timely preparing and processing all chapter 7
and chapter 13 proofs of claim and chapter 7 motions for relief for multiple clients. Responsible for trustee follow up
reporting and reconciling as well as figure reviews for counsel. Responsible for using best practices for increased
productivity and meeting increased business volume with high demand clients. Excellent with lime and case management,
ensuring the meeting of deadlines and needed documentation requested and attained in order to meet said deadlines.
Ensured reporting for daily, weekly and monthly tasks completed accurately and quickly and that any areas with
challenges were addressed and resolved. ^

Madden Law Firm, Little Rock, AR March 2008 - August 2012
Office Manager
Managed a Bankruptcy Firm in Little Rock, AR and overseen the day-to-day operations of our four satellite offices in Hot
Springs, Conway, Pine Bluff, and West Memphis, AR.
Managed office of eight (8) support staff members and threes (3) attorneys.
1 served as the Attorney-Client Liaison. I handled client complaints within the offices and ensured that client intakes
complied with the Bankruptcy Rules for Policy and Procedures. Responsible for all E-filing with the United States
Bankruptcy Court. As office manager, 1 attended Creditor/Debtor Bar meetings each month to report to Counsel.
Coordinated attorneys' schedules to meet the demand of client appointments. 1 also traveled to various satellite offices to
meet with potential clients.

While serving as the manager, 1 implemented a time keeping system, established, and structured HR policies.
Implemented the petty cash system Responsible for accounts payable and receivables. Maintain our inventory of supplies
and ensured the latest updates on all software and warranties. Met with various vendors to negotiate contracts and leases.

Page J of 2
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Wesley Chapel United Methodist Church, Little Rock, AR April 2008-May 2010
Church Administrative Assistant

Assisted the Pastor and Associate Pastore with administrative duties and weekly liturgy. Assisted in Research. Maintain the
membership database. Prepared a weekly bulletin. Overseen special propams and projects. Attended workshops for continual
education according to the Book of Discipline. Coordinated luncheons and meetings. Assisted in Chapel on Wednesday for the
Students at Philander Smith College. Maintain updates on software and warranties for the Wesley Chapel.

Crawley & Deloche, PA, Little Rock, AR March 2007- February 2008
Paralegal/Office Manager

. Responsible for the day-to-day operations of the office. Schedule appointments for the Attorney. Ser\'ed as liaison for Attorney
to client. Responsible for client intakes and ensure the e-filing of clients' bankruptcy petitions. Tracking of creditor meetings
and Bankruptcy Court hearings. Responsible for the court dockets to ensure settlements. Responsible for accounts receivables.
Ensure payment of filing fees in a timely manner and in full.
Scheduling appointments. Maintain the petty cash box. Maintain/tracking of IOLTA Account.

Dickerson Law Firm, P.A., Little Rock, AR April 2001-December 2005
Administrative Assistant/Paralegal

Worked the scheduling desk where appointments for the attorneys are scheduled. Coordinated with the attomey their calendars
daily to ensure of proper staffing within each office. Scheduled return appointments for clients with the Paralegals.
Responsible monthly statistics each month. Responsible for petty cash in the office. Assisting Paralegals for data entry of
clients' information and pulling clients credit reports. Answer multi-line phones. Assisted our Director of Administration with
employee benefits. Traveling to satellite offices for audits and to assist attorneys.

EDUCATION ,

Associates of Arts Degree in Business Management
Pulaski Tech, AR Expected December 2022

Honors Degree

Mountain Pine High School, Mtn. Pine, AR May 1992 '

CERTIFICATIONS AND LICENSES

United Stales Federal Bankruptcy Court

Certification of Federal Bankruptcy E-Filing May 2003

State of Arkansas November 2015

Ordained Minister Credentials

Arkansas Prevention & Certification Board Pending for December 2022
Prevention Specialist

\

MEMBERSHIPS/COMMUNITY SERVICE/ACTIVITIES > • . .

•Member of the APHA- American Public Health Association

•Member of the ArPHA-Arkansas Public Health Association

•Member of the APNct-Arkansas Prevention Network . * •
•Member for the ACE's Coalition- Aricansas

v..

Page 2 of 2
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Linda Miller Newell

LMN

Skills

My position requires oversight, management, coordination, development and interpretation of all
survey research; establishing procedures to use survey research more effectively upon production of
reports and for encrypting identifiers within the reports to communicate with Medicaid and other
stakeholders to ensure required privacy, review project performance, implement changes as needed to
improve and effectively document services ensuring accuracy, consistency, and quality. My skills
include statistical analysis using SAS and SQL I am able to data mine with large data sets to provide
descriptive statistics, one- and two-sample tests, ANOVA, correlation, lineai' and multiple regression,
analysis of categorical data and logistic regression. I also have experience with REDCap, Microsoft
Office, Sage, Quicken and QuickBooks.

Certifications

SAS Certified Base Programmer

SAS Certified Advianced Programmer Performance -Based Delta

Aug 2015

Dec 2021

Education

Graduate Certificate in Applied Statistics, 4.0 GPA May 2015

University of Arkansas, Little Rock, Aikansas

Bachelor of Science Degree in Mathematics, Minor in Statistics, 3.8 GPA May 2013

University of Arkansas, Little Rock, Arkansas

Damerow Endowed Mathematics and Statistics Scholarship Recipient 2011-2012

Dean's List, Chancellor's List, UALR 2011-2012

National Park Community College 2008-2010

Hot Springs, Arkansas

President's Award, NPCC 2008,2010

Experience

Manager, Data Sciences

AFMC- Krishna Bondurant, PhD

May 2022-Present

Responsibilities: Oversight, management, and development of survey research requirements.
Monitor and report on data project management, establish and maintain internal quality control
procedures for data collection, summarize report results for clients. Effectively meet, manage, and
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communicate with team staff and ensure the quality and .accuracy of employees' work product while
monitoring timelines for deliverables. Communicate with AFMC management, stakeholders, and
clients to ensure deliverables and obtain approvals.

Supervisor, Survey Research Sep 2017-AprU 2022

AFMC- Kristina Bondurant, PhD
Responsibilities: Managing survey research, data collection and reporting by controlling

internal utilization and external dissemination of the survey, managing related staff and coordinating
with appropriate staff to provide improved readability, timely analysis and reporting, benchmarking,
and trending of survey research data for research and quality improvement within AFMC, and to
Optimize related services to all AFMC clients. Re\dew project performance, implement changes as
needed to improve and effectively document services, simplify workflow and assure compliance with
contract requirements and continuous quality improvement and quality assurance protocols.

Statistician I June 2015-Sep 2017.
AFMC- Gina Bedford

Responsibilities: Provide statistical support for the development of measurement/re-
measurement techniques, data analysis and reporting of quality improvement projects, surveys and
HEDIS needs. Assist in the coordination of data activities for specific projects and assure compliance
with established protocols and contractual requirements. Interpret, summarize and document results
from statistical analyses. -

Database Analyst Oct 2014-May 2015
Oaklawn Jockey Club, Information Technology- Chad Smith

Responsibilities: Translate business questions into defined analytics. Provide and present
data reporting, results, and analysis through SQL and Access query methods. Create automated daily
reports through Microsoft SQL Sei'ver Report Builder for senior management.

Payroll Manager 1992-2015
Ronald Scott Exum, M.D.

• Responsibilities: I prepared A/R monthly >$100,000.00, A/P, Pa)T:oll, Annual payroll >
$1,200,000.00, tax payments. I negotiated physician salaries on the part of physician. I facilitated
the credentialing of physicians to gain privileges at hospitals. I scheduled emergency room physician
coverage per federal guidelines for three hospitals.
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Shalini Manjanatha

EDUCATION ,

1990 Bachelor of Science, Major in Statistics, trained in computer-based methods and techniques for

statistics collection and analysis,

Iowa State University, Ames, Iowa

WORK EXPERIENCE

Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care Dec. 2022 - Present

Supervisor, Data Sciences Survey Research

Senior Healthcare Data Scientist Sept. 2021 - Dec. 2022

•  Provide statistical support, data analysis and reporting of quality improvement projects, surveys and

HEDIS needs.

•  Assist in the coordination of data activities for specific projects.

•  Produce graphs, charts, and other visual representations of data.

•  Oversee work of junior staff; validate, others'work as needed.

Statistician Sept. 2019 - Sept 2021

•  Provided data analysis and reporting of quality improvement projects, surveys & HEDIS needs.

•  Downloaded data from large databases and generate SAS code to edit data for accuracy and
completeness.

•  Manipulated data and conducted data analysis using SAS.

•  Interpreted, summarized, and documented results from analyses.

•  Assisted in data verification and verification of results as required.

•  Updated project methodologies as needed to accomplish projectgoals and objectives.

Center for Health Statistics

Arkansas Department of Health, Little Rock, AR ( Jun. 2007 - Aug. 2019

Software Support Analyst

•  Generated SAS edit programs for data cleaning & verification.

•  Used SAS to link different data files, and generated reports in different formats like HTML, RTF, PDF,
and Excel using SAS ODS.

•  Used SAS Macros to do common tasks like linking data fijes. Dynamic Data Exchange (DDE) to send
data to Excel, Word or to read in data from Excel to SAS system.

•  Assisted colleagues with SAS programs for different projects like Youth Risk Behavior Survey
(YRBS), and Behavior Risk Factor Surveillance System (BRFSS) as and when needed.

•  Used various SAS Procedures like Proc Freq, Proc Pririt, Proc Genmod, Proc Report, Proc Summary,
Proc Means, and Proc Logistic & Proc Tabulate to analyze data and generate reports.

• Worked on data requests from inside and outside the agency and provided reports in a timely
manner. ' ,

Medical Economist Aug. 2000 ̂  May 2007

•  Developed SAS Programs for data cleaning, validation, analysis, and report generation.

•  Developed survey edits criteria and implemented (hem .with SAS edit programs, conducted statistical
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analyses of surveys to identify areas of interest, developed and produced reports to convey survey
results to communities, and coordinated the collection of data from the Counties.

•  Used SAS to import/export data to external file formats like Excel and flat files and modify datasets
using Set, Merge, Sort and Update Formats & Functions.

•  Wrote SAS macros to create tables, graphs and listings and generated graphs & charts using SAS
procedures like Proc Gplot and Proc Gchart.

•  Worked on different projects like Youth Risk Behavior Survey (YRBS), Behavior Risk Factor
Surveillance System (BRFSS), and Pregnancy Risk Assessment Monitoring System (PRAMS).

Health Program Analyst May 2000 - Jul. 2000

•  Developed SAS Programs for data cleaning, validation, analysis, and report generation. Developed
survey edits criteria and implemented them with SAS edit programs.

• Worked on County level Youth Risk Behavior Survey (YRBS) and Behavior Risk Factor Surveillance
System (BRFSS).

Arkansas Children's Hospital, Little Rock, AR Jul. 1995- Nov. 1995

Department of Pediatrics/CARE

Data Analyst

•  Converted excel and text data files to SAS datasets, cleaned and prepared datasets for analysis.

t  Assisted faculties with analysis of data using SAS created and explored new methods and programs
for designs and analyses of statistical data.

Department of Psychiatry, UAMS, Little Rock, AR Feb. 1993 -Jun. 1995

Statistical Programmer/Analyst

•  Provided statistical computer programming support to assigned faculty, instructed, and advised
research staff, performed research and data analysis on schizophrenia data and provided requested
data in a timely manner.

Arkansas Children's Hospital, UAMS, Little Rock, AR

Child Study Center Aug. 1992 - Jan. 1993

Data Manager/Research Assistant

•  Organized, and entered data using dBase, performed statistical analysis using SAS for researchers
for presenting posters, papers, or articles and published results in peer reviewed journals, assisted
staff members with hardware and software problems. Helped work study students with data collection
and organization. /

National Center for Toxicological Research, Jefferson, AR Jun. 1992 - Jul. 1992

Mathematical Statistician

•  Assisted Scientists at NCTR with analysis, inference, and documentation of statistical data, wrote
SAS programs for analyses of research data.

COMPUTER SKILLS

Experience in SAS, MS Excel, MS Access. Windows 10, MS Word. Outlook, and PowerPoint

PUBLICATIONS

Wherry, J.N., Jolly, J.B., Feldman, J., Adam, B., and Manjanatha S. (1994), The child dissociative checklist:

preliminary findings of a screening measure. Journal of Child Sexual Abuse, Vol. 3(3), 51-66.

Wherry, J.N., Jolly, J.B., f^eldman, J., Adam, B., and Manjanatha S. (1995) Child sexual behavior inventory

scores for inpatient Psychiatric boys: An exploratory study. Journal of Child Sexual Abuse, Vol. 4(3)
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MAYUMI TAKADA
Senior Healthcare Data Scientist

EDUCATION

Licensure, Practical Nurse

2010-2012 University of Arkansas - Pulaski

Technical College

North Little Rock, AR

Bachelor of Science, Computer & Information

Science

1991 -1993 Arkansas Tech University

Russellville, AR '

Core Competencies

29 years of analytics and statistician

experience ■ , .

Certified Base and Advanced programmer for

SAS 9 "

' Data mining experience

Associate of Applied Science, Computing & Information Systems

1987 -1990 Westark Community College

Fort Smith, AR

EXPERIENCE

Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care, LlttleiRock; AR 1994 - present

Senior Healthcare Data Scientist, Statistician Team Lead, Senior Statistician, Statistician I, Data Analyst

•  Provide statistical support for the development of measurement/re-measurement

techniques, data analysis, and reporting of quality improvement projects and surveys

•  Use analytic modeling skills to build coefficients in support of initiatives at AFMC

•  Assist in the coordination of data activities for specific projects and assure compliance with

established protocols and contractual requirements

•' Assume a project/team leader role on assigned projects/processes

CERTIFICATIONS

SAS Certified Advanced Programmer for SAS 9

SAS Certified Base Programmer for SAS 9

September 2014

June 2013

Administrative Healthcare Data and

SAS: Hands-On programming

Workshop (Aug. 2016)

Data Cleaning Techniques (Live Web

Class) at SAS institute. (June 2015)

How to Become A Top SAS

Programmer at SAS Global Forum 2016

(April 2016)

Advanced SAS Programmer

Certification (e-Learning) (2014)

Base SAS Programmer Certification (e-

Learning) (2013)

Intermediate/Advanced CDS at SESUG

Conference, SC. (Nov. 2007)

S^ Macros, ODS Tip for SAS

Programming at SCSUG Conference,

Little Rock

Probability and Statistics, Visual.

Basic(VB.NET) at University of Arkansas

(Fort Smith)

MS Access classes at Westark

Community College.

SAS Programming, SAS Advanced

Programming, SAS Graph, Basic

Page 1 of 2
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Mayumi Takada

PROC SQL Programming; The Basics

and Beyond and Building Reusable

Macro Tools with the SAS Macro

Language at SCSUG Conference, TX

(Oct. 2008)

Statistics Using SAS Software at SAS

Institute.

PRESENTATIONS

Presented 'Reading Multiple XML Files into One SAS Data' at SCSUG Conference, TX. October 2008

Page 2 of 2
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Sharika Minor

Summary

•  I am a motivated graduate student on track to receive a Masters in Statistics. Having passion for probJem
solving and experience with a range of statistical problem-solving techniques. Also, exposure to using
various programming technologies, such as R. SAS, and Excel.

Education

B.S. MATHEMATICS | MAY 2020 | ARKANSAS STATE UNIVERSITY

•  Major: Mathematics

•  Minor: Statistics

•  Related coursework: Applied Statistics I and II. Concepts of Programming. Structured Programing,
Calculus I. II, and III, Differential Equations, Linear Algebra, Probability and Statistics I and II, Advanced
Calculus 1 and 11, Fundamentals of Accounting.

M.S. STATISTICS | EXP. AUGUST 2022 | ARKANSAS STATE UNIVERSITY

•  Major: Statistics

•  Related coursework: Data Analysis 1 and II. Statistical Methods Using R. Biostatistics, Design of
Experiments, Statistical Analysis I. Currently enrolled in.Statistical Analysis II, Multivariate Analysis, and
Statistical Methods Using SAS.

Skills & Abilities

STATISTICS ^

•  Understanding of varying statistical procedures and concepts including probability modelling, multiple
linear regression, logistic regression, and ANOVA.

TECHNOLOGIES ,

•  Python: With only 1 year of exposure, I am familiar with various syntax rules and definitions. I have
knowledge regarding functions, calls/definitions, loops, variables, and lists. (Beginner)

•  C++: I havelyearofexperience. but have a clear understanding of functions, loops, structures, variables.
(Beginner)

•  SQL: Less than lyearof experience, currently using self-paced courses through Codecademy. (Beginner)

•  R Statistical Programming; I have approximately 3 years of experience using R and R Studio. Using this
program for many courses and projects. I have a decent understanding of the process. (Intermediate)

•  SAS Programming; 1 have about 2 years of experience utilizing SAS. This is the required software for Data
Analysis 1 and II. I have used this in an internship and am currently in a course focused on the software. I
have used the "proc" procedure, import, gplbt, gim, transreg, as well as others. (Intermediate)

•  Excel: I have roughly 7 years of experience with Microsoft Excel, beginning in middle school. I have
gained most of the skill over the past 3 years and can solve various problems using the application.
(Intermediate-Expert) \
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COMMUNICATION

•  During my actuarial internship, I effectively presented my summer project to the executives, other
employees, and peers.

LEADERSHIP

•  Asa tutor on campus, I often lead group tutoring sessions for different classes.

•  I am frequently asked by professors to reach out to students regarding grades, classwork, and possible
assistance.

Experience

HEALTHCARE DATA SCIENTIST | ARKANSAS FOUNDATION FOR MEDICAL CARE | AUGUST 2022 -
PRESENT

•  Provide statistical support for the development of measurement'/re-measurement techniques, data
analysis and reporting of quality improvement projects, surveys and HEDIS needs. Assist in the
coordination of data activities for specific projects and assure compliance with established protocols

•  and contractual requirements. Works under the general supervision of Supervisor or Manager. Support
the organization's mission, vision, and values by exhibiting the following behaviors; Honesty,
Excellence Accountability, Respect and Teamwork.

ACTUARIAL INTERN | ARKANSAS BLUE CROSS BLUE SHIELD | JUNE - AUGUST 2021

• Worked alongside a lead actuary learning the role of an actuarial analyst. Helped create updated non-
ACA small group health insurance plans. Gained more experience using SAS and Excel. Communicated
internship experience and project with company executives.

GRADUATE ASSISTANT | ARKANSAS STATE UNIVERSITY | AUGUST 2020 - PRESENT

•  Assisted a professor with utilizing Holmes Procedure in the program R. Actively tutoring for the
department for various math and statistics courses. Support other professors with student outreach and
coursework.



Docusign Envelope ID: 0F7E5149-7E8A-4FDF-BCC6-C3692D27DD5C

VAjBHAVI PATEL, MPH

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care (AFMC), Little Rock, AR

Healthcare Data Scientist

November 2024 — Present

Arkansas Department of Health (ADH), Little Rock, AR
Outbreak Response Coordinator Epidemiologist

May 2022 - November 2024
•  Provide statistical support and data analysts for quality improvement projects, including

-  healthcare-associated infections and antibiotic-resistant infections.

Develop and implement protocols and processes for standardized outbreak responses.

Conduct trend analysis and data collection from large datasets using SAS and R; interpret and
document results.

Develop projects on Research Electronic Data Capture (REDCap) to collect data and creating

analysis plans to meet project goals.

Prepare and deliver presentations at local and national conferences; support internal and
external communication.

Provide regular written and oral updates on epidemiologic findings to agency leadership
and external partners.

Actively participate in the All-Payers Claims Database (APOD) workgroup; access and analyze the.
APCD database to identify hospitalization and mortality rates due to specific conditions, such as

drug overdose.

Develop real-time dashboards using R and Power Bl for enhanced outbreak investigations.

American Association of Physicians of Indian Origin (AAPI), Arkansas Chapter, Little Rock, AR
Administrative Director ^
April 2022 - Present

•  Coordinate events and manage membership data, enhancing customer service and

organizational communication.

•  Oversee charity and scholarship committees, managing donations and liaising with schools.

•  Develop comprehensive meeting agendas and activity summaries in compliance with bylaws and
regulations.

Arkansas Department of Health, Little Rock, AR

Infection prevention Epidemiologist

April 2021 - May 2022

•  Conducted epidemiological data analysis to uncover infectious disease outbreaks.

•  Improved data tracking and outbreak response through collaboration with stakeholders.
•  Created data visualizations using Excel and Power Bl for webinars on COVID-19.

CDC Foundation/Arkansas Department of Health, Little Rock, AR
COVID-19 Epidemiologist

October 2020 - April 2021

•  Analyzed and cleaned COVID-19 data, developed guidance documents and presentations on •
outbreak trends.

•  Managed data quality and statistical analysis to optimize response protocols.
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Arkansas Department of Health, Little Rock, AR

Health Program Specialist I-Testing Quality Coordinator (

March 2019 - October 2020

•  Coordinated testing quality for Human Immunodeficiency Virus, Hepatitis C Virus, and other

Sexually Transmitted Infections; managed data entry, verification, and quality metrics.

•  Facilitated community outreach and education on STIs, improving data collection and reporting.

EDUCATION

•  University of Southern Mississippi, Hattiesburg, MS

Master of Public Healthj 2018

•  Mississippi State University, Starkvilfe, MS

Bachelor of Science in Microbiology, 2016

PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

•  Relevant Courses: SAS Programming, SAS Base Programming Certification, Data Science, Applied
Epidemiology using R, Project Management

•  Certifications: Infection Prevention and Control - CDC, Voluntary HIV Testing and Counseling -

ADH

TECHNICAL SKILLS

Statistical Analysis System (SAS)

R

Microsoft Excel

Power Bl

Research Electronic Data Capture (REDCap)

National Healthcare Safety Network (NHSN)

Business Objects

Evaluation Web

SOFT SKILLS

Project Management

Team Building

Adaptability

Critical Thinking

Problem Solving

Time Management

LANGUAGE SKILLS

English (Advanced speaking, reading, writing)

Gujarat! (Advanced speaking, reac(ing, writing)

Hindi (Advanced speaking, reading, writing)
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Looking for opportunities_for
professional growth.

SKILLS

Competitive
Proactive

Empathetic
Trustworthy
Good listener

CONTACT

HOBBIES

Music

Running
Travel

/^FE^ANDO
MURILLO

ORDONEZ

EDUCATION

Unlversldad Lasalle

2003 - 2007

Marketing Degree

WORK EXPERIENCE

Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care (AFMC)
Arkansas. USA (Sept 2021 - present)
•Bilingual Data Specialist Team Lead (June 2024 - present)
•Bilingual Specialist Healthcare Evaluation (Nov. 2022 - June 2024)
•Bilingual Community Health Worker (May 2022 - Nov 2022)
•Bilingual COVID Specialist (Feb 2022 - May 2022)
•Bilingual Contact Tracer Release team (Sept 2021 - Feb 2022)

Office Recruiters, working for AFMC.
Arkansas, USA (Aug 2020 - Sept 2021)
•Covid 19 contact tracer and special projects.
•Covid 19 Vaccination line agent.

Royal Resorts Exit Program
Cancun, Quintana Roo, Mexico

2014-2019

•Exit Closer

Sale of all-inclusive vacation packages focused on generating
potential customers for the future. Spoke in English and Spanish. Top
salesmen 2017.

Exim Food Service

Cancun, Quintana Roo, Mexico

2013-2014

•Outside Sales Agent

Responsible for selling products to the Hotels and Restaurants in
Cancun. Working with chefs and purchasing department.

Royal Resorts Exit Program
Cancun, Quintana Roo, Mexico
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'2009-2012

*Exit Closer

Sale of vacofion packages focused on generating potenfial customers
for thie future. Most of our clients were from ttie United States.
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JOHN R. WILLIAMS

I am seeking a position where I can daily demonstrate my superior people skills while surpassing
company goals and deadlines in an efficient time and manner. Morals and ethics play a very vital role in
regards to my work habits.

EXPERIENCE

JULY 2024-CURRENT

ARKANSAS FOUNDATION FOR MEDICAL CARE (AFMC)
Data Specialist

JANUARY 2021- JULY 2024 CURRENT

TWO SISTERS FAMILY MEDICAL

I HAVE BEEN A PART OF THIS COMPANY SINCE DAY 1 IN SOME TYPE CAPACITY BUT IN JANUARY 20211

WENT TO WORK AS A REFERRAL SPECIALIST. I DID ALL REFERRALS FOR BOTH OF OUR MEDICAL CLINICS

SETTING PATIENTS UP FOR SPECIALIST PROCEDURES SUCH AS RADIOLOGY AS WELL AS MEDICAL

PROCEDURES. I WORK WITH ALL INSURANCE COMPANIES IN TRANSFERRING DATA FOR,PATIENTS TO -

THEIR INSURANCE COMPANIES FOR APPROVAL OF THEIR PROCEDURES.

I WORK WITH almost ALL MEDICAL ESTABLISHMENTS THROUGHOUT ARKANSAS AND WEST TENNESSEE

ON A DAILY BASIS. I AM WELL VERSED IN WORKING WITH DIFFERENT INSURANCE COMPANIES AS WELL AS

MEDICARE AND MEDICAID. DEALING WITH PROCEDURE CODES AND DIAGNOSIS CODES. I AM WELL VERSED

WITH HIPPA. IN JUNE 2022 I TOOK OVER AS OFFICE MANAGER FOR BOTH CLINICS AND BECAME THE

BILLING SPECIALIST. I AM IN CHARGE OF ALL ASPECTS OF BILLING FOR BOTH CLINICS. I AM ALSO

RESPONSIBLE FOR INSURANCE CREDENTIALING FOR OUR PROVIDERS. I WORK CLOSELY WITH ALL

INSURANCE COMPANIES.

JULY 2017- DECEMBER 2020

MID SOUTH MEDICAL EQUIPMENT

As a technician was responsible for delivering incontinent supplies to patients on several

different routes in northeast Arkansas. I was responsible for delivery and set up of medical

equipment including training the [Datlent in proper use. I participated in monthlyin service

' trainings concerning Medicaid and Medicare guidelines. I completed all forms upon delivery
explaining Medicare/Medicaid procedures in payment for equipment. I set up all medical

equipment for different hospice organizations including beds and O^set ups.

OCTOBER 2016 - JULY 2017

TWO SISTERS FAMILY MEDICAL

Data entry and building maintenance. ' .

January 2016 - October 2016

MID SOUTH PETROLEUM SALES ^
s.

While employed with MSS I worked in the West Memphis Arkansas warehouse where I was the
warehouse manager in charge of all aspects of the warehouse including inventory, pulling orders,

loading orders onto deliver trucks, unloading and stocking all incoming freight.

JANUARY 2015 - DECEMBER 2015
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WYNNE EXHAUST DISTRIBUTORS

I was the warehouse manager at the brooks road (Memphis) facility. I overseen all aspects of the

warehouse including unloading freight, stocking freight and pulling and loading orders for

deliveries.

OCTOBER 2014 - DECEMBER 2014

WILLIAMS CLEANING SERVICE

I was the owner/operator of a business cleaning service.

JULY 2002 - OCTOBER 2014 ■ ^

FORREST CITY GROCERY SUPPLY

For 3 years I supervised the full case warehouse . I overseen the warehouse supervising 13 to 20
employees. I daily inspected warehouse for cleanliness and trained employees in all aspects of

warehouse operations. As the receiving supervisor I scheduled all incoming deliveries. I spent

time after receiving hours marketing specific trucking companies to our vendors. The importance

of our product arriving on time was critical to our business and I researched statistics of truck

lines as well as pricing and marketed the best services to our vendors.

EDUCATION

MAY, 1983

WYNNE HIGH SCHOOL

I carried a 3.0 GPA throughout high school. I excelled in music and drama earning several all •

state awards.

AUGUST, 1983

ARKANSAS STATE UNIV./EAST ARKANSAS COMMUNITY COLLEGE

I majored in vocal music education for 1 year at Arkansas State and Business Management for 2

years at East Arkansas Community College.

SKILLS

• MS Office proficient

•  Customer service specialist

•  Excellent phone communication skills

•  Professional people skills

ACTIVITIES
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Sheryl Hurt, CPHIMS, PCMH CCE

EDUCATION

•  Bachelor of Science,

University of Arkansas,
1998

Little Rock, AR

LICENSURE AND

CERTIFICATIONS

•  Certified Professional in

Core Competencies and Experience

35 years' experience in the health care industry

13 years - Education and Training

12 years - Policy and Education

11 years - Leadership/Management

8 years - Program Coordination/Oversight

4 years - Inspection of Care - Quality Assurance oversight

Healthcare Information and Management Systems (CPHIMS), 2013

•  Patient-Centered Medical Home Certified Content Expert (PCMH CCE), 2016
i

PROFESSIONAL MEMBERSHIPS AND AFFILIATIONS !
•  AAPC - American Academy of Professional Coders "
•  MGM A - Medical Group Management Association

•  AR MGMA - Arkansas Medical Group Management Association ;
•  NCQA - National Committee for Quality Assurance

EXPERIENCE ;

Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care, Little Rock, AR (2010 - present) ^

Senior Director, Outreach Services (2024 - present)

I
Director, Outreach Services, Provider Policy, and Inspections of Care (2019 - 2024)
•  Manage and oversight of multiple contracts (8) under Provider Relations, Client relations

and Inspections. j
•  Collaborate with internal staff and external customers to develop, implement, and

manage contracts and deliverables including daily processes and efficiencies.
•  Responsible for multiple budgets to ensure funding is allocated appropriately.
•  State Capital representative for AFMC during sessions as requested. I
•  Implemented efficiencies for the ConnectCare service line working with internal Business

Intelligence for electronic submissions. :
•  Implementation of the Inspections of Care contract working with AFMC Project

Management Office. Providers inspected include ARChpices, Behavioral Health Agencies,
Independently Licensed Behavioral Health providers, Community Service Support
providers, Therapeutic Communities, Acute Crisis Units, Partial Hospitalization,
Residential Community Reintegration program. Alcohol and Other DrugjAbuse
Treatment Providers, Division of Youth Services (community based, secure and
grouphome) and Inpatient Psychiatric Services for the Under Age 21 (PRTF)..
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Shery) Hurt

Implementation of the MN BH clinical services contract reviewing Psychiatric Residential
Treatment Facilities for prior authorization.
Implementation of NH contract consisting of an Independent Peer Review of a
Substance Abuse Provider

Supports planning, development, and implementation of new state initiatives (PCMH,
EOC, ARHome) j
Operation implementation of new contracts including policies, procedures, and training
Subject matter content expert for proposal preparation ^
Reporting of deliverables and contractjequirements !
Prepare board report of all Provider Outreach and Inspection of Care contract activity for
AFMC Board Meetings |
Oversee annual AR Medicaid Conference for physicians, providers, hospitals, medical

staff, FQHCs and RHCs. Oversee annual DPSQA Medicaid Conference forj behavioral
health providers and waiver providers.

Manager, Outreach Services, Provider Relations (2015 to 2019) ■

Managed Provider Relations Representatives contract j
Responsible for annual budget i
Managed contract deliverables to ensure timely completion. ;
Prepared monthly and quarterly activity reports and board reports.
Attended state-wide and national conferences to enhance knowledge. ,
Implementation and update of policies and procedures for the contract |
Responsible for overseeing conferences and quarterly exhibits. 1
Responsible for and hosting of large Medicaid Conference held annually;
Maintained and built strong relationships with stakeholders. j
Available by phone or email to ensure provider and stakeholder issues were resolved in a
timely manner. ^
Implementation of ConnectCare service line for providers across the state
Educated and collected data from providers across Arkansas on social determinants of
health (SDOH) project with Arkansas Childrens Hospital

Provider Relations Representative and Health Information Technology (HIT) Specialist (2010 to
2015) ■ . ^

Educated providers and managed territory of Central and greater Arkansas.
Maintained feedback and professional relationship with providers. '
Helped develop educational material. i
Performed focus visits with providers and hospitals.
Team Lead for Episodes of Care project which eventually transitioned tO|PCMH.
SIMS project - assisting in recruitment of providers for CMS.

Arkansas Pediatric Clinic. Little Rock, AR (2007 to 2010)

Assistant Administrator/Billing Manager

Page [ 2
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Shery! Hurt

Verified all credentials were current and in good standing.
Recredentialed with insurance carriers

Implemented new EMR for billing and clinical. Was the SME for all areas!
Managed all aspects of daily operations for large staff.
Managed all collections including calls, billing, and management with collection agency.
Responsible for IT management }
Conduct meetings and trainings with staff. |
Attended partner meetings to provide feedback and resolve issues. j
Managed all patient complaints.
Deposited accounts receivable each day.
Responsible for billing and collection reporting to the partners

Reviewed and actioned outstanding accounts. •

North Pulaski Diagnostic Clinic, Sherwood. AR (2000 to 2007)

Billing/Account Manager
Verified all provider credentials were current and in good standing.
Recredentialed with insurance carriers

Managed collection-accounts
■ Responsible for checking out patients and collecting copays.
Responsible for accounts receivable and posting^ll payments.
Reviewed and actioned outstanding accounts. ' i
Responsible for manually printing, stamping, and mailing patient bills.

Snyder Healthcare (1999 to 2000)
Pharmaceutical Sales

•  Managed south Arkansas territory.

•  Provided samples to providers while educating of the efficacy, uses and target
population. Managed stock for reporting purposes. 1

•  Answered provider questions in a complex environment proyiding decision'making
criteria while building relationships.

•  Achieved sales targets through efficiency and territory management.
•  Collaborated with other sales specialists to identify opportunities to move sales forward.
•  Customer-focused and effectively supported business goals.

Page | 3
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SHELLEY RUTH, BSHA
Manager, IOC Provider Inspections & PCMH OA

Core Competencies

Responsible for oversight of contract
deliverables

Leadership of mufti-disciplinary teams

Over 20 years Quality
Improvement/Quality Assurance

Education

Master of Science in Industrial-

Organizational Psychology

University of Phoenix, Phoenix, AZ (currently enrolled)

Bachelor of Science in Health

Administration

University of Phoenix, Phoenix, AZ

Associate of Arts in Health

Administration

University of Phoenix, Phoenix, AZ

Publications

•  Patient Centered Medical Home Quality Assurance - Validation, The Journal of the Arkansas

Medical Society, August 2015, Volume J12, Number 3

Memberships

Collaboration and cornmunication with

internal and external customers .

Develop, implement, and monitor review
'processes

Society for Industrial and Organization Psychology December 2024 -.present
Golden Key International Honour Society October 2024 - present '
National Association for Healthcare Quality 2014 - present

Arkansas Cancer Coalition Member 2012 - 2014

Experience

Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care, Little Rock, AR (2012 - Present)

Manager, lOC Provider Inspections and Patient Centered Medical Home Quality

Assurance (2012-Present)

• Manages the Inspections ofCarc (TOC) onsite provider inspections team and Licensed Behavioral

Health clinical review team.

•  Develops and implements inspection processes to ensure the integrity of provider inspections.
•  Monitors activities of the IOC team to ensure all deadlines and deliverables are met for the DPSQA

IOC contract.

•  Supports continued education for all IOC staff to ensure a complete understanding of DPSQA
program certification manuals.

• Manages the entire Patient Centered Medical Home (PCMH) Quality Assurance operation.

•  Develops and implements processes for data collection and validation of program activities.



Docusign Envelope ID: 0F7E5149-7E8A-4FDF-BCC6-C3692D27DD5C

-^Implements and maintains processes for provider remediation and corrective action plans.
Monitors activities of the PCMH quality assurance operations and milestone achievements to meet

PCMH requirements.

Supports the planning, development, and implementation of PCMH requirements by Arkansas

Medicaid Division of Medical Services (DMS).

Develops and implements quality assurance process to ensure that payments are made only to

eligible practices based on attainment of program objectives. . .
Serves as a member of the PCMH customer service team to manage provider communication as it
relates to quality assurance. i

Serves as subject matter expert on PCMH quality assurance to intemal and external customers.

Quality Assurance Specialist, Patient Centered Medical Home

Served as a quality assurance monitor for practices participating in the PCMH program.

Conducted review of self-reported data and corrective action plans.
Assisted in the development of a practice performance tracking tool, notification forms, and

additional documents to monitor PCMH program activities.

Quality Specialist. Physician OJpce Team

Provided support and assist with.planning community events for the Healthy Hot Springs Initiative

(part of Million Hearts, a national initiative co-led by CMS and the CpC).

Provided support to Project Hope through education on chronic disease prevention.

Provided support to the Health Ministry program, by providing health education to community

members and church congregation members.

Provided support to the Quality Colonoseopy Special Innovation Project through data collection,
provider education, and consumer education.

Additional Experience

Mercy Hospital Hot Springs, Hot Springs, AR (2003 - 2012)

Medical Staff Coordinator/Physician Liaison-

Quality Improvement Coordinator

Nursing Administration Assistant '

Apex Foundation, Weatherford, Cypress, TX (2002 - 2003)

Office Manager
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St. Joseph's Mercy Health Center, Hot Springs, AR (1990 - 2002)

Rehabilitation Services Secretary

Patient Account REPRESENTATIVE
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Walter Lee Manns, MBA, LADAC

EDUCATION:

Franklin Pierce University, Rindge, NH, 2001

Master of Business Administration

Antioch University, Keene, NH, 1998

Master of Arts, Substance Abuse Counseling

Arkansas Tech University, Russellville, AR, 1995
Bachelorof Arts, Psychology

PROFESSIONAL CERTIFICATION AND LICENSURE:

LADAC - Licensed Alcohol and Drug Abuse Counselor

AADC - Advanced Alcohol and Drug Counselor

EXPERIENCE

Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care Oct. 2019 - Present

Outreach Specialist, Substance Abuse Team Lead

On behalf of Arkansas Department of Health, Division of Provider Services and Quality Assurance

(DPSQA):

•  Conduct license reviews of alcohol and drug abuse treatment programs

•  Investigate complaints and incidents reported to DPSQA

•  Conduct Quality of Care record reviews for mental health and substance abuse fee-for-service

providers contracted with Arkansas Medicaid

On behalf of New Hampshire Division for Behavioral Health Bureau of Drug and Alcohol Services

•  Conduct annual Independent Peer Review of clinical records

•  Conduct client/staff interviews

•  Review policies and procedures to ensure contract compliance

Arkansas Community Corrections Sept. 2018-Sept. 2019

Counselor/Advisor

•  Provided individual and group counseling to Drug Court participants

•  Functioned as Court Liaison providing treatment recommendations to presiding judge

•  Provided substance counseling to parolees participating in Vivitrol pilot program

CATAR Clinic St Stockton Medical Group Aug. 2016 - Aug. 2018

Clinic Administrator

•  Provided oversight of daily operations for outpatient medication assisted treatment clinic

•  Provided management support for 3 additional satellite medication assisted treatment clinics

•  Monitored compliance with regulations and standards of DEA, U.S. Substance Abuse and Mental
Health Services Administration (SAMHSA), Arkansas Division of Behavioral Health Services,

Arkansas Board of Pharmacy, and CARF

•  Provided ongoing reports to state/federal agencies and clinic owners/stakeholders

•  Provided community outreach and marketing

•  Facilitated quarterly focus groups to solicit feedback from consumers

•  Facilitated group therapy and crisis intervention to patients on an as-needed basis
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University of Arkansas Medical Sciences Sept. 2014 - Aug. 2016

Licensed Alcohol and Drug Abuse Counselor

•  Provided federally mandated group and individual counseling to outpatient methadone and

suboxone patients

•  Monitored treatment compliance

•  Conducted prior authorization and concurrent review from third party payers

•  Provided crisis stabilization and case management to assigned patients

Arkansas Department of Community Corrections Feb. 2014 - Sept. 2014

Substance Abuse Counselor

•  Provided substance abuse counseling to inmates in a community corrections detention facility

Bridgeway Hospital June 2003-Sept. 2013

Director of Intake/Admissions

. • Conducted intake assessments to determine appropriate level of care

•  Completed prior authorizations with third-party payer to ensure appropriate reimbursement

•. Provided reports to CEO, Marketing Director, and regional leadership regarding intake activity

and trends

•  Insured ongoing compliance with standards of; Joint Commission, CMS, and Arkansas

Department of Health
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NH Department of Health and Human Services

KEY PERSONNEL

List those primarily responsible for meeting the terms and conditions of the agreement,

Job descriptions not required for vacant positions.

Contractor Name: Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care (AFMC)

'4

NAME JOB TITLE

ANNUAL AMOUNT

PAID FROM THIS

'  CONTRACT

ANNUAL

SALARY

Kristy Bondurant, PhD. MPH, CIC
Director and Epidemiologist, Data Scientist and'
Public Health Programs $30,009.00 $150,201.00

Kent Thompson, MPH Manager, Data Sciences $10,110.00 $96,728.00
Sydney Le\vis, MPH Supervisor, Data Sciences/Program Evaluation $25,974.00 $81,582.00

Diego Caraballo, MS Healthcare Data Scientist II $3,143.00 $70,691.00

Hakeem Yatim, MS Healthcare Data Scientist 1 $34,899.00 $56,073.00

Tonoka Settles Senior Data Specialist $11,748.00 $42,542.00

Linda Newell, BS Manager. Data Sciences $10,017.00 $96,728.00

Shalini Manjanatha, BS Supervisor, Data Sciences/Survey Research $26,265.00 $92,314.00

Mayumi Takada, BS Senior Healthcare Data Scientist $1,832.00 $87,564.00

Sharika Minor, MS Healthcare Data Scientist II $18,937.00 $68,574.00
Vaibhavi Patel, MS Healthcare Data Scientist 1 $15,485.00 $56,073:00

Fernando MurilloOrdonez Data Specialist, Team Lead (Bilingual) $4,360.00 $40,864.00

John Williams Data Specialist II ■ $3,427.00 $33,092.00

Sheryl Hurt, CPHIMS, PCMH CCE Director of Outreach Services $3,076.00 $130,704.00

Shelley Ruth. BS Manager, Outreach Services $925.00 $88,437.00

Lee Manns. MA, LADAC Outreach Specialist $5,702.00 $66,073.00
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l.ori A. Wetver

CoRiBdnieacr-

KAlji & rot
'Director •

STATE OF.N£WHA>^HIR£

DEPARTMENTOF ̂ALTH AND HUMaN SERVICES
myfSIpAf FOR BEHA VIORAL H^LTH

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03MI

6(U-271;9S44 l-«^S^334S Ext 9544
Fax: 60^371-4332 tIdD Ac^: 1-800-73S-2964 www.dblu;ofi.gov

May .13. 2024

His Excellency,.Governor Christopher T. Sununu
end the Honorable Council

State.House
Concord, New Hampshire,03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services. Division for Behavioral Health,
to enter into a $ble Source amehdrrient to an existing cphtract with Arkansas Foundatipn for
Medicai Care, Inc. XVG#33W39-P0bi), .Little Rock,. Arkansas, for, the continued provisjon of
progr^ evaluation-.and data collection, analysis, and reporting for the.Continuum of Care
Systern, by increasing the.price lirnilatlon by $963,268 from $1,609,900 to'$2,513,lOe andiby
emending the cornpletlon datefrbm June 30,2024 to June 30,2026, effective July 1,2024; upon
^Governor and Council approval. 10.0% Other Funds (Governor's Commission).

The original contract was approv^ by Governor arid Council oh August 26, 2020, .lterti
#14 and most recently arriended With Governor and Council approval on February i6,2022, Item
#36, "

;  Funds are ayaijiabie.in the following accounts for Stale Fiscal Years, 2025 and are
anticipated, to be avaiiabteVin State Fiscal Year 2026 upon the ayailability and continued;
appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, ̂ th the.authprity to'adjust.budget line items

if heeded and justified.

,06-9&-92-«20510-33820000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF-HEALTH AND HUR8AN SVS,
HHS: DIVISlbN FOR . BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, BUREAU OF DRUG AND ALCOHOL. GOVERNOR
COMMISSION FUNbS.(lbb% Other Funds)

State

Fiscal

Year

Class/

Account
Class Title

' job
Number

Current

Budget

^ Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised
Budget

2021 102;5()0731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
92058W2 $298,201 $0. .$298,261

2022 074r500585
community

Grants
9205850|2 $303,074 $0 $303,074

t

2023 074-500585
Comrnunlty
Grants

92058502 ' $1^517 $p .$154,517

•r.
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His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

Page 2 of 3

.2024 074-500585
Community
Grants

92058502 $451,633 $0 $451,633

2025 074-500589
Community
Grants

92058502 SO $451,633 $4S^,S33

2026 074-500589
Community
Grants

92058502 $0 $451,633 $451,633

Subtotal $1,207,425 $903,200 $2,110,091

05-95-92'920610-33640000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS,
HHS: DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, BUREAU OF DRUG AND ALCOHOL, CLINICAL
SERVICES (66% Federal Funds 34% General Funde)

State

Fiscal

Year

. Class/

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised
Budget

2021 102-500731
Contracts for
ProQ Svc

92057501 $99,400 $0 $99,400

2022 074-500585
Community
Grants

92057501 $101,025 $0 .
✓

$101,025 .

2023 074-500585
Community
Grants

92057501 $101,025 $0 $101,025

2024 074-500585
Community
Grants

92057501 $101,025 $0 $101,025

. Subtotal $402,475 $0 $402,475

Total $1,609,900 $903,266 $2.513.1 $6

EXPLANATION

This request is Sole Source because the Departrnent is seeking to extend the contract
beyond the compietion date and there are no renewal options available. The Department is
implementing the funding actions taken by the Govemor's Commission on Alcohol and Other
Drugs. On December 15, 2023 the Commission recommended and approved the funding
allocation for this Agreement. The Department carries out the administrative functions of the
Commission in accordance with RSA 12-J. The request will allovy the Contractor to continue
providing services that support the Departrnent in collecting, analyzing, and interpreting service
provision-related data across the Continuum of Care System in NH. The Contractor wili continue
to build upon the fpundational vyork with the Department and its stakeholders to address and
Integrate process Improvements across the system.

. The Contractor will continue expandirig the data dashboard work with, the Recovery
Community Organizations in NPw Hampshire to further provide data cqileciion tied to Improved
client outcomes, enhance Independent Peer Review processes, required by the Substance Abuse
and Mental Health Services Administration to improve case management reporting outcomes for
treatrhent services, integrate and build on prevention services data collection processes to
Improve standardization of direct and indirect prevention program goals throughout New
Hampshire. By overlaying various de-identified, aggregate data sets, such as demographic
information, health care resources, environmental factors, and socioeconomic indicators, the

r.
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His Excellency. Governor Chrtsti^er T. Sununu
and the Honorable Coundi
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Department can continue to identify pattems and correldtlons that contribute to health, disparities
and allovy for evidence-based decision^making and the development of targeted Interventions to
address the root causes of these disparities.

The Department will continue monitoring senrices through regularly scheduled meetings
and the submission and review of monthly reports to ensure;

•  Evaluations assess program performance at all stages of development and are
implemented as designed or operating as InterKled.

•  Services Inform and aid in the irnprovement of substance misuse policies,
programs, and practices.

iShould the Governor and Council not authorize this request, the Department may be
unable to identify and mitigate challenges that address fiscal responsibility and improve
transparency and accountability across the Continuum of Care System.

Area seived: Statewide. .

Source of Federal Funds: Assistance Listing Number #93.959, FAIN # TI083041,
TI083464,TI0W659andTI085821. ;

in the event that the Other Furids become no longer availabie; General Funds will not be
requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted.

Lori A. Weaver

Commissioner

Tht Dtparlmtnl of HtaUh and Hun\<m''Stroiet$' MUsion. it to Join communities and famitiet
in providing opporiuniiies for citixtnt 10 achieve health and independence.
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. State of New Hampshire

Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #2

This Amendment to the Program Evaluation and Data Services for the Alcohol and Other Drug (ADD)
Services System contract is by and between the State of New Hampshire. Department of Health and
Human Services ("State" or "Department") and Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care, Inc. ("the
Contractor"). . ,

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council'
on August 26, 2020 (Item #14). as amended on February 16. 2022 (Item #36). the Contractor agreed to
perform certain services based upon the terms and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and
in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, the Contract may be amended upon written
agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Cdunc'll; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows: .

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

June 30, 2026 "*

2. Form P-37, General Provisions. Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

,$2,513,166

3. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.9, Contracting Officer for State Agency, to read:

Robert W. Moore, Director

4. Modify Exhibit B Amendment#! Scope of Services, Section 1.3.1.2. to read;

.  , 1.3.1.2. Process evaluations to ensure program fidelity by assessing whether a program or
process is implemented as designed or operating as intended, including' meeting
contractual and/or regulatory service requirements,

5. Modify Exhibit B, Scope of Services, Section 1.3.3. to read:

1.3.3. The Contractor shall complete a process for an Independent Peer Review (IPR) as
required through the Substance Use Prevention, Treatment, and Recovery Block Grant

.  (SUPTRrBG).

6. Modify Exhibit B, Scope of Services, by adding Section 1.3.5.4. through Section 1.3.5.6. to read:

1.3.5.4. Working with the Department, and stakeholders identified by the Department, to improve
programming by identifying potential areas of improvement in data collection and
management.

1.3.5.5. Working with the Department to expand data collection and analysis capabilities as
needed.

1.3.5.6. Working with the Department to identify and implement data quality improvement
activities.

7. Modify Exhibit B. Scope of Services, Section 1.4.3.6.2. to read:

1.4.3.6.2. SAS®, and other platforms identified and approved by the Department, for all .data

Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care, Inc. A-S-1.3 Conlraclor Initials,

RFP-20
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RFP-2021-BDAS-01-PROGR-01-A02 Page 1 of 7
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analyses.

8. Modify Exhibit B, Scope of Services, Section 1.4.3.7. to read:

1.4.3.7. -Facilitating the collection and reporting of data including, but not limited to:

1.4.3.7.1. Utilizing available.prevalence and impact data.

1.4.3.7.2. Creating a data profile with regards to a subset of the larger population who
are at greater risk of developing a substance use disorder (SUD) or, by
proximity, are at a greater risk of the consequences of individuals with a
SUD.

9. Modify Exhibit B, Scope of Services. Section 1.4.3.10. to read:

1.4.3.10. Providing technical assistance in areas related to data collection,' analysis, and
reporting, as needed.

10. Modify. Exhibit B, Scope of Services, by adding Section 1.4.3.11. to read:

1.4.3.11. Conducting comparative and/or correlational analysis of data in order to compare the
similarities or differences between two (2) or more variables.

11. Modify Exhibit 8, Scope of Services by adding Section 1.4.7. to read:

1M.7. The Contractor shall ensure any protected health information (PHI), or SUD'data included
in data collection, analysis, interpretation, reporting and support is handled and disclosed
in accordance with state rules, state and federal laws, including the requirements of 42
CFRPar12.

12. Modify Exhibit B. Scope of Services, Section 1.5.1.2. to read:

1.5.1.2. Printing, delivering, distributing approximately 45,000 surveys to. more than 80
participating public high schools,- statewide, formatted in accordance with the
requirements of the CDC and the Department.

13. Modify Exhibit B, Scope of Services,-Section 1,5.1.4. to read:

1.5.1.4. (Oevelpping clean datasets to include a universal file and CDC sample file of coded
results, approved by the Department.

14. Modify Exhibit B. Scope of Services, Section 1.6. Subheader title only to read:

1.6. Initial Planning of New Evaluation Projects:

15. Modify Exhibit B, Scope of Services. Section 3.2. to read: . -

3.2. The Contractor shall conduct and complete an IPR of not fewer than five (5%) percent of
the entities contracted with the State to provide SUD treatment services, per state fiscal-
year. which is from July 1-June 30, as required through the SUPTR-BG. This includes, but
is not Ijmited to:

3.2.1 Submitting a summary report to the Department including, but not limited.to results
and findings related to the IPR within 30 calendar days following completion of the
review.

3.2.2 Submitting all final documents related to the IPR to the Department prior to June
30th of each state fiscal year. . . "

3.2.3-' The Contractor shall provide a written monthly progress report to the Department
related to accomplishments of the contract goals and "performance rrieasures, for

T, each scope of work, which includes, but is not limited to:

3.2.3.1 A summary of the key work performed for each scope of work the
monthly period. r

Arkansas Foundation for Medical Cere. Inc. A-S-1.3 Comfaclorlnilials
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3.2.3.2 Encountered and foreseeable key Issues and suggested mitigations
strategies for each.

3.2.3.3 Scheduled work for the upcoming period.

16. Modify Exhibit B, Scope of Services/Section 5., Additional Terms, by adding Section 5.4. through
Section 5.6.. as follows;

5.4. Confidential Data

5.4.1. The Contractor must meet all information security and privacy requirerrients as set by
the Department and In accordance with the Department's Information Security

.  ' Requirements Exhibit as referenced below.

5.4.2. The Contractor must ensure any individuals involved in delivering services through this
Agreement contract sign an attestation agreeing to access, view, store, and discuss
Confidential Data in accordance-with federal and state laws and regulations-and the
Department's Information Security Requirements Exhibit. ^

5.4.3. The Contractor must ensure said individuals have a justifiable business neecJ to access
confidential data". • ' '

5.4.4; The Contractor must provide attestations upon Department request.

5.5. Privacy Impact Assessment

5.5.1. Upon request, the Contractor must allow and assist the Department in conducting a
Privacy Impact Assessment (PIA) of its system(s)/appllcation(s)/web
portal{s)Awebsite(s) or Department-system(s)/application(s)/web portal(s)/website{s)
hosted by the Contractor, if Personally Identifiable Information (Pll) is collected, used,
accessed, shared, or stored. To conduct the PIA the Contractor must provide the
Department access to applicable systems and documentation sufficient to allow the
Department to assess, at minimum, the.following:

5.5..1.,1. Hb\y Pll is gathered and stored;

5.5.1.2. WhovrillhaveaccesstoPII;

5.5.1.3. How Pll will be used in the system'; .

5.5.1.4. How individual consent will be achieved and revoked; and.

5.5.1.5. Privacy practices.

5.5.2. The Department may conduct follow-up PIAs in the event there are either significant
process changes or new technologies impacting.the collection, processing or storage
■ofPjl. .

5.6. Contract End-of-Llfe Transition Services

5.6.1. General Requirements
5.6.1.1. ,lf applicable, upon termination or expiration of the Agreement the parties agree

to cooperate in good faith to effectuate a smooth secure transition of the
r  . Services from the Contractor to the Department and." If applicable, the

Contractor engaged by the Department to assume the Services previously
perforrned by the Contractor for this section the new Contractor shall be known
as "Recipient"). Ninety (90) days prior to the end-of the contract or unless
othenwse specifted by the Department, the Contractor must begin working with
the-Department and if applicable, the new Recipient to develop a Data

,  Transition Plan (DTP). The Department shall provide the DTP template to the

Arton&es'Foundation for Medical Care, Inc. A-Stl,3 - 'Contractor Initials
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v7.l2.23

2,



Doojsign Envelope ID: 0F7E5149-7E8A-4FDF-BCC6-C3692D27DD5C

pOCuSigri Envelope ID: DE602E16-0621 -41 p9-A25D-7AE4DE069B0C

'  Contractor.

5.6.1.2. The Contractor must use reasonable efforts to assist the Recipient, in
connection with the transition from the performance of Servces by the
Contractor and its End Users, to the performance of such Services. This may

.  include assistance with the secure .transfer of records (electronic and hard
copy), transition of historical data (electronic and hard copy), the transition of

.  any such Service from the hardware, software, network . and
telecommunications equipment and internet-related infomriation technology
infrastructure ("Internal IT Systems") of Contractor to the Internal lT Systems
of the Recipient and cooperation with and assistance to any third-party
consultants engaged by Recipient in connection with the Transition Services.

'f , 5.6.1.3. If a system, database.' hardware, software, and/or software licenses (Tools)
- . was purchased or created to manage, track, and/or store Departrrient Data In

relationship to this contract said Tools will be inventoried and returned to the
-* ' bepartmerit. along with the inventory document.,once transition of Department

Data is complete.

5.6;i.4. The internal planning of the Transition Services by the Contractor andits End
Users shall be provided to the Department and if applicable the Recipient in a
timely manner. Any such Transition Services shall l>e deerned to be Sen/ices
for purposes of this Agreement..

5.6.1.5. Should the data Transition extend beyond the end-of the Agreement, the
Contractor agrees that" the Information Security . Requirements, and if
applicable, the Department's Business Associate Agreernent terms and
conditions remain in effect until the Diata Transition is accepted as complete by
.the Department.

5.6.1.6. In the event where the Contractor has comingied Department Data and the
destruction or Transition of said data is not feasible, the Department and
Contractor will jointly evaluate regulatory and professional .standards for
retention requirements prior to destruction, refer to the terms and conditions of
the Department's DHHS Information Security Requirements Exhibit.

5.6.2. Completion of Transition Services

5.6.2.1,. Each service or Transition phase shall be deemed completed '(and the
Transition process finalized) at the end of 15 business days after the product,
resulting from the Service, is delivered to the Department and/or the Recipient
in accordance with the mutually agreed upon Transition plan, unless within said.
15 business day term the Contractor notifies the Department of an issue-
requiring additional time to complete said product.

5.6.2.2. Once all parties agree the data has been migrated the. Contractor will have 30
'  days to destroy the data per the terms and conditions of the Department's

Information Security Requirements Exhibit.

5.6.3. Disagreement over Transition Services Results

5.6.3.1. In the event the Department is not satisfied with the results of the Transition.
Service, the Department shall notify the Contractor, in virritihg, stating the
reason for .the lack of satisfaction within 15 business days of the final product
or at any time during the data Transition process. The Parties shall discuss the

•  actions to be taken to resolve the disagreement or issue. If an agreement is
not reached, at any time the Department shall be entitled to initiate actions.in

g
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accordance with the-Agreemenl.

17. Modify Exhibit C. Payment Terms, Section 1 to read:

1. This Agreement is funded by:

1.1. 10.57% Substance Use Prevention, Trea

1.2.

1.3.

tment and Recovery Block Grant (SUPTR-
BG), by the Department of Health and Human Services, Substance Abuse and Mental
Health Services Administration (SAMHSA), Center for Substance Abuse Treatment
(CSAT), ALN, 93.959. as awarded on;

1.1.1. 10/1/2019, FAIN Tlp83041;

1.1.2. 2/1/2021, FArr^ T1083464;

1.1.3. 2/10/2022, FAIN; TI084659:-a.nd

1.1.4. 2/15/2023, FAIN TI08582T

83.99% Other Funds (Governor's Commission).

5.44% General .Funds.

18. Modify Exhibit C, Payment Terms, Section 3 to read:

3. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures Incurred In the
fulfillment of this Agreement and shall be in accordance with the approved line item, as
specified in Exhibit C-1 Budget SFY 2021'through Exhibit C-6 Budget SFY 2026, Amendment

■■#2. ■ s
19. Add Exhibit C-5 Budget SFY 2025, Amendment #2. which is attached hereto and incorporated by

' reference herein.-

20. Add Exhibit C-6 Budget SFY 2026, Amendment #2, which is attached hereto and incorporated by
reference herein. •

Arkansas FoyndaUon for Medical Care, Inc. A-S-1.3
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All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior arnendments riot modified by this Amendment remain
in full force and effect. This Amendment shall be effective July 1. 2024. upon Governor and Council
approval. ' ^ :

IN WITNESS WHEREOF; the parlies have set their hands as of the date written below.

State of New Hampshire

Department of Health and Hurnan Services

4/26/2024

Date

DoeuSlen*d by:

S. f-om
eoQooeao'c«j44j...

."Katja S. FOX
Name;

Title: Director

Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care, InC.

4/25/2024.

Date

C—OecvSlQKM by;
14WaV2<90»410..-

Name: ^elig

Title: President & Chief Executive officer

.Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care. Inc. A-S-1.3
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

>0^9JetMd by:

5/6/2024 '
—Oo«u84oiwd by:

-74S7MM4MI4eO...

Date Name:'^°''y"

Title: Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by theOovemor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: ■ . (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care. Inc. .. . A-S-V3
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C-9 Budget SFY 2025, Amendment «2 RFP-202i-BOAS-01-f>ROCIl-01-A02

New Hsmpehlre Department of Health and Human Services

,  '

Contractor Name: Afitsnsos Foundeiion for Medicel Cars, inc...,.

Budget Reouett for: Program Evaiua'Jon arid Data Serv4c^

. Budget Period SFV 2025 Ji*/1. 2024 - June 30. 2025

litdirect Cost Rate (If applicable] 28.7 .. y

0.287

Llrte Item Program Cost • Funded by OHHS

1. Salary A Wages :»107.323

2. Fringe BeneHis • 582.808

3. Conaitanis 50

4. Equipment

Indirect cpct rate cermot be applied to
equlpmertt costs per 2 CFR 200. t and
Appendix IV to 2 CFR 200. \  • SO-
5.(b) SuppUes ■ Educationai SO

S.(b) Supplies • l.ab ' . so

S.(c> Supplies • Pharmecv so

5.(d} SuppUet • Medical so

S.(e) SuppdesOfnca S1.270

0. Travel S14.8S2

7. Soitwa/e/Teteptione 534.188

8. (a) Otber* Mariceting/Communicaiions SO

8. (b) Other - Tctephone ' SO

8. (c) Other - Oiher (specdv beHhv) so

Other (Printing/Postage} $50,400

Other (please specifv) SO

Other (pleBse spedfy) .. . SO

Other (please spedfy) SO

9. Subredpiem Contracts so

Total Direct Costs S3S0.91B

Total Indirect Costs $100,714

TOTAL $451,633

Project 10#

Contractor tniUal:

4/2i/2024 ■
Dais:
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New Hampshire Department of Heatlh and Human Servtcee

Contractor Name: Arvartsas Foundation (or Medical Care, inc. . >

Budflet Requeit for: PtDQram Evaluation and Data Servlctt '

'  Budget Period SFY 2028 JuN t. 2025 • June 30. 2028

Indirect Coel Rate (If appllcablel 28.7 •

iTihettom '• " Program Cost • Funded by OHMS

1. Salary ft Wagee St82,6fi3

2. Fringe Benertts S90.S14

3. ConsUtants $0

Ar .

f t

M

$0

5.(0) Supplies • Educationsi 50

5.(0] Supplies- Ub SO '  ■

5,(0 SuppUes - Phamtacy SO

S.jd) Supplies • Medical SO

5:(e) SuppCes Office S576

6. Travel „ v'' S40.9lt

7. Soltware/Teiephone S33.026

8. (a) Other • Markeiing/ Communicatjons •  SO

8, (b) Other • Education and Traincng .  so

8. (c) Oiher > Other (sped^ below) so

Other {Postage/Prtntlng) S3.000

Other (please specify) SO

• Other (please spedfy) so

Other (please epedfy) so

9. Subreo'plcnt Contracts so

Total Dtracl Costs $350,919

Total Indirect Costs $100,714 •  ■

•••

TOTAL $451,833 ■

Project ID 0

Controclor iniUal:,.[i •
Dele:

4/2J/202<
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STATE OP NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

OmSION FOR BEHA VIORAL HEALTH

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD. NH 03MI
6IU-17I-9S44

Fai:(0>27l-4332 TDDActm: l-SOO-735-2964 fnnr.dhhj.nb.gev

Decembers, 2021

His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
-and the Honorable Council
State House
Concord. New Hampshire 03301 .

RiEQUESTED ACTION

Aulhpriie the Department of Health and Human Services. Division for Behavioral Health,
lo-amend an existing contract wtth Aritansas Foundation for Medical Care. Inc. (VC#333439-
P001), Little Rock. Arkansas, for the continued provision of program evaluation and data
collection, analysis, and reporting for the Alcohol artd Other Drug Continuum of Care Service
System, by exercising a contract renewal option by increasing the price limitation by $808,200
from $801.700 to $1.609,900 and extending the compielion date from June 30, 2022 to June 30.
2024. effective upon Governor and Council approval. 16.W% Federal Funds. 8.50% General
Funds and 75% Other Funds (Governor's. Cornmissipn).

#14.

Jhe original contract was approved by Governor and Council on August 26. 2020, item

Funds are available in the following accounts for State Fiscal Year 2023. and are
'enlici'pated to be available in Stale Fiscal Year 2024. upon the avaiiabllity and continued
appropriation of funds in the future operati.ng budget, with the authority to adjust budget line items
wHhih the price limitation and encumbrances l)etween state fiscal years through the Budget Office,
if needed and Justified.
05-95-92-920610-33820000 H^LtH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVS, HNS: DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, BUREAU OF DRUG AND

Slate

.Fiscal

Year

Class /
Account

Class Tide
Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Deeroasod)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2021 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
92056502

$298,201 $0 $298,201

7 ,

,2022 ■ 074-500585
Community

Grants
9205B5O2

$303,074 $0 $303,074

2023 074-500585
Community

Grants
92058502

$0 $154,517 $154,517

2024 074-500585
Community

Grants .
92058502

SO $451,633 $451,633

Subtotal
.  1. ■

■$eo$,i50 $1,207,425

ThiDtpOTtmtntQlHeollh ond Humcn S«n»ier»'Afi>iion ij communili^J ondfamUm
in prvifiding oppcflunUiti fpf cilittnt to oehitvt h^olth ond t/xtoptidcnee.
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05*95-92*920510-33840000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVS, HNS; DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH. BUREAU OF DRUG AND
ALCOHOL. CLINICAL SERVICES (66% Federal Funds 34% General Funds)

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /
Account

Class Tttfe
Job

Number

-Current
Budget

Increased
(DocroBsed)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2021 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc 92057501
$99,400 $0 $99,400

2022 074-500585
Community
Grants

92057501 .
$101,025 $0 .$101,025

2023 074-500585
Community

Grants'
92057501

SO $101,025 $101,025

2024 074-500585
Community

Grants
92057501

$0- $101,025 $101,025

■! Subtotal $200,425 $202,050 $402,476

Total $801,700 $808,200 $1,609,900

^EXPLANATION

The purpose of (his .request is to continue providing program, evaluation and data
collection, analysis, and reporting for the Alcohol and Other Drug Continuum of Care Service
System in New Hampshire.

New Hampshire continues to face significant challenges concerning substance misuse.
Evaluating programs. tranelating research and data to practice, and disseminating findings helps
to ensure a consistent approach to improving outcomes for Individudts and families in Nw
Hampshire who are in ne^ of services.

The Contractor v^ll continue to provide ongolr^g evaluation of the Alcohol and Other Drug
Service system and programs by collecting, analyzing, ar>d reporting on data that enables the
Department to make evidence-informed decisions, while continuing to expand and improve upon
the system.

The Department will monitor services through regularly scheduled meetings and the
submission and review of monthly reports to ensure:

•  Evaluations assess program performance at all stages of development and are
Implemented as designed or operating as Intended: ^

• Data collection, analysis, interpretation and reporting inform end aid In the
improvement of substance misuse policies, programs, and practices.

• Wbrit products are delivered within the agreed upon timeframes.
• Approved changes to work plans and timelines are made within five (5) business

days of receiving approval from the Department.
As referenced In Exhibit A, Revisions to Standard Contract Provisions. Section 1.

Revisions to Form P-37.-General Provisions, of the original agreement, the parties have (he option
to extend the agreement for up to two (2) additional ypars, contingent upon satisfactory delivery
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of cervices, available funding, agreement of the parties and Governor and Council approval. The
Department is exercising its option to renew services for two (2) of the two (2), years available.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request, the (Department may be
unable tceddress challenges that address fiscal responsibiliiy and improve transparency and
accountability, which leads to quality Improvement and builds capacity across the Alcchoi and
Other Omg Continuum of Care Service System.

Area served: Statewide

Source of Federal Funds: Assistance Listing Number #93.959, fain #11083464

In the event that the Other Funds beoome no longer available. Gerteral Funds will not be
requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted.

Lori A. Shibinette

"  Commissioner
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #1

This Amendment to the Program Evaluation and Data Services for the Alcohol and Other Drug (A'OD)
Services System contract is'by and between the State of New Harnpshire, Depart'rnent pf-Health and
Human Services ("State" or "Department") and Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care", Inc. ("the

• Contractor").

•WHEFtEAS, pursuant to an agreernent'(the "Contract") approved by the Governor, and Executive Council
on August 26, 2020. (iWrn #14). the Contractor agreed to perforrri ceriairi services based upori the terms
and condition's specified in the Contract and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions. Paragraph 17 and Exhibit A, Revisions to
Standard Contract Provisions. Section 1., Subsection 1.1., the Contract rhay be amended upon .written
agreement.of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

'  ■ WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, br rriodify
the scope of .services to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, In consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
•  in the Cpntract'.and set forth hecei.o, the parlies herelo.agree to amend as follows:

1. .Form P-37 General Provisions. Block 1.7. Completion Date. to read:

June'30, 2024

2. Form P-37. General Provisions. Block 1.8, Price LImilation, to read:

■$,1,609,900.

3. Modify Exhibit B. Scope of Services. Section 1. Statement of Work. Subsection 1.5.. NH Youth
Risk Behavior Survey,, Paragraph 1.5.1. Subparagraph 1.5.1,1, Part 1.5.1,1.3 to,read:
1;5.1.1.3. Formatting .surye/in compliance with printer and onliiie requirements;

4. Modiify Exhibit 8, ScPp'e of Seivices, Section 1, Statement of Work^ Subsection 1.5.. NH Youth
Risk Behavior Survey, Paragraph^l.'S.I. Subparagraph 1.5.1:1, Part 1.5.1.1.4 to read:
1..5.1..1.4. Ensuring .the.finaj.documeril is press-ready PDF; and

5;. Modify .ExhiBit B. Scope!pf Se'rvicies. Section 1. Statement of Work, Subsection 1.5-., NH Ypuih
Risk" Behavior Survey,Paragraph .1.5.1. Subparagraph'1.5.1.1, Part "1.5.1.1.510 read:
1.•5.1.1.5. Eosuring survey modality is approved by the Department in writirig.no [aier than five (5)

weeks prior to survey administration.

'8. .Modify .Exhibit B. Scope of. Services. -Section 1, Statement of Work. .Subsection 1.5,, NH Youth
Risk Behavior Survey, Paragraph" 1.5.1, Subparagraph 1.5,1;-2;'lb read:.
•1.5.1";2. Prjotlng; delivering and distributing approximately 45.000 surveys. In bo'b'klet form or

oniin'e pailicipatidn links to more than 80 "participating, public high schools "statewide,
fdrmatted'ln accordance with the requirements of the CDC and the Department.

7, .Modify Exhibit B. Scop,e of Service,s. Section 1, Statement .of Work, Subsection 1."5..„ NH Vduth
f?isk Behavior Survey,'paragraph/l ,5.1, Subparagraph 1.5.1.4^ to read:"
1.5.1.4. Developing clean datasets to include a universal nie and CDC sample file of coded

results ufllizing coding rules approved by the Department;
8. Modify ^ExhilDlt B, Scope of Services. Seciion" 1, Statement of Yi(ork, Subsection 1..5., NH Youth

Risk"Beha.viof SurveyrParagraph 1.5..1. Subparagraph 1.5.1.5, td.read:

1.5.1.5. Providing .3 cpdebppkfor'lhe clean datasets:
■ 9. Modify Exhibit's, Scope .o).Services, Seciion 1. Statement of'Wdrk, •Subsdclion 1:5.. NH Youth

RIsk'.Beha'vior Survey. "Paragraph 1.5.1, Subparagraph 1.5.1.6, to read: _

"1.5.'T..6, Providing the data to the Department in clean .data.'files in ASCll'format, ensurirjgj^l any
RFP-2021 -BOAS-O.I-P.RQGR-Ol -AOI ArkBrisas^Found'alibn for Meclical Core. Inc. Contractor. Iniiiala ^
A-S-T.O Page 1 of 5
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protected health lnformatior\ (PHI) or SUD data included in the reports is disclosed in
accordance with the stale r\jles. slate and federal laws, including the requirements of 42
CFR Part 2; and . -

10. Modify Exhibit C, Payment Terms, Section 3. to read:

3. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred in the
fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with the approved line item, as

y, specified in Exhibit G-1 Budget SPY 2021 through Exhibit C-4 Amendment #1, Budgets SPY
2024.

.11. Modify Exhibit I. Health Insurance Portability Act Business Associate Agreement, by replacing It In
Us entirety with Exhibit I - Amendment #1, Health Insurance Portability Act Business Assooate
Agreement, which is attached hereto and incorporated herein.

s

RFP'2021-BOAS-P1-PROGR'01-A0i ArVdnsdS Foundation for Madica) Pare. Inc. Controctor initials

A-S-1.0 Page 2 of 5 ?. Date;
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12. Add Exhibit Amendment #1. Budget SFY 2023, which is attached hereto and incorporated by
reference-herein.

13. Add Exhibit C-4. Amendment #1. Budget SFY 2024, which is attached hereto and incq^rated by
reference herein.

,  ̂ • - I -m.
RFP-2021>BDAS4'1-PRC)6R-01*A01 • Arkansas'Foundalion (or Modicsl Care. Inc. Corilreclor Initials

.  " . .12/22/^021
A-SM,0 - iv • Pjiga3of5 Daie^
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■All terms and con'ditions'bf the Contract not modified by this Amendment remain In Jull force and'effect.
This Amendment shall be effective upon the dale of Governor and Executive Cbuncir,approval.

IN WITNESS WHEF^EOK the parties have set their hands as of the date vvritten below.

Stale ol New Hampshire
Oepadment of Health and Human Services

1/4/2022

Date

0MuUg<M4 kr;.

Narne^«)» s. fox
Title: Oirector

Arkansas Foundation for Medical Care. ilnc.

12/22/2021

Date

OMwMoHkr

uKtoUii
■.Name;?^®y^ ^
Title: .ceo

RFP-202l?BDAS-p,1^ROGR-0i-Ap1 .AfkansBBFoundaUon for Mediwl Care.mc.

A-S-1;0 -• Page 4 of 5
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The preceding Arnendmcht. haying; been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
ex^iition.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

1/7/2022

Date Name: f^obyn Cuanno .
Titik 1/7/2022

I .hereby certify that the fpregoirig Amendment was approved by the Governor and.Executiye Council of
the Slate of New Harnpshlre at'lhe fvieeting oh: (date of rheeiing)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

RFP-2Q21-BbAS<lt*PR^R*t)1-Adl ' Artiansas Foundation for Medical Care. Inc.

A-S-t.O Page 5 bl 5
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HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABiLtTY

AND ACCOUNTABILITY ACT

BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AOREEMENT

The' Contractor Identified In Section .1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement
("Agreement') agrees to comply with the "Health insurance Portability and ;Accountability,Act
Public Law 104-191 and the "Standards for Privacy and Security of individually identifiable
Heaiih Iriformalion," 45'Cpf< Parts 1'60. 162, and-i64 (HIPAA), provisions.of the HITEC.H Act.
Title Xi II. Su.btitie O. Part 1 &"2 of th.e 'American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009," 42
USC 17934. et.6ec.. applicable to business associates, and also agrees to comply with the
'Confidentiality of Substance use Disorder Patient Records." 42 USC s. 290 dd-2.42 CFR Part
2, (Part 2), as.appliwble, and as these laws may be amended from time to lime.

(1) Denriitlons. ^

a. "Busines's Ass6ciate"-s'hail mean the Contractor and Its agents.that receive, use, transrnlt.'or
have access to protected health information (PHI) as defined In this Business As'sociate'
Agreement ("BAA'^^and "Covered Entity" shall mean the State of New Hampshire. '
Department of Health and!Human Services.

b. The.follbvving terms have the same meaning.as defined In H'P^.45 CFR Parts 160, 162
and 164 and the HITECH Ac a"s they may be amended from time .to,time: ' ■

"Breach,"" "Business-Associate.." "povered Entity," "Designated Record Set." "Data ,
.Aggre'galio'n," "Designated f^ec'ord Set." "Health Care'Operations." HiTECH Act,"
•Ifidivldual," "Privacy Rule," "Required'by law." "Security f?u)e,"iand "Secretary." .

c. Prp.tecled Heallh.informatlon', (PHI) means protected health Information defined In HIPAA
45=CFR 160.103, and jnciudes any Inform'alion or records relatirig to subslaricp. use Part-,'2
■data if applicable, as defined below.

d. "Part'2 record," means any "Record" relating to a/Patierit, and ."Patient Identifying
Informaliori," as defined in"'42 0F,R Part 2..11 relating to substance use disorder Part 2
records.

-e. "Unsecured Pfolecled Health Information" means protecl^Jheallh Informetlon th'aVls no!
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information uriusable,
•unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized Individuals arid is developed or endorsed .by
a' slandards'.de.velopingprganlzaliori that is accredited by the-Amerlcan Natjorial Standards
(nstil'ule. . ..

(2) Business AssQclale Use jand Disclosure of Protected Health Information..

:a. Business. Associate, shall'not use. disclose, maintain, store, or transmit" Protecled'Health
Ihfdrrhalloh (pRl) except as rea'sonab'iy necessary to provi.de ihe services outlined under

The (Scope .of Work of the Agreement. 'Further; Business Associate, iridudirig but not
limited'to all ,llsjdireclors..pfftcdrs, emplpyees and agerits.-shail proled all PHI as required by

■■ HIFFJA a'!x! 42 CFR pail 2. .and" not vse] disclose, •mairitam, sjore, or transmit ;PHI In any
riiannef that would constitute a viola.tion of HIPAA or'42'CFR Part 2.

E)d^bll i - Amonc^tnl 01 Contractorlnllials,. RH-
Ho3tUi Iftsirrswo Portatrifity'Ad-
Bu'sineis AsMCiftle'AgrMmenl

P^Tof6 Deto.JUSBCffiZ-
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b. Business'Associate nfiay use or disclose PHI, as applicable;

I. For the proper management and administration of the BusinessAssociate;

II. As required by law. pursuant tojthe term's set forth In paragraph c, and d.
-  ■ . below;

III. . According to the-HIPAA minimum necessary standard,

-  ly. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of
Covered Entity.^

c. To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement and. the BAA to
disclose PHI to any'third party or subcontractor, prior to makirig any such disclosure, the
Business Associate must obtain a business associate agreerhent with-the third party or
subcontractor, that complies with HIPAA and ensures that all requirements and restriclionis
placed on the Business Associate as part of this .BAA with the Covered Entily, are included
in' its business'.ass.ocjate agreerhent with the third party'or subcontractor:

■)

d. The Business Associate-shall not disclose any PHI in response to a
request or demand for disclosure, such as by a subpoena or court order, on the basis'
that it is required by law, without first notifying Covered Entity so that Covered Entity can
determine how"to best protect the PHI.. If 'Covered Entity-objects to'the 'discio'sure the
Business Associate agrees to rMrain from disclosing the PHI, until such lime as a court
orders the disclosure. If applicabje, in any judicial proceeding, the Business Associate
shall resist any efforts to ac'c'ess anyPdrt 2 records.

(3) Obliaations and Activities of Business Associate. ^ "
a. Business Associate shall implement appropriate:safeguards'to'prevent

.unauthorized use or disclosure of pHI in accordance with HIPAA and Part 2, as
applicable.

b;' The Busiriqss.Associate shall immediately notify the Covered Entity at the following
qmaii address. DHHSPfivacvOfficer@dhhs.nh.Q0v .after the Business Associate has
'determined that a known or suspected privacy or security Incident of'breach has
.occurred potentially exposing or compromising PHI. This includes madvertent or
accidental uses, disclosures. Incidents or breaches of unsecured PHI

I

c. Ih the event of a breach,-the Business Associate shall comply wlth;all applicable terms
Of this BAA, and the.inforrnation security requiremepts addendurnl'of.lhe Agreement.

d. Th'e B.usiness As'soclate agrees to perform a'risk a'ssessrrient. based .on the
.inf6r^matioh:avdilable at the time, when it becomes aware of any known o; suspected
privacy or Infqrrnation security incident or breach .as described above and
cbmmuhicale that -assessm'ent to the Covered Ehtijy. The risk-assessment shal)
include at a minimum, but not be limited to:

0 The na.ture and .exle.nl of the PHI involved, including the types of identifiers and
the. likejih'ood of re-identification;

Exhiaiil-AmBiSdmiint#! CooimciwlriajiiB T? t-F
Heoijh lr»sOf®nco Rortabilily Ack ' '
Bi/»ine&s Assodsle Agreemeni

Page 2 ol 6 Date ■
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0  The unauthorized access or use of the protected health information or to
whom the disclosure was made;

6 Whether the protected health jn;tQrmalion was actually acquired orvlewed: and
0  The extent to Which the risk to. the protected health informalion has been

mitigated.

e. The Business Assocrate shall complete a risk assessment.report ai'the conclusion
of Its incident br.breach inVestig'alipn and provide the findings in wriling to'the.
Covered Entity as soon as practicable after the conclusion of the Investigation.

f. Business Associate shall make available all of Its internal policies and procedures. t>ooks
and records relating to the use'and.disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received' by the Business Associate on'behalf of Covered Entity to the US Secretary of •
Healtti and Human Services for purposes of determining the Business Associate's arid
the Covered Entity's".compliance with HIPAA and the privacy and Security Rule.

g. •' As stated in'2.c. above, Business Associate shall require,any subconlractpr .or.third
P.arty thgt receives, uses.:stores,'Or has access to PHI tinder the Agreement, to agree in
writing to.adhere to the same restrictions and c^ditions of the use and disclosure of- .
P.HI cohiained herein, and comply with the duty to return br deslroy the PHI as provided,
under Section 3'(m). ln addition, the Business.Associate shall require all third party
contraclprs or b^usiness associale.s of^the Business Associate receiving PHI pursuant to

• the Agreement to agree, to'the Business Associates' rights of enforcernent and
indemnification from such'third party or contractor for the purpose .pf use arid disclosure
of protected .health information.

h. Within ten'(10) business days pf receipt of a written request.from. Covered Entity.
Busiriess Assbdate' shall m'ake available during normal business hdurs at its ofrices all
records, books, agreement's; policies and procedures relating to the use ariddisclosure
of P.HI to the 'Coyered Efility, for purposes pf enabling Covered Entity to delerrfiine
Business Asso'ciate's.compliance,with.the.terms.of. the BAA'and.jlie Agreerneni.

i.- Within ten (1Q) busi.ness .days of,receiving a written request from Covered Entity,
'Business Associate.s.hali prpvide-accessto PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, tb.an Individ'ualjh'.order to rneet.lhe
requirem.ents linder 45 CFR'Section 164.524.

j. Within teh'.(.1 oj busi'ness:days o'f .receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an •
am'ehdnieiht'of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Repord
SeV.vthe Busjness.Associate shall make such PHI ava.ilable.'to Gbvered Entity for
amendmept and iricorpprale any'such amendment fo enable Covered Entity to fulfill its
obligalidhs under 45 CFR Sectip.n 164.526.

k. Business Associate shalj idocurnent' any disclosures of PHI arid Information related to
any "disclosurps.as.would be re.quired for Covered Enl'ity tojespond tp a request byan
individual for an accounting .of.disciosures of PHHn accordance with'45 C.FR Section
V64;528- .

•1. Within len"('i.O) busiriess'days .of feceiying a written request from Covered Entity for a_
request for ari a'ccduntihgiof disclosures of PHI, Busiriess Associate/shall niakeaVaHabJe

Exhi^l I - A/nendmonl 01 ConUdclor Initials. R.'H-
HoaltVlnsuranM Poftabitlly Apt
eusinossAssotisle Agreement
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to Covered'Entity such informatibn as Cpyered Entity may require to fulfill its bbligati'ons
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
^Section 1&4-.528. ■ |

rh. In the event any Individual requests access to.'amendment of. or accounting of PHI
directly fronn the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within ten (i.b)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity" shall have the
responsibility of responding to fonwarded requests. However, if forwarding the
Individuars request'to Covered'Enlity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
•Associate to.violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the BuslnessAssodate

■ shall instead respond to the individual's request as-required by such, law and'notify
Covered Entity of such response 'as soon as practicable.

I.. ' . " •

r\.: Within thirty (30) 'business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return er destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI,
received from or created or receiyed by the Business Associate In conriecliori vvith the
Agreement, and shalj not retain any copies or back-ups of such PHI in a.ny form* or
platform.

.0 Ifreturn or destnjclipn Is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been
otherwise agreed to in the Agreement, Business Associate shall continue .'to
extend the protections of the Agreeiiierit. to such PHI and limit further .uses
and disclpsui;es of such PHI to those purposes that mak'e the return or"
destruction infeasibje, for so Idng.as Bia^Associate niainlains such PHI. If
Gbvered Entity, in .its .sole discretion, requires that the Business Associate
destroy ariy.br all PHI, the Business Associate shali certify to .Covered Entity
that the PHI has been destroyed. ^ .

(4) ObllQations of Covered Entity

■ai; •Cpvered'Entily shajl notify .Business Associate of any changes or lirhilation(s) in Its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuars in accordance with 4S.CFR Section
164.520, lb the extent that such change pr'limitatibn may affect Business Asso.ciate's
use or disclosure of PHI. A current version of the Covered Entity's Notice of Privacy

■  Praci'ices is'attached. to the end .of this BAA. 'Any changes in the Covered Enll'lies'
website; httDs://www.'drths.nh.bov/bos/hiDaa/Dublications.htm

b. ' Cpyered Entity shall promptly nptifyBusiness Associate of any cha'nges In, or revbcalidn
of perrnissibn provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used p.r
disclosed by' Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant lo"45 CF;R Section
'164'.'506 6r"45 CFR Section .

c." Covered'ehtily shaij.promptfy notify Business Asspc.i.ale of any restrictions pn the use or
disclosure,of PHI IKat .Covered Entity has agreed to In accordance with 4.5 CFR-1.64,522.
to the extent that such restriction rha'y affect Business' Associate's use or disclosure .of
<PHI, ' " "

(5) Termlnatioh of Aoreemant for Cause

In addlHo'n to'Raragraph 9 of the General Provisions (P.-37 of the Agreemerit. the

.ExNbli I - Am#ftdmenl 01 -Cfliolficloflnltixls R-H"
.Heaiih (Asursnco Ponabiliy Act
-Bustnasi Associaio Agreement!
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Covered Entity may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered Entity's
knowledge of a material-breach by Business Associate of Ihe BAA. The Covered Entity
may either immediately terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business
Associate to cure the alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity.

. (6) Miscellaneous

a; Definitions. Laws, and Reoulatorv References. All terms and regulations used herein, shall
refer to those laws and regulations as amended from time to time. A reference in the .
Agreement, es amended to Include this BAA to a Section in HIPAA or 42 CFR Part 2. means
the section as in effect or as amended.

b. ■■ Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is
necessary to amend the BAA. from time to lime as is necessary for Covered Entity •
and the Business Associate to comply with the changes in the requirements of
HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Role. 42 CFR Part 2. and applicable federal and
state law.'

c., ' Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that ifhas no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created oo behalf of Covered Entity.

V

d. Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resolved
to permit Covered Entity and Business Associate to comply with HIPAA and 42 CFR
Part 2. ■ . ..

e. Segregation. If any term or condition of this BAA or the application thereof to any "
person(s) or circumstance is held Invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which cari be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and conditions of this BAA, I are declared severable.

\  '.V

f. Survival. Provisions in this BAA regarding the use. and disclosure of PHI, return or
destruction of PHI. extensions of the protections of the Business Associate
Agreement In section (3) I. the defense and indemnification provisions of section*(3')
e and Paragraph 13 of the standard terms and conditions {P-37), shall survive the.
termination of BAA...

Exhibll \ - Am«n<]ment 01
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF; the parties hereto have duly executed this BAA.

Department of Health and Human Services Arkansas Foundation for Medico! Care (AFMC)

A S-

Slgrtature of Authorized Representative
Katja S. Fox

Name of Authorized Representative

Director

Title of Authorized Representative

1/7/2022

Date

Name of the Conir

Q
esentativeuthorizedSignature

Ray Hanley

Name of Authorized Representative

President & CEO
Title of Authorized Representative

January 6. 2022
Date

Exhlbti I - Amendment 01
HeBth Insurence Portabitty Act
Business Assodato Agreement
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STAieOP NEW HAMPSHIRE'

DEPA^ITMENT OF HEALTH AND KUM^ SERVICES
PJ VISION FOR BEHA VlORAL HEA L TH

i«?LEASANTStR«T.CONCOW.NEWHAMPSHIW: «MI

CemriuSwT 603.1?|.9S44 I40MM.3J45 CU »44
Pai: 60^27M]37 TT)D A««M: l««C-73S'2964 »ww.dbhi.H#w HimpiWrt.gov

K»giirei
Wmfof

August 6, 2020

His Excellency. Govemof Ohrislophcr T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord. New Herripshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Ainhprize'the Dcpertmisnl of Heallh and Human Services, Division for Behavioral Health,
on behaif of the Govemor'.s Comniii5Sion:on Alcohoi arvd Other Drugs, io enter into .a contract with
Arkerisas F.oundatlon for Medical Care. Inc. (VC«TBD). Little Rock. Arkansas in (he ompunt of
S801.700 for itw provlslbn^of program evaluation, and dale collection, analysis, and repbrtirig for
the Alcohoi and Other Drug Continuum of Care services system in New .Hampshire, 'With"lhe
opttoh to renew for up to two (2) additibnal years, effective upon Governor and Council approval
through June 30! 2022716.50% Federal Funds. 75% Othar Funds (Governof Cornmisslon Fiintfs),
and 8.50% Stale General Funds.

Funds'are available in the following accounts for Stale Fiscal Year 2.021, end are
anticipated to'be available in State Fiscal'Year "-2022. upon the availability arid cbniinued

^appropriation of furids in the.future operating budget, wit.h the authority to adjust budget line iieme
^wlthiri the price lirriitalion and ericumbfances between stele fiscal years through the Budget Office,
if fieeded and justified.' ^

06-96'92.92d510-33820000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVS, HHSr b'lVfiSION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, BUREAU OF DR.UG AND
ALCOHQU governor COMMISSION FUNDS (100% Other Funds)

.State Flseol Voor 'Class / Account CIsSB Title Job Number Total Amount

2021 102-W0731 Conlraclfl for Prog.Svc 92056502 $290,201

2022' 102-500731 Contracts (or Prog S.vc 92050502 .•$30l07.4

Sub'fDfe/ *fliM;275

OSi9S-92-920MOr33eAOOOO. HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES; DEPT OF HEALTH AND
human SVS. HHS: DIVISION FOR BEHAVnORAL HEALTH, BUREAU OF DRUG AND
Alcohol, CLINICAL services (66% Federal Funds 34% General Funds)

State FloesI Year •Claop'/Account Claee Title Job Number -ToVi.i Amount

2021 .102-500731 Contracts for Prog Syc .92057501 .  $99,400

2022 ■ 102-500731 ,Coni;acls for Prog Syc 92057501 $'101.02'5.

'm- Subrofef ,'1200,425

....

Tots!

/
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V  : EXPLANATION

The pufposD o1 this request is (or Ih© provision of prbgrefn ©valuilion and data collection,
analysis, and reporting for the Alcohol and Other Drug Continuum ol Care services eystem in New
Hampshire.-

Now Hampshire continues to face significant challenges concerning su^tance misuse-
To address these challenges," the Department of Health and Human Services (Department)
continues its commitment to building e coordinated eystem of care in Now Hampshire. Evaluating
proarams. translating research and data to practice, and disseminating findings will help ensure
a conslslont approach to improving outcomes for New Hampshire citizens and families who seek
services within the Alcohol and Other Drug Continuum of Care services system.

The goal of the aervicos is to improve the lives of New Hampshire citizens by helping
providers and the Department build quality substance misuse services through continual,,
evaluation of our system and programs and by collecting, analyzing, and reporting on data that
enables the Department to make evidence-informed decisions, while continuing to expand and
improve upon the system.

The Department will monitor contracted services through regularly scheduled meetings,
the 6ubmi8Sipr> and review of monthly reports end by using the following perfonnance measures;
•  The Contractof responds to 100% of Department communications within 72 business

hours.

•  The Conirector makes approved changes to work plans and timelines within five (5)
business days of receiving approval. 95% of the lime.

•  The Contractor ensures 100% of work products match the approved methodology for
each work product.

•  The Contractor delivers 05% of work products within the agreed upon timeframes.

The Department aetectcd the Contractor through a competitive bid process using e
Request for Proposals (RFP) that was posted on the Department's website from 5/20f2020
through 6/22/202D. The Department received four (d) responses that were reviewed end scored
by a team of qualified individuals. The Scoring Sheet is attached.

As referenced In Exhibit A. Revisions to Standard Contrad Provisions. Section 1,
Revisions to Form P-37. General Provisions. Subsection 1.1 of the attached contract, the parties
have the option to extend the agreement for up to two (2) addltionsl years, contingent upon
satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, agreement of the parties, and Governor and
Council approval.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request the State may be unable to
collectively address chaileriges.and build capadly across the Alcohol and Other Drug Continuum
of Care service system in Now Hampshire.

Area served: Statevhde ' '

Sourc©"of Fund8:'16.50% Federal Funds.-'cFDA »93.959 FAIN (*11083041. 75% Other
Funds (Governor Commission Funds) and 8.50% State General Funds.
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In the event that the Federal or Other Funds become no longer available. General Funds
wlllnot be requested tosuppofi this program. )

U-. ■

Respectfully submitted.

m
, Lorl A. Shiblnetle
. Commissioner

'■L
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Now Hompshiro Doportmont of Health and Human Ssrvlcoe
Office of business Oporatione

Contracts & Procu'rernent Unit

for tho Alcohol end OShor Onrg (AOO)
SontlcCT SyHcm

RFPHim* -

BIddof Namo

AFfrtC .

2.
JSI

Mountain Plains Evaluation

' Nonstop

9-0

RPP-2031-eDAS-O1PROGR

AfPMumbw flevlcvier Names
Jme?rRvtlno>5n«pe^r

1. SuOstanct .MHum Ptaw^ and
Evthodon

Pa»»/Ftn

Miximum

Point!

Actual

Points

Rogtrta Flynn. Ptofiram Spedaldi
*• IV '

rrs 295

. Shannon OuinA. Pno>«m
'''SpsdiGsl IV

279 193 .

. Otinalaoey. Proomm Piannino
' and Povlow Spedaihi

279 179 Laurio Htcw Outbtets AdmlrUil

- '375 29
8. i'-: •

279 0 7. ••

H.'

279. ..0 a.

279 • . .®
9.
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FORM NUMBER (virileft 1 V.UTtOlf)

Subjccu.Progrtm Enluaiiofl en^-Oit'e Services for ihe ADD Services Syttem'(RFP'202l>dDAS-Ol-FROCR*OI)

Notice: Thb a|rt«mtni tnd all.of its ituchmcftii iKatl bKonte pgWic upon tubniiuion to (iovcmor tod,
'  ' Cxecujivc Ceuoci) for ipprbvtl. AnjrlBfornuiionthaiilprivlU.Cvnrideniillorpropricurymiui

be clurix idcftiified to lltv e^cncf «nd iiittd to in Mriiin^ prior to i<tnin| the conirici.

ACRCCMCNT

The Slate of hfcw Hampehlre end the Centneior hereby meiuelly ifrrc at follovra:

CCNERAU PKOVISIONS

1. IDtKTIflCATION.

I.I .Slate Afen^Name

NCM HtmpehlrrPcponrneni ofHealih and Human Servlcci

1.2 State AiencyAddreis

iT^Pl'tuaAi Street
Concord.Nil 03]0I-)I57

'1.0 Comtieior Name

ArVsnaos Foundation for Medical Care, Inc.

(.4 Contractor Add/tit

1020 Wcji 4lh Street

Linic Rocti. AR7220)

I :i Contractor Phone

Number

(S0I)2I2-86I0

I'.S Account Number

03-W5-092-Wb5l0.
.3382;05-095-092w
920510.3384

1.7 Compltliotx Dale

;unc30.-2022

i.l Pricc'Litnitalion

$801,700 .

1.9 CofiirtCiir^OrTiceifor'Sute Agency

Nathan 6. White, Oitecioi

1.10 State Agency Telephone Num.bei

lot Sttneiurei.ir c

I.l) -SieicAgencySigrutujc

Date: OM)}/2020

1.12 and Title orCMitaciot Si|hsiory

Ray Hantey, President and Chief Execuuve ODtcer

Dale: ̂ 1^1^

1.14 Name and Title or.Sute Ageircy Sitnatory'

siineTTr'I.l) Approyil^by.lhc N'.H. Department of AdihinUtrailon, Division of PencMtfjifepplkobltj

By;. Director, On:

I. Id Approval by Ute.Andrney pcneral (Forcr^ Subtiinct and ExcciiiiortiYI/oppfl^a^f)

®7-
OS/10/20

1:17 Approval by the'OoVeinor intl Executive Couneil '(l/fippUehbi*)

b&G Item number: C&CiMeeiing Date;

Page I of4
Confra'cior Ihiiialj

pile -OMiyjnx
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2. S&RVICES TO DC PCRFOK/vieo. The State orwc**
Hampjhifc, tctiag Owotigh the agency Idcmirirt in block I.I
("Slate"), engages conireclor identiricd in block 1.3
("Contractor**} to pcrfom.and.lhc.Cohirvcior shili pcrrorm, the
work or. u!e of gootU, or both, ideniiricd and more panicuUriy
described in the eiuehed EXHIBIT 0 which is incorporated
herein by reference (" Scfviccs").

3. EFFECTIVE OATE/COMPLETlON OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, ano subject to the approval of the Governor and
Ciecviive Council ofthe State of New Hampshire, ireppllcable.
this Agreement, and all obligiiions ofihe p^iei hcicundcr. shall
become effective on the date the Governor and Executive
Courtcil approve this Ag'ccmenl a^s irtdieaied in block 1.17,
unless no such approval H required, in which case the Agreement
shall become crTcciive on the daic.the Agreement is signed by
the Slate Agency as shown in block 1.13 ("EfTeciivc Oatc'1.
3.2 If Ihe Contractor commences Ihc Services prior to the
Effeciivc Oisic. all Services perfoimed by the Conuicior prior to
the EfTeciive Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
ConpBCtor, and in the cveni that this Agreement does not become
erfective. the State shall have no liability to ihe Comraeior,
including without limiialion, any obligalion to pay the
Conlraciof for any costs Ineurr^ or Serviccj pcfformcd.
Contrecibr must complete all Services by (he Completion Dale
spccifitd In block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all oblipiions of the Stale heteundcr, ineluding.
without limitation, the continuance of payments hercunder, arc
contingent upon the availability end comiitued appropiiaiiott of
funds effecied by any stale or federal legislative or executive
action that reduces, eliminates or otherwise modincs the
appropriation or avallabiliry of funding for this Agreement and
the Scope for Services provided in EXHIBIT'O. in whole nr in
pari. In no event shall the State be liable for.any paymcitis
hercunder in'excess of such available appropriated funds. In the
evertt cf e reduction or termination of appropriai^-d funds, Ihc
State shai) have the right to withhold payment until such funds
become available, if ever, and thill have the right to reduce or
lerminaie the Services under this Agreement immediately upon

. giving the Contractor notice of such reduction or termination.
The Stale shall not be required to transfer funds from any other
account or source to the Account idcniined in block 1.6 in the
event funds in that Account rve reduced or unavailable.

5.CONTRACT FRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/

PAYMENT.

5. i The contract price, method ofpayment, and terms of payment
ere ideniiried and.iTrore particularly described in EXHIBIT C
which is incotporiied herein by reference. -
S.l The payment by the Sibic of the contract price shall be the
only end. (he complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by (he Contractor In the
performance hereof, and shali be the or^.ly and the complete

compcnsaiio(> 10 the Contractor for the .Services.'The State shall
have no liability to (he Contractor other than the contract price.
5.3 The State icKrvcs the right to oflkt from any amourtts
otherwise payable to the Coniractbr under this Agreement those
liquidated amounu required or permined by N.H. RSA 80:7
through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision oflaw.
5.4 Noiwithsiaitding any provision in ihis Agrecriicni to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumsiancei, in no
event shall (he total of all payments aulhorieed, or eciuelly made
hercunder, e.tc<cd the Price Limitation set forth in block 1.8.

6. COMPl.lANCE RV contractor WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

d.1 In cunneciion with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all applicable sitiutcs, laws,
regulations, and orde'rt of federal, slate, counly or municipal
auihortiics which impose any obligalion or duly upon Ihc
Contractor, including, but (tot limited to, civil lights end equal
employment opportunity laws. In addition, if this. Agreement is
funded in any part by monies ofihe United Stata, the Coniracior
shall comply with all federal executive ordcn, rules, regulations
and statutes, end wiihany rules, regulations and guidelines is the
Stale or the United Slates issue to implement these regulations.
The Contraclbr iKall alsb comply with ail applicable Intellectual
property laws.
6.3 During the term ofthis Agreement, the Contractor shall not
discriminxic against employees or applieants for employment
because of raee. color, religion, creed, age. sex, handkap. sexual
orientation, or rtaiional origin and will take affirmative action to
prevent such discrimination.
6.3. The Coniracior agrees lO permit the State or United Stares
access to any of (he Conirocior's hocks, records and accounts for
Ihc purpose of osccrtoining compliance with all rules, regulations
and orders, and the covenants, terms and conditions of this
Agreement,

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 TheConirteior shall at its own expense piovitJc all peoonnel
necesse^ to perform the Servkes. The Contractor warrants that
all personnel engaged in (he Services shall be qualified to
perform (he Services, and shall be properly licensed and
otherwise authorized 10 do so under all applicable lows.
7.3 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the icrnt of
(hit Agrtemcnt, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7. the Coniracior shall not hire, and
shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with %v1tom it is engaged in a combined cffoh to
perform (he Seivlces to hire, any person who is a State employee
or offtclal. ^vho is tnateriolly involvxd in Ihe procurement,
administration or performance of this Agreement. This
provision ihall survive teiminiiion of this Agreement.
7.3 The CofltroctingOmccf specined InblKk 1.9. or his or her
successor, shall be the Stale's representative. In the event "of any
dispute concerning the intcrprcialion of this AgrcerruAl, the
Contracting OfHccr't dcc'tslon shall be rtnal for the State.

Page 2 ofd
Coniracior Initials

Datc'.OM) 030.
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8. eVCNTOF OEFAlltT/ReMXpIES.
8.1 Any onc-or morc-orihe rollowing tctt or omiuiont of ihc
Contrscior shell coiuiiiure tn cVcniof.dcliuU'hertundcr ("Evcm
.orOcfoyli");
8.1.1 fiilurc 10 perfgrm, the Services uiiifKioriiy or on
schedule;

8.1.2 failure'io submji ony rcpon required hereunder; end/or
8.1.3.failure lo,perform any olher'covvnini, term or condition of
this Atrecmeni.
8.2 Upon .Ihc occuxTTflcc of any Evrni of Ocfiuli, (he Sinic moy
uke any one; or iTMr'erorall. of Ihc following oc'dons;
8.2.1 give llie Contractor a uTlrtcn notice specifying die Event of
Oefault and requiring it to be remedied within, iii the absence of
a ireaierorleuer tpecificBtionoflirrte. thirty (30) days from the
date ofthe notice; and if the Evtrti ofDefaiitU is no; limcly cured,
Icrmihaic this'Agreement, effective two (2) days aAer giving the
Contractor notice of urrninaiion;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a wrinen notice specifying the Event of
dcftuli and suvjknding all payrne'nu to be' rrta'dc under this
Agreemem*and ordering that the ponion of the contract price
.whieh would oihcrwisc' accroc; to. ihe.Contracihr during the
pcrtod.fVoni the date of such notice until such time as the Stele
dticrmmcs that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid to the Contractor',
8.2.3 givc'^'c Contrqcidr a mincn nolice specifying the Event of
Ocfault and set off ttgainst any oihcr.qbllgtuio.ns the State may
owe loathe Cqhtractor.iyiy damages, the State suffers by iresoo of
any Everii ofOefauTi; and/or
8.2.'4 give Ihc Controctor.a wrinen notice specifying the Event of
befautl, (real the .Agreement as breached, teVminiie the
Agreement and pursue any of its remedies at low or in equity, or
both.

8.}. No faiiurcby the State to enforce any provisions hctcorDfleV
aKy'Evcnt'of .O.cfisu)i sha)l_^.dcerTKd a.waiver ufits rights with
regard.to (hat Event of Default, or priynubsciiucni Evchj^of
Ocfa'uit.ipNq'capresi failure to enforce a/iyEvchi of Default shall
be decmed-8 waiver'of tl^e" right of tKc' State lb .enforce each and

.'.all of the provisiotu'hereof upon any Ainher or oihcr Gvtm of
Oefaiiii on thc.pan oftte'^iracior.

^9. TERMINATION. • !.

9.1 Notwithsianiiing paragraph 8. the State may. at its sole
discf.ctibn; leimlnoie "the Agrecmcni-fqr any reason, (n whole or
In pan, by thirty (30) days wrlrien nqiicc ip'the Contra.c.tor that
iKc State"Is exercising its option lo'ierminaiVthe Agreement.
.9.2 In the event ofpn early icrrTtiniileii df ihis 'Agrcemem for
any rcoson .other than-the complcli'oh of iIk .Services, the
Conirectqr- shall, at .the 'Sute.'s discrielion. .deliver to the
Cpniraclmg drrtccr. noi later than riflceh(l'S) days aAcr ihe'dali;
of, itVrniiu'iicm, .0 repp.H.f'Tc'rrh.inaiion Report") 'describing in
deisil all S'eryicet,pcfforrncd. and the c'ontrecl prkc eaimd. i6
and including'ihc-doi'c of ii'rm'm'aiio'n. The form, subject mailer,
conicn'i,:and fliimber.of copies .of i^:Tctminatioh Report'shall
^ ideniiMl.tp those ̂  Final Report dt^ribed in the enached
EXHIBIT B. In addition, Bt)hc"SuitW,discretion, th'c Comractor
shall; ..within IS days of notice of eitrly lerminatioh, develop and

Pogc

submit IQ the State a I'ransiiion Plan for icrvjcei under the
A'gieemeni.

10. OATA/ACCeSS/CONFIOENtlALITW '
PRESERVATION. . ' ,
jO.I As used in this Agreement, the*word "data" shall munall
inrorroaiion and things developed or obtainetl during the'
perforrrunce of; or acquired or developed by reason of. this
Agreement, including, hut not limited to..ell itudict. reports,
files, formulae', surveys, maps, pharu. sound reeordlngii vidM
recordings, pictorial reproductions, dra.wings.'a^lyjts. graphic.
rcpicKniations. com'puicr prog'rams.'c'om'puicr printouts, notes.
leneVs, memoranda, papers, artd documenlt, all v^eiher
nnished or unfinished.
10.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the State or purehas^ with funds provided for ihai.purposc
under this Agreement, shall bc'ihe properfy of the Slat^ and
shali.bc retumcd.io the State upon demand or'upon lerminaiion
of i.his Agreement for any reason.
lOJ-Confidcntiality of data shall be govcmediby N.H. RSA

.chiptei 9t-A or'bihey eiiuing law. 'Disclosure ofdata requires
prior tvriitcn,approval of the State.

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE.STATt. In the
^rfo.rmancc.of thIs.Agrcemeiti ihciConiractor.'is In^ali respects
an Independent contractor, and is' neither , an agent noi *an>
employee of Ihc State. ,,Nciiher ihc'...Conirictor nor any of tii
ofT'cers. ctnployces, ageni'i or members shall have authority to
bind ihc State or receive any'bencrits, ivorhcrs' compcitsation or
other emoluments provided by the Stoic'lO iis.crhploye'n. .

|2..A$SCCN.VI.ENT/pEI^CATlO.N/SUBCO,NTRACIS.
12.1. The Contnictor .ehaij not assign, oV bthefwjse'lrsnsrcr any'
imcl«i,in.ihis Agrecr^ni without the prior'wrille'n.twlce, which
shall be provided to the State ai least; flRccn f I Sj.days prior to
the assigni^ni, and a svrintn consent of the State. For.purposcs
of iKis paragraph,- a *. Change pf Conirpl shall '.cbnslnuie
aMignmcnt, "Change ;of -Cemror- me'eni. '(a) merger,-
'contbiidstion, qr'a irajiuciipn or scries of relbred trarisaciions In.
which a thlrd>pbn^. together with' its alTiHatej.-'becomes the
diftct^pr indirect;o'wner pf fifty percent (3.0%) or.riiore of the
voting shores or sirnilar'equity interests,'or corhbined/yotSng
povver of (he Coniracior, pr.(b).ihe sok of all or tubsiantiaily ell
of the aoscri of the Co niraciix..

12.2 None pf The Services shall be subcontracted -by Ihe-
Conirieibr without prior written.noiicc,oti;d cbrueni of the.Siatc.
The State is cniiilcd to copies'bf all subcorttracU'end usignmeni.
.agreements an'd.shali nbi.be bound.by.any provisions'conioin^'
.in a subconiraci or an assignment agreenknl to whjch li)s hot a]
part)-- ' '•

yl3. INDEMNIFICATIpjN. Unless otherwise c.eemptcd!by'liw.-
the Contractor shell indemnify and.,hbld hii'rmle'ia ^e'Sinte, jti.
orficcrrand employers.'frum and tgamst any'ond fill'cialms',
liabiliiies'.and costs' fbr ahy pc.rson'aj Injury or projkify'darnagcs^
patent or copyrighi'.irtiringement. or oihcr.ctaimi asse'rtcd against.
;ihe Swiei iu officers'pr.employccs, which arise ouVqf(or:>||i,tch'
may be c'iaimed to arise .out 'oO .the acis .6i o.initilp^qj'the:

3,of4
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ConlraCior, or lubconlreetort]* inclvdin| but not limited lb ibc
rtesligerKc./ocklctt or inteniionel.cbnduct. The'Stete shall not
be liable'.ror any com incurred by the'Comrwior aritini under
thiipBrsgriph 13. Nt^thSiD.nding the foregoing, nothini hereto
coRidlrted shall be deemed to conuiiute • waiver of ihc sovereign
Irnmumty ofthc Slaic. which imrnunlty is'henby reserved to the
State. This covertant irt parairoph li) shall survive the
termination of this Agrecmctii.

14. INSURANCC.

>4.1 The .Comracior'sKaTi, at its sole espcnse. obiiln and
conilnuously .maintain in foree. and slull requite -any
lubcbhinclo/ or uiigncc to obtain and maintain In force, the
foitowing iniunincc:
14.1.1 commercial general Uabllliy insanince against all cioims
of.bodily inju7, death or property'damage,'in amounis of not
lus than Sl.000,000 per occunence and S2,000.000 aggregate
cVcxc'eti; and

14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering Mi property
subject tu lubptrigniph 10.-2 herein, in an amoirnt not less than
SOH of the whole replaccrrKnt value of (he property.
14.2 The'pojicies.dcK'ribcd.insubparagraph 14.1 hmin shall be. .
on policy forms and ertdorscmeots approved for use in the State
of New Hampshire^by ihe'N.H..Ocparimeht of insurance, and
.issued by inturcrs.ijcenkd in the'Sraic'qf.New Hampshire.
14j the Goniracior ihaii'fumish lo'ihc Coniiacilng'OfTide.r
ideniified in block 1.9, or his or her,successor. B-ceftificiicfs) of

.'insurrtncc for-ail Insurance-rcquirad under this Agreement.
•Comraciaf shall.altq furnish to the Contracting'OrTiccr.ilSefttiftcd
in block 1.9; or,his or i<r. successor. certirics(e(s) of insurance
' for all rencwa((s) of insurance requir'cd under this Agrccme^nl no

later than' ten (10) days prior to ihc'cxpiroiion -d&ie of each
insurance- policy. TIk ccfiifKaiefs). of Inwrance and any
renewals ihercurshafl be anachcd and arc incorporated herein by
rcrcrtncc, •

15. WORKERS' COMPENSAtlON.
■IS.I By..sljBhlng',iHis agrixmehj.-i.he Contriciot "agws; certifies,
and Morrahis.ihat ihe Conirocior!ii in compliance with or exempt
frorn. the requirtrnenispf N.H. RSA'chapter 2!|'A ("il'orlrrjr"
Coit'pffJOlioii"),
15.2 to.ihc extent ihc Coniracror is subjwt to the requirtmenls
ofN.H. RSA chapter 281;A. Goniracior shall meiniiin, and
rcqtrirc-any. subeoniracior-or assignet.'io secure ant) .maintain,
paymeni 'of Workcra" fofn^pehsatioii' 'In epnneciion with
DCii'vities tiitich ihcperfon proposes 10 undcneke pursuant I'o this

• Agrteme.nt. Tbc'.CbhifWior'shsllftjr'nijhiheConiractingOnieef
identified in-btock 1.9, or his nr hcr-succtssor. ptoorofWorke/s'
Cdmpensaiipn' in the. manner dcKribed,^ in N.H. RSA .chapter
'381-A and any applicable-rcncwalfs) thereof,'whlt^h shall be
attached .and are Incorporate herMtt by reference. The State
shall 'not .be. respqnsibl.c for payrne'ni of any .Workers'
'Compcnsoiion premiums or for any oilier claim.or bencfit-for
.ContrKtor, or Tmy, 'su^hiractor,or 'employee '.o_f Centractpr,
which might arise under applicable State of New Hampibirc
Worttm'" -Cornpcnsaiipn 'lavrt :lrt cohncciion with the
performatKc of the Services under this Agreement.

16. NOTICE. Any notice by a pa(ty|hcNio to'the other party
shall be deemed,to have been duly delivered or given'tu the time -
Ofmallirtg by ccrtilied mail, postage prepaid, in a UnitU States
Post O.ITice addressed to, the panics at the addreuct given' In
blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

17. AMCNOMtiVT. This Agrttmeni may be amertd'ed.'wiiived
or discharged only by ai> iniifumcrii in'''wriiin'g sighed by the
panics hereto and only tOer approval of tuch -amcndmcni,
waiver or discharge by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire urslcts no. tuch approval is reejulrcd
under ihc circumtianccs pursuant to SiDte'iaw.-nil.e or policy.

I«. CHOICE OF LAW aNO FORUM. This,Agreement shall
be govtrned. interpreted end consirvcd in accordance with
laws of the Slate ofNew Hampshire, and is bihding.upon
inures to the beneni.of the pa/Htes and their respective succcssora
and asiigh). The wording used in this Agreemcm it.the wording .
chosen by Ihc parties to express their mutual intent, and r>o rule
of cbrsstruclion shall bc'applied against oV in favor of any party.
Any'actioru arising out of ihis Agreement shall belbroughl and
maintained in New Hampshirt Superior Court whkh shell have
exclusive jurisdiction thereof.

19. CONFLICThNC TERMS. In the event of.a. conflict
between Ihc terms of.ihis P>37 form-(&s modified in EXHIBIT
A) and/or aiiachments wd amcrtdntchi thereof,tihe terms of the
P-37 (as modified in EXHIBIT A) Shall control.

20.' THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not inter>d to
benefit any third prirties and ihis_ Agrccittent .shall not be
.construed to confer any such benefii;

21. HEADINGS. The-hcadings throughout the Agreement ore
for leferencc purposes only, and the. words conipiriet) therein
shall in rjo ^'y be-hcld to explain.'^mpdify, amplify or eld In the
interpieiailon. consiruciion or'mcaning'of jhc provisions of this
Agreement,

22. SPECIAL PROVIStpNS. A'ddiilonai or rripdifying
provisions set'forth in ihe'citached EXHIBIT A ere incorporated
herein by reference:

23. StVEltABILITV. Inthccvcnianydfihtpirowsions.pfthis
- A^remrm|iuc held by a court of compejcni jurisdiction to be'

contrary lo'any state or federal law, the remaining provisions of
this Agrcemeni wjII remjin in fylt force.antl efTect.

24. EfyTIRE ACREEMENTj This Agfcc'm'cni,.which may be.
cxeeiited in o number of counierp(^s,- fQch of tvhich'sholl be
deemed .an original, constitutes-the entire ogreemeni and
'.undeVsianding between the' parties,- and supersedes ail prior
'aigrccfflcnu and undcrsiandings with respect to the subjec.i matter
hereof. ' -

Pagcdofd
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New'Harrfpshlre popartment of Health and Human Services
Program Evaluation and Data Siervlces for the Alcohol and Other Drug
(AObl SeiVlces System" EXHIBIT A

REVISIONS TO STANDARD CONTRACT PROVfSIQ^S

1. Revlslohis to Fonn:P-37, General Provision's

1.1. Paragraph 3. Effective Dale/Completion of Services, is amended by adding
subparagraph 3.3 as follows;

■3.3.. Thepa'rlies may.exlend the Agreement for up to two (2) additionaryears
from the Connpte|ion Date, contingenl upon satisfactory delivery of
services; available funding, agreemeni of ihe- parties, and required
governmerilal^app/oval.

1.2. .Paragraph 12] Ass'lgnment/Delegalion/Subcontracts. is amepded by adding
subparagrBph'12.3asfoilows: ' '
1'2-.3. iSubcohtractors are subject to the same conir'aclual conditions as the

Contractor and the Corilraclof is responsible to ensure ;subc.on.traclor
■' compiiance with, those condilioris. The Contractor shall" have written

agreements wilh at! siib^nlractors. specifying the workTo t>e peilbfmed
•and how. corrective action shall be managed if the subcontractor's

.  performance is Inadequate. The Contractor shall 'manage the
isubconlractor's performance on an oh'going basis and take .cbrrective
laction as necessary. The Contractor shall anriualiy provide iHe State with

.  , .8 list of all subconiraclprs provided for under this •Agreement arid .no'lify
ithe State 0! ar^y inadequate; subconlractor performanpe:

fTt

FovndiUoA to* MsflicAl Cire. inc.

. RPP-207v80AS-0^-PhoGR;0l P*Oe 1 oi 1
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OocuSlgn Er>v«k>p« ID: l'97C1fiBt-2B8(ME35-950r-6AOF3O01B0eP

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Program Evaluation and Data Service's for the'Alcohol and Other Drug
(AGO) Servlces.System EXHIBIT B

Scopa of Services

1. Statement of Work

1.1. The ConUactdr shall ensure services are available Statewide.

1:2. Th'e 'Cohtractor shall manage proje'cts ulinzing platforms that support de'tail^
project-management and careful monitoring of timelines and notificalion sysjems
Induding, but not limited lo:

1.2.1. Salesforc^.

1.2.2. WpfkZone®.

1.3. Program Evaluation

1.3.1. The Contractor shall prpyidp evaluation support and services to the
Bureau's contracted prevention, early-intervention, treatment and recoveiV
supports programs, as directed by the Department and as required by
federal and state funding sources. -Supports and setvices shall include, but
not be limited to:

1.^3.1.1. Program evalualions.lo assess the performance of a program el
all stages of development from selection to Implerriehtation.

.  1.-3.1.2. Process evaluations .to ensure program fidelity'by assessing
whether a prograrn or process is implemented, as.designed or
operating as intended.

1.3.1.3. Outcome evaluations to examine the results,' either intended or
unintended, of a program'sdelivery.

1.3..2, The Contractor shall develop and utilize methodologies and resources, In
coi.taboratibn with, and as approved b'y. the Department, to assist in
evatuaiing programs;

1.3.3. The .pbhlraclaf shall complete a'process for ah .Independent Peer Review
(IPR) as fe.qulred,.through the Substance Abuse Prevention and Treatcnenl
BlObk Grant'(SABG).

' 'l.3.'4. The Co.ntra.ctor sHaii participate' in federal 'evaluation .weblnaf's 'associated
with Ih'e Departrherit's -awarded federal grants, .as Jdenlified by The
Department: .

1.3.5. The.Coniractpr shall develop evaluation documents and reports, required fpr
State ̂ and fe'deral grants, as requested by .and In c6ns''ultaTioh 'with' the

. Department, including, but not lirniled-to:

-  'i.3.5'.l. ' pernonstfajed progress in rneeting staled goals.

1,.3.5.2. -, An explanation of challenges and successes-that.coriinbuied
• Ihe outcomes.

A/Xinui Fpundoton'fo/^iUlCfirc. lAC. ExftbilB

RFP-202t-80AS-0)PftCXj.Rrbl Page 1ol6
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OocuSlgnEnvotopo ID: 197C1«BU2BBD^E35-S60F-8AOF3O0lB08F

New Hampshire OaparV^ent of Health and Human Services
Program Evaluation and Data Services for the Alcohol and Other Qrug
(ADD) Services System EXHIBIT B

1.3.5.3. Identification of opportunities for' Improvement In evaluation
•efforis.-

1.4. !Data Cdlle'ction. Analysis, Interpretation. Reporting, and'Support
1.4.1'. The .Cdhtractor shall assist and support the Department in the' coiiectlor>.

analysis', interpretation, and reporting of data related to the .Alcohol and
Other Drug (AOO) Continuum of Care (CoC) System for .(he purposes of
Improving artd Informing isubsiance misuse policies, programs, and
practi^s.

'-'1.4.2. The Contractor -shall ensure all client4evei data disseminated is de-
identified and in aggregate format.

'1.4.3. The Contractor shall ensure data collection, analysis, interpretation,
repo'rting ahd support activities Include, but are not limlleditd:

1.4.3.1. Assigning lead and secondary analysts to the given'task-.

1.'4:3.2^ IdentTfyIng methodologies for data collection.

•  1A3.3. Working closely with the Departmeril and federahpartners to
.etisure reporting responsibilities are clear.

1.4.3.4. Identifying reporting requirements for stale and federal funding
sources.

1:4:3.5.' Gathering and compllirig relevant substance misuse info'rrtiation
and data.

'1.4.3.6.. Analyzing and .translatirig data jhio a variety of formats by
Mtil'zing:

1.4.-3.6.i. Slatistical eignill.cance testing:

■ 1.4.-3.6.2. SAS® for all data analyses.

1.4.3.6;3. Various'Statislical techniques including.'but not limited
'■ to: '

1.4.3.6.3.1. Uniyariate descriptiye-statistics.'and mearis, .

.1.4:3.6.3.2. Repeated measure.a.n^ses. and
'i.-4.3;6.'3.3.- Mulliyariale stalistica.l analyses.

1:4.3.7. . Facilitating the collection arid reporting of data including,- but hot
limited to. creating a'.data.profile vyilh regards to a subset pf'the
larger 'population .Who are at greater 'risk .of. developing a.
.substance .use'disorder (SUO) o'r, by pfoxlmiiy, are ai.aVgfeater
risk.of the consequences of individuals with 8'5UD. -- .v

-ArhOAUi.Foim49tion(9('M4ic«lCsre. inc.

rilFp.202l:SOAS-0»-PRpGR-0l ' P«9« 2.0'«
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Servtcee
Program Evaluation and Data Services for the Alcohol and Other Drug
(AOD) Services System EXHIBIT B

1.4.3.6. Inlegraling quality data assessment procedures into regulardata
mar^agement practices including, but not limlied to independent
analysis of the regular data management practices.

1.4.3.9, Developing and providing a comprehensive summary report that
provides clear Interpretations of the survey findings which
includes, but.is not limited to:

•  1.4.3.9.1. A surrtmary report of aggregate,, de-idenirfied client-
level data. . •

1.4.3.9.2. Narrative responds ar^ graphical Illustrations, and
preparing documents as determined and requested by
the Oepartnrienl.

1.4.3.10. Providing technical assistance in areas related to data collection
' and reporting as needed.

1.4.4. The Contractor shall design, publish, and provide data reports in user-
friendly and accessible formats that visually represent rmdings. as directed
by the Department Including, but not limited to:

1.4.4.1. Data summaries.

1.4.4.2. Profiles.

1.4.4.3. Dashboards.

1.4.4,4. Charts.

1.4.4.5. Graphs.

1.4.4.6. Tables.

1.4.5. The Conlractor shall utilize agile software, systems, and tools approved by
the Department to analyze quantiiative and qualitative data including, but
not limited to:

1.4.5.1. REDCep"* for data collection

1.4.5.2. SAS® for all data analyses.

1.4.6. The Contractor shall ensure privacy by using established rules and
requirements controlling and safeguarding. dala and its access,-
transmission, receipt, storage, maintenance, and use.

1.5. NH Youth Risk Behavior Survey

1.5.1. The Contractor shall provide administrative assistance to the Department
for the implementation of the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention
(CDC) NH Youth Risk Behavior Survey (YRBS). which includes, but is not
limited to:

AAon&os FounOetion'rorMtdlcal Care. Inc. ExhIMB
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OocuSIgh Eflvetope 10; 197C19Bt-2BBD^E3&-980F-8ADF3001B06F

:New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Program Evaluation arKi Data Services for the Alcohol and Other Drug
(AOD) Services Systern EXHIBIT B

1.5.1.1. Assisting the Oepanment with creating the survey Including, but
not limited to:

1.S.I. 1.1. Providing- Input in survey question selection, as
requested by the Department;

1.5.1.1.2. Validailrtg questionnaire and answer options:

1.5.1.1.3. Formatting survey in compliance' with printer
requlrernenis; and

1.5.1.1.4. Ensuring the Final document is press-ready PDF.'

1.5.1.2. Printing, delivering and distributing approximately 45,000 paper-
based surveys to more than 80 participating public high schbots
statewide, formatted in accordance with the requirements of the
CDC and the Department, in booklet form; ,

1.5.1.3. Collecting and scanning completed surveys in.a confidential and
secure manner as approved by the Department;

1.5.1.4. Developing a dean daiaset of coded results utilizing coding rules
approved by the Department;

1.5.1.5. Providing a codebook for the clean dataset.

1.5.1.6. Providing the data to the Department in a clean data file in ASCII
format ensuring (hat any protected health information (PHI) or
sup data included in the reports is disclosed in accordance with
staie rules, state and federal laws, including the requirements of
42 CFR Part 2; and

1.5.1.7. Providing consullalion and information regarding the clean data
format and results.

t .5.2. The Contractor shall provide YRBS evaTuaiion interpretation and translation
of raw data into a useabie report for school level and/or regional level
reports for the Oepartmeni and its providers, as requested.

1.6. Initial Planning

1.6.1. The Contractor shall conduct a virtual project.kick-off meeting with the
Department and identified project staff within 20 business days of the
contract effective date to review proposed project deliverables for all scope
outline in Section 1, Scope of Work.

1.6.2. The Contractor shall provide an initial work plan and timeline to the
Department that defines the goals, objectives, activities, deliverables, arid
due dates for each scope of work to the Department for approval, the
Contractor shall:

1.6.2.1. Provide the initial work plan to the Department, no later than
^  days after the kick-off meeting..

A/KBna9» Foundation (or Medkci Core. Inc. EihioHB Ccnutao/ tntiitii RH
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Program Evaluation and Data Services for the Alcohol and Other drug
(ADD) Services System EXHIBIT B

1,6.2.2. Ensure changes to wortt plans or timelines receive Department
' approval prior to implementation.

1.6.3. The Coniractbr shall create and deliver a Health Disparities impact
Sl'aterhent to the Department within 10 days of the kick-off meeting that
aligns with the project work.plan in order to measure the reduction in health
disparities, determine effectiveness across programs, in order that future
reviews can be measured against the Health Disparities Impact Statement.
The Contractor shall ensure health disparities assessed, arid measured
include, tiul are not limited to:

1.6.3.1. Client access to care.

1.6.3.2. Utilization.

1.6.3.3. Outcomes across individuals by:

1.6.3.3.1. Race.

1.8.3.3.2. Gender.

1;6.3.3.3. Age.

^  1.6.4. The Contractor shall contact each program to be evaluated, at the direction
of Deparlment. In order to: .

1.6.4.1. . Discuss the evaluation protocol;

1.6.4.2. Identify any special circumstances or process adjustments
needed: and

1.6.4.3. Schedule training on REOCapTM and the data collecllon tootS;

1.6.5. the Contractor shall develop and submit the' Data Cotle'ctlon arid
Management plan, data collection templates, project reporting templates,
and YRBS projeci plan for the Department's review,and approval within the
first 30 days of the contract.

2. Exhibits Incorporated

2.1. The Contractor shall compiy with ;all Exhibits D through K. which are attached
hereto,andjncofporated by tefererice herein.

3- Reporting Requirements

3.1. The Contfaclor shall provide written methodologies for proposed activities to the
Qepartment, vi^en appropriate and when requested, for approval pnor to
Irnplemeniihg such activities.

.3.2. Ttie-Contractor shall conduct and complete an IPR of not fewer than five (5%)
percent of the entities coriuacted with the Slate to provide SUD treatment
seryices; per slate fiscal year, which'Is from July 'l-June-30.,as required througl
the SABG. This includes, but is'nol iimited to: *

Arkansas Fpun<S«tton lor MePtca'Care. Inc. ExNbil S
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New Hampshire Department of Heajth and Human Services
Program Evaluation and Data Services for the Alcohol and Other Drug

(AGO) Services System EXHIBIT B ^

3.2.1. Submitting a summary repoa to the Department inciuding, but not limited to
results and findings'related- to the IPR within 30 calendar days following

'•>. completion of the review.

3.2.2. Submitting all Final documents related to the IPR to the Department prior to
June 30th of each state Fiscal year.

''' 3.3. the Contractor shall provide a written monthly progress report to the Department
related to accomplishments ol the contract goais and performance measures, for
each scope of work, which includes, but is not limited to: •

3.3.-1. A summary of the key work performed for each scope.of work during the
monthly period.. .

3.3.2. Encountered and foreseeable key issues and suggested mitigations
strategies for each.

3.3.3. Scheduled work for. the upcoming period.

2A. The Contractor shall complete and submit an end of year report no later than 60-
calendar days after the end of each slate fiscal year, which includes, but Is not
limited to:

3.4.1. A complete program pven/iew. .

3.4.2. Accomplishments towards program goals and performance measures
' linked to outcornes for each scope of work.

3.4.3.. End>of>yearfinancial report.

4. Performance Measures '

4.1. The Department will moniior Co.ntractor performance by requiring that;.

4.1.1. The Contractor responds to 100% of .Department communications wlhin 72
business hours.

4.1.2. The Contractor makes approved changes to work plans and timelirxes within
five (5) business days of receiving approval. 95% of the time.

4.1.3. The Contractor ensures 100% of work products match the approved
methodology for each work product.

4.1.4. The Contractor delivers 65% of work products within the agreed upon
timeframes.

4.2. The Contractor shall actively and regularly collaborate with the Department to
enhance contract management, improve results, and adjust program delivery
and policy based on successful outcomes.

4.3. The Contractor may be required to provide other key data and metrics to-the
Department, including clienl-level demographic, performance, and service dat.^

Arksnsei FouAdoilon/prMedlUlCoa). Inc. ExhlUit 6
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New'HampshIre Dopartment of Health and Human Services
Program Evaluation ar^d Data Servlcos for the Aicohol and Other Drug
(ADD) Services System EXHIBIT B

4.A. .\|^ere applicable, the Contractor shall collect and share data, with the
. bepartrnent in a format specified by the Department.

S. Addltiohal Ter^s

5^1. Impaet&.ReaultIng from Court Orders or Legislative Changes

S.l.'l. the Contractor agrees thai, to the extent future state or federal legislation
or court-orders may have an. impact on the Services described herein, the
State has the right to modify Service priorllies'and expenditure requirements
under thls.Agreement so as to achieve compliance therewith. ^

5.2. Federal Civil Rights Laws Compliance: Culturally and Linguistically
Appropriate Programs and Services

■5:2.1. The Goptractor shall subrnll. within ten |10) days of, the contract effective
date, a detailed description of the -communication access arid 'language
assistance'services they will provide to-ensure nheaningful access to their
programs and/or services to persons .with limited English proficiency,
people who are deaf or have hearihg-ioss, are blind or have low vision, or
who have speech chailenges:

5.3. Credits and.Copyright (^nershlp
5.3.1. All docurrients, notices, press releases, research reports .and. other

^  .materials prepared during or resulting from the performance of the services
.of the Contract, sliail include the^following statement, 'The preparation of
'this "(reporl, document etc.) was/inancfed under a. Contract with the State of
•New Hampshire, Department of Health arid Human Servicfes, with funds
•provided in part by the Slatc.^of filew Hampjshire and/pr.-su.ch-oiher funding
soucces ai.were.available of required, 'e.g.. the United-StVtes pepartmeni
of Health'and Hufhari Services.'

-"S.,3.2. .All materials produced or purchased under-the .coniract shai) have prior-
.approval fforn"J,he' be'partmen( before priniing, production, ••distfibylion or
use.; • ' ►

.5:3:3. The .Department shall retain copyright ownership for'any .and'ell ioriginal
materials produced, including.-but riot lirriiied'td:
5,3,3.1. Brochures.
5.3;l2.: iBesource directories.
5:3.3.3. 'Proio'cdls or guidelines.

:5.3:3.4. Posters. " .

5.3.-3.5. -Rep'orts.

■5.3,4. the. Contractor shal[ not reproduce' any materials jDr'oduccb under' th
^cpritiracl v/lthgut'prlor written apprpval'fforn the. Deparirpent.

.Artterises Foundation'ro/ Iriedlcal C8rt,;ine. EiMbii 0
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New Hamjashlre p'epar^nentpYHflalth and Human SGrvices
Program Evaluation and Data Services for the Alcohol and Other Drug
(AOD) Services System EXHIBIT B

6. Records

6.1. the C.Of^lVactor shall keep records thai include, but are not limiled to:

6.1.1. Books, records, documer^ls and other elecl/onic or physical data evidencing
and reflecting ell costs.and other expenses incurred by the Contractor In the
performance of the Contract, and all income received or collected by the
Contractor.

6.1.2. All 'records must be mainlained in accordance with accounting procedures
and practices, which sufficiently and'^propedy reflect all such costs .and
expenses, and vyhich are acceptable to the Department, and to Include.

'  .withoul limitation, all ledgers, books. records. and original evidence of costs
such 'as purchase requlsitiphs and orders, voucfiers, requisitions for
thalerials. inventories, valuations of in-kind cdnthb'utions. labor time cards,
payrolls, and other records requested or required by the Department.

6.1 During'the term of this Coniracl and the period for retention hereunder, the
Depa'flment, the United States Oepartrnent of Health and Huirian Services, and
eriy of their designated representatives shall have access to all reports and
records maintained pursuanfio the Contract for purposes of audit, examination,
excerpts and transcripts. Upon the purcha^ by the Department cf-lhe maximum
hCimber of units provided for In the Coniract and upon' payment of the price
limilafioh hereunder. lhe Contract end all the obligations of the parties hereunder
(except such lobligations as. by .the terms of the Contract are.-to be .perfofmed
after the en^ pf the term .of this Contract and/or survive the termination of the
Contract) shail terrriinate. provid.ed however, that if, upon fevieyr of'the FJnal
EJ^endliurecReporl the Department shall disallow any expenses, ciajrmed'by the
Contractor 'as costs hereunder the Department shall retain the .fighl, at Its
discretion, to>deducl the amount of such ejtpenses. as are disallowed or to
.feccver such sums from the Gontraclor.

AAiftsai Foundation for Medicol Care. Inc. EmiOil 8
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Now Hampshire.Depar^ent of HeaUh and Human Services
Program 'Evaluation and Data "Services for the Alcohol and Other Drug
-(ApD)Serylce8jSyste.m EXHIBIT C

■ Payment Terms

1. This Agreement is funded by:

1.1. 16.5% Subs.tance Abuse Preveniiion & Treatment Block Grant.
{SAPTS'G). as awarded on 1Q/.1/2019. by the Oepartmehtbf Heallh'and
Human Service's. Substance Abuse and Menial Health Services
Adminlsiratlon (5AMHSA), Center for Substance Abuse Treatment,
CFDA 93.959. FAIN TI083641.

1.2. -75% Other Funds (Governor's Commission .on Alchohol and Other
Drugs).

1.3. 8.5% General Funds.

2.

3.

4.

Fo.r the purposes of this. Agreement the Department has identified the
Contractor.as' a Contractor, in accordance with 2 CFR 200.330.

Payment shall t>e on a cost reimbursement basis for actual -.expenditures
incurred in the fuinomenl of this Agreement, and shall be in accprdarice wit.K
the.approved.line item, as specified in Exhibit C-1 Budget SFY 202^1 and Exhibit
C-2Bodgets.SFYi022.

The Conlractor.shall submit an invoice in a form'satisfactory to the Stale % the
twentieth (2.0th) working day of'the following month, unless otherwise 'specified,
which Identifies.and re.que.slSTelmburserhent for authorized expenses Incurred
.in the prior month. The Contracior shall ensure the Invoice is completed, dated
and returned to the Department in-order to iriitiate payment.- Inyqices shall-lie,
nei ariy other revenue received" towards the-seryiccs billed in fuifillrnenl o.f this
agreement.

4.1. Backup dc'curh'e'ntaiion shall Include, but is not limited.to:'

■General Ledger, showing, revenue andexgenses for'th.e contract.
Timesheets end/gr limeca.rds signed by both employee, .and
■syperyisdrThai s.uppo.rt.the hours employees worked for wages',
reported under,this contract.

4.1.2.'1. Per 45 "CFR Part 75.430(i)(1) Charges to Federal; awards
for salaries and wages rnysi be based p.n.;rpcords' -.thal'
accurately reflect the work performed.

4.1,3. Per 2 CFR 20,0.4.30.(iii) Lebdr-records must reasonably reflect the
.total activity for .whlchleach employee is cprnpensated, .showing
percentages for lirne .spent.on ectivrties.undcr this'contract .and,
all other activities (totaling no m.ore than 100%).

4.1,"1. .

.4.-1 .'2.

•Arkanus.FMndttlph (or Metfcij Care. Inc. eUtfUi c

RfP-20.2i-B0A$-0j:PR6G4d"t Page 1 o( 3
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5.

New Hampshire Oepa'rtment of. Heatth.and Human'Servlces
ProgrefTi Evaluation and Data Services for the Alcohot and Other Drug
(AOp) Services System EXHIBIT C

4,2, The fojlqy^ng backup documentation may, also be requested as
oeeded:

• 4.2.'^. Invoices-supporting expe.nse.s reported'.

4.2.2. Cost 'center repoils. .subrnltied pr>ly as requested by ,the
Ocpanmeni.

4.'2.3. Profit and loss report, submitted only as requested by the
Department.

In lieu qt hard copies, all invoices may be assigned,an electronic signature and
emaited to"l'nvoicesfDfcontracts@dhh's.nh.Qov. or invoices may be mailed to:

Contract Manager for RFP-2021-BDAS-O1-'PROGR
Department of Health and Human Services
Bureau of Drug' & Aicohoj Services
105 Pleasant Street, Main Bldg.. 3'*'Floor North
Concord! NH 03301

the Sta.le.shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty'(30)jclays of.feceipl
of each invoice, sutjsequent to approval of the submitted Invoice and if

■ suffici.ent funds'afe available, subject to Paragraph 4 of the General Provisions
Form 'NurTi,berP-37'of this Agreerhent

The
contract.complelio.n
Completion Dale.

The Contractor must provide the services in" Exhibit 6. Scope oj Services. In
comp'liartoe'with .funding requirernents.

The'Gontractor agrees that t.uriding under this Agreerheril mayfe withheld, .in
whole b'r'in part in the event of no.n-cpm'pliance with the terms -and condition's
.qf.Exhibit'B, Scope of Serviced

10. ^Nolwithstand.ing anything to the-contrary hereiri, the Cpritr'acipr :agrees .that
'.funding urider this agreement rnay'be withheld, in whole or in part, In the'eve'rit
of hoh-compliafice with any Federal-or Statejaw. rule" or rpguialiqn applicable
.io!the services provided, or if-the said services or -.'producls have not .^en
sialisfaclonry cpmpiet'ed -In accordance with the terms and conditions 'of this
agree.rnenl.

11. Notwithslanding Paragraph 17 of the General Pcoyisio.n.s Form Pr37, chaiiges
•jinijted to 'adjusting arhounts within the price limitation and adjusti.ng
.encunibrences. between State Fiscal Yea'rs and budget class lines through the
Budget Office m;ay b'e "ma.de by writte.o agreement of both parties, without
obtaining -approval of the Governor and Executive Council. If'rieeded and
justified. ̂

6.

7.

8.

9.

final invoice shall be-due to the State no lale.r than forty (40) days after the
Iract.cornplelio.n date specified in Fprrri,'P.-37. General PfovlSion's Block" i .7

AfKDr^as Fou'^ttie.n ror>Ae<IiU> Core. inc. C

•RFe'»2'«:BOASiOr-PRO(3«P» P,«ffe2tf3

Coolftcior tnftidi . 'P(
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New Hampshire Oepartment of Health and Human Services
Program Eyaluation and Data Services for the Alcohol and Other Dmg
(AOD)'Servjces System; EXHIBIT C

12. Audits

12.1. The Cohtractor is required to submit an annual audit to lhe;Pepartment
if any of the following conditions exist:

12.1-.1., Condition A • The Contractor expended $750,000 or more in
"  federal funds received as a subreclpient pursuant to 2 CPf^ Part

200, during the most recently completed fiscal year.

*12.1:2.- 'Condition B • The Contractor is.subject to audit pursuant to the
requirements of NH RSA 7:28. Ill-b. pertaining to charitabPe
organizations receiving syppod of SI,000.000 or more.

12.1.3. Condition C - The Contractor is a public company and required
by Security .and Exchange Comrhission (S^C) regulations to
submit an annual nnahcial audit.

12.2. If Condition A exists, the Contractor shall submit dn annual single audit
performed by an independent Certified Public Accountant <CPA) to the
Department within 120 days after the close of the; Contractor's fiscal
year,-' conducted in-aocordance with the requirements of 2'CFR Pert
200, -Subpart F of the Uniform Administrative Requiremerits, .Cost-
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal awards. ,

12.3. 'If Coridition 6 or Condition.C exists, the Contractor shall subnili '.an
annual Tmancial audit performed by an independerit CPA within 1.20
days after the close of the Contractor's fiscal year.

■y2A. In addition to. and. riot in anyway in lirhitation of obligations of the
Contract, it is understood and agreed by the Cotitra.ctor that the
Contractor'Shall be l;ield liable for any state or federal audit'exceptions
and shall return to the Departrhent all payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been .taken,-or which ^hav.e been
Idiiatiowed.because of such ah exception..

Antonus FoundfOoA (pr ModicAi Cot. inc. C

RFP-292i-eOA541fft(Xr}Ol PspeXXS

Rev. OI/DVIS t'.

CoftUoctor mH '
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OeoiST* O: tsrc 1 te I -2&80uE3S>«60£4AOF300l BMT

CiMbit C-.l

Budeei srrio}!

New Hsmpehire Depanment o( Health and Human Services
Bidder Mama: Arktnta* Foundaticrt lo< Medical Care. Inc.

' Budsai Raqueat (or: 'Progam EvaJuidon and Data SarvJcta (or iha Akehoi arid Olhtr Orug (AOO) Scrvlcei Systam
Budget Period: SFV 2021

.1 i-.v' ' T'• • ■"*/r*T«ial.lirBgrtrTi.C.OAi;-: . '.I TiCorftraet Shate.r'Mitch ,F.uRdA.'By..p.H H S-.ep.njficI •hare.

Ufta.Kirn.«_. . . Direct ^ •ncnctet '• '\.TotJl .XBlf.tt dtre<L'.' '.Tdjat." ■■ .OirirdX Ir^lrect^ ■~':7da.i'.7

t. TotalSatsryhWaoae ". 8 178.785 8 50.784 8  227.547 8 r-- 8 178.783 8 50.764 8 227.547

2. Emptorce % •a.173 S 24.183 8  108.358 8 64.175 8 24,183 .8 108.358

5. ConsuBantt S' 8 •") 8 •X 8 8 8

s 8 1 1  • 8  ■ •1 8

RCftUl 5  ' 8 8 8 8 8  ••• 8

Repair and Mcinicnance S 8 8  :;> 8 8 8 ' • 8.

Purcha >e/Oepra<iaiioA 1 5  •: 8 8

s ■v: 8 8 8

ORIce $ 843 8 := 156 8  699 8  • 8  843 8 156 8 899

8. Travel s 5.703 8 1.0)8 8  7.341 8 8  • 8  • 8  5.703 1. 1.038 8 7.341

$ 10.386 8 ,2.987 8  13.383 8 1  • • 8 5  10.390 8 2.987 8 13.363

8. Currtni Eapcniet s 8 8  *:•. 8  '• 8 8

Tetephona - i '4.538 8 1.301 8  .5.829 8. • 8 •-iiv 8  • 8  4.528 S 1.301. 8 5.029

Pestaoa s 2.»3a 8 015 8  3.053 8 8  2.838 8 818 8 3.85)

8 8  •.• r. .• . 8 S 8

-Audh and legal - J 8  ̂ 8  ' 8' • 8  -> 8 8

lAturanca 8 8  •-». 8 8 8 8

8 8 8  *■ 8  r-* % 8 ■ .♦ 8 ... $

8 13,598 8 . 3.907 8  17.505 8 8 - i 8  13.598 8 3.907 S 17.505

8 •10.321 8 2.985 8  . 13,286 8  - '?> 8 8  10.321 8 2.965 •8' 13.286

11. Slati Education and Training . 8 • 5 • S  • 8 8 •

13. SutKonvadt/Agreemenit 8 •■-r 8 5  • 8 ' rv 8 , 8

13. Other (tpacibc daiaiit mandaioi; -8 ,• 8 8 8  • 8  •. 8 8 8

TOTAL 8 308.885 8 • 1,738 8  397.80t 8  «. 8  • $ 301,885 8 81.7)8 -8 397.«01

X  IttdlrBClAsAPcKWlefDirccJ

A'k*nui FoundaHOA (or Medkal Care. Inc.
ltF_P.2C>21-8OAS;0)-PftOGR-0l
E*hWfC-l
Pate.'l ol I

28,75*

Contractor'inlilaU

pjnOWWO
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DeeuSlon En««lop« rO: t07ClMlw2B&O-4EMrWflF-«AOf3O0tB0eF

EKhibltC-2

Butffet Snr 2022

' Ndw.Hainpfihlre Depirtmenl of Health and Human Sorvicos
BlSdtr Kama; ArkantM FeundaUon for Medical Cart. Inc.

BudacI Raouait lor Pregiih EvaluaUon anil Oau 8er»leta far tha Alcohol and Oihar On^ (AGO} Sarvkrt Sr*tam
Budget FeHod:SFY'202r

Unaltsm •orrtct.

...

SiiLT/.-' 'C\

dnmclor.'Shara.f Match..

Olrecl..' •Incllfacl. 1 '^'-Twal' ;'-*"pira<t>,'V. iSilliy.c.l. .. .. -TiytfJ

'a jj.oss hj MWO101.IM
1. Tow Sabff/Wage* 101.laa

2. gmpioyee Banefita 00.202

3. CdnsuCaMt

» 52.0SS 3 233.2<3
3 34.200 111.021

» r

80.283 S ' -24.709 111.071

S. Suopflca: 3

OMea 003 I6l 723 562 161 733

2.750 700 3.540 2.7SO 700 3.540

13.849
occupancy 10.750 5  3.001 13.040

0. CunaM.Etpcnm

10.780 3.091

Telephone 4.805 5  1.340 0.031 4.065 0.031

2.037 044 3.701 2.0J7, 844 3.701

A>Aili and legal

Board ecpcnaea.
M4.ori $  4.043 10.114 S  14.071

i  IO.870

4.043 i9.114

13.747
10, MarlteilhofCofflrnmiicaUoi 10.679 5  3.080

II. sun Education and Train

13.747

S i-

1 SuOcdnuacia/Agreamerdi

i3.'dther'(spapfic dauiU ma •5

TOTAl 313.012 t 90,107

Indirect A» A Percani of DIrvci

8  404,099

20.73*

S  313.013 t  10.107 S 404,009

-Arlianui feundatie/i lor Medical Care. inc.
ftFe-202J-8OAS-0l-Pfl6CR-Ol
Jihlbll C-?

Patel.o.i.l

Conirtctor Iniitali ftH

Oiie_efi22®I2.
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New Hempehlrp Oeparlmeni of HopHH and Human Services
EihlbUb

CERTIFICATION REGARDING QRUG-PREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

Tr>e VenOor Uenb'fied in Section 1.3 ol the General Provliions eprccs to comply with the provisions of
Sections 51 Si >5160 of the Orug>Free Worfcplocfi .Act of lfifl6(Pub. L. lOC-690, Title V, Sublillo 0; 41
U.S.C. 701 et seq.}. end further ̂ rees to have ifie Contractor's representative, as Identiried in Sections
1.11 and ̂ 12 of the General Provisions eiecule the following Certificetion:

ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INQIVIOUALS .

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES-CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORiS
US DEPARTMENT OF ACRilCULTURE-CONTRACTORS > ■ .

This certification is required by (he regulations imptemenEng Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Worttplaco Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-S90. Tllio v. Subtitle 0; 41 U.S.C. 701 ei teq.). The January 31.
1989 regulations were ernended and published as Port II of the May 25, 1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691), arid require cerlincailon by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub
contractors). prior to award, that they will mairitoln a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) ol the
regulation provides that a grantee (ervl by inference, sub-granteas and sub-contractors) (hat is a State
may elect to make one cediflcaiion to the pepartmeni in each federal fiscal yaar in lieu of certificates for
each grant during ihe federal fiscal year covered by the certificalidn. The certificate set out below is p
material representation of lad upon vmich reliance is placed wtien the agency awards the gram. False
certlficfiUon or violation of ihe cenificalion,shall be grounds for suspensiori of peyments, suspension or
termination of grants, or government wide suspension or dcbarmenl. Coniroctors using this form should
sendll'io:

CommlssJohcr
NH Oepartmenl of Health end Human Services
129 Pleasant Street.

Concord, NH 03301-8505

1. The greniee certifies thai 11 wOI or vnll continue to provide a drug-free workploce by:
1.1. Publishing a stalement notifying employees that ihe unlawful manufacture, distribution,

dispensing, possession or use of a controlled eubstarvce is prohibited in the grantee's
workplace and specifying the actions (hat will be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition:

1.2. EsiabllsNng on or>going drug-free awareness program to inform employees about
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse (n the vrorkplace;

'The grantee's policy of mainiaining e drug-free workplace;
Any avaiiat^c drug counseling, rehabillialion, end employee assistance programs; end
The penallies that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse v'lolalions
occurring in the workplace;

1.3. Making if e requiremenl that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be
given a copy of Iho stalemeni required by paragraph (a);

1.4. Notifying the employee in Ihe statement required by peragr8ph-(a) lhal.'as a condition of
employment under the grant, the employee will. • :
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the stalemeni: end
1.4.2. Notify the employef in wriiirtg of his o'r her convicbon tor a violation of a criminal drug

■  slatule occurring in (he workplace no later ihan five CQler>dar days after such
cqnviclion:

1.5. Notif/ng (he agertcy in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagroph i .4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of ouch conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position lliie, to every grant
officer on whose greni activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal qgbfcy

1.2.2.

1.2.3.

1.2.4.

E^Mbit 0 - CerUlcsUan rega/dirvg Orug Free
ynyfcpUce ReqU'ernents

Psge I ci3

Vendor Wil#ii_^

Oaie tHA)3r2Q20
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit D

has deaignated o centra) point (or the rec^pi o( such notices. Notice shatl include'the
identiTicetiori rtumber(8) of each enacted grent;

1.6. Tohing o'ne of^ihe'foild^ng eciions. wtthih 30 celer>d8r..d3ys of receivlr>g notice under '•
subpiBresr^ 1 with respect to any employee who is .so convicted
1.6:1. Taking eppropHaie personnel ecUon against such en employee, up to end Including

-t.erminaU^. consistent with the requirements of the ReiUbiiitation Act of 1973; as
omended: or •

1.6.3. Requiring'tuch employee lo participate sotisfactodty tn odrug obuse essisiance.or
'rohstjiifleUon program approved (or such purpdios t>y o P.ederot. Stele, or toco! health.-
iaw enforcement, or other appropriate agency; ;k

1.7. MeKing o good faith effon to continue lo maintain a drug-free workplace through
Implemeritoiion of paragraphs 1.1, t .3.1.3, 1.4, i.S. arid r.6.

2. The grantee may insert in the space provided below iKe ciie(s) for the performance of work done in,
connexion with' the speciHc grant.

•Place of Pcriormance (street address, city, county, state. 3ip code) (list each locaiktn)

Arkuirn Foundilian'.for Medics! Csre. Inc.
1020 West 4ih.Sir('ti. Little RocV;, AR 72201

Check d'if there are workplaces on file that pre not idientinod here.

Vendor Name: Arkaiisas.FciundfliionTor Medica) Gtirt". Inc.

06/03/3020

Dole Name: Ray HihUiy
Title: President and CEO

cuttttyuoM)

EvHdiI 0 - CertiQcstlon regsr^ Drug Fim
Wokr/oce Requt/emenis

:p«e«2e(2

yendor tr<lisit.^;i^
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Now Hampshiro Depanmont of Heatth and Human Sorviccs
Exhlbll E

CERnFICATJQW REGAROiNG LOBBYING

The Vendof {dentiricd In Section 1,3 of the Genero) Provisions ogreea to comply with the pro^elons of
SeAtoo 319 of ̂ blic taw 101'12I, Governmeni wide Guidance for New ReetrlcUbnt on tobbywg. and
31 U.S.C. 1352, end further agreea to have the Contractor's representalive, as identified In Sections vt t
and 1.12 of the General Provltloru execule the following Certillcalion:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT QF EDUCATION • CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE • CONTRACTORS

Programs (irxflcalfi applicable progrom covered):
. •Temporary Assistance lo Needy FamDies under Title IV-A
'Child Suppon Enforcement Program under Tille IV-0

. 'Social Services Block GranI Program under Title XX
'Medlcsld Program under Title XtX
'Community Services Block Grant under Title VI
'Chltd-Csre Development Block Grgnl under Title iV

The undersigned certifies, to the best or his or her knowledge and belief, thai;

1. No Federal appropriated furyJs have been paid or will be paid by or oh behalf of the undersigned, to
cny person for influencing or attempting to influer>ce an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, on officer or employee of Confess, or an employee of o Member of Congress In
connection with the awarding of any Federal contracl. "conlinuaiion. renewal, amendment,.or
mpdiftcalion of cny Federal contract, gtar^l. loan, or cooperative egreemeni (and by specific menUon
sub-grantee or sub-contractor). v

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or vhll be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence on officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Cong/ess.

• en officer or employee of Congress, or on employee of e Member of Congress jn connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub-
conUactor), the undersigned shaD complete and submit Standard Form LLL.- (Oisctosure Form to
Repon Lobbying, in accordance with its instructions, attached and idenrified as Standard Exhibit E-l.)

3. The undersigned shati require that the language of this certir<8tion be Included in the award
document for suthawards at all tiers ̂ including subconUacis. sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans, and cooperative agr^ents) and that all sub-recipients ahall certify, and disclose accordingly'

This certification is a rnaieriai represeolalion of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
svas made or entered into. Submission of this certification is o prerequisite for making or entering Into this
transaction Imposed by Section 13S2. Title 31. U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
certificoUon shall be subject to a civil penally of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 (or
each such failure.

Vendor Name: Arkansas Koundaiion for Medical Cere, Inc.

06/03/2020

Dele

cuOMViieiii

Nome: Roy Honf
Title: President and CEO

EmUi C - CtithkgUor) Regsrdlrvs LoOb/ng

1 of

Vendor tntUell

Diie.dlMlVm
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New Hempshlro Deperlmeni of Health and Hgman Services
Exhibit F

.  CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT. SUSPENSION
AND OTHER RESPONSlBILITr f^lAHERS'

The Vendor identified «n Section 1-3 of the General Provt«lon» agrees to corhply wllh the provisions ot
Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12S49 end 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Oeberment.
Suspension, arxl Other ResponsibHily Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as Identified In Sections er>d 1.12 oMhe General Provisions execute the following
Certification:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTlFlCATlOM • '
.1. By signing and submitting Ihis proposal (conlracti, the prospective primary participant Is providing ̂ e

cenlflcotion tei out below.

3. The iriabllity of a parson to provrde lhe certification reqt^red below will not necessarily result In denial
of partlcipQliDn in Ihis covered trahsaction. If rtecessary, Ihe prospectivo participant shall sutrmlt en
expianallon of why It.cannot provide the ̂ rtlflcation. The certification or explanat'on y4U be
considered In cofwection with the NH Departmcnl of Health and Hu/nan Services' (OHMS)
determination whether to enter Into this transoction. However, faiture of the prospective pfimary
participant to furnish a certification or an expianalion shall disqualify such person from participation in
tlxs.transaction.

\

3. ■ The certiflcaticvi in thisdause is a matcrlarrepreeentatton of fact upon which reliance was placed
when OHHS determined to enter Into this transaction. If it is later determ'incd that the prospective
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certTicalion, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Government. OhhS may lerminale this transaction lor cause or default.

4. The prospective primary partrcipani shall provide immediate wrinen notice to the OHHS agency to
whom this propoial (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary partidpani learris
that its certification was errorteous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
drcumstances.

5. The terms 'covered iransacUon." 'debarred,* 'suspended.* 'ineligible.* 'lower licr covered
Iransection,' 'pBrtidpeni.' 'person.* "primery covered transacUon,* 'principal.' 'proposal.' and
'volunierily excluded.' as used in this dause, have the meanings sel out in the Oeiinitions and
Coverage sections of the rules implementing ExecuUve Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. Sec Ihe
attached definitions.

6. The prospective primary participant agrees 1^ submitting (his proposal (contract) thal..should Ihe
proposed covered trensoclion be entered Into, it shall not knowingly enter Into any lower lier covered
transaction wllh a person who is debarred, suspended, dedared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorlted by OHHS.

7. The prospective primary partidpani further agrees by submitting this proposal that It wrlll Include the
clause tided 'Certification Regarding Debarmeni, Suspension. Ineltgibility and Voiuntary Exclusion -
Lower Tier Covered Transactions,' provided by OHHS. without modificalion. In at) lower licr covered
Ircniadions and In all soUclletrons for lower tier covered transactions.

Q. A partidpani In o covered Irensadion imay rely upon e certification of a prospective participant in a
lower tier covered trensadion that li is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or invotuntartly exduded
from Ihe covered Iransection. unless ll knows lhal Ihe cer^ficafion Is erroneous. A participant may
dedde ihe method and frequency by which It determines the eligibility of Us principals. Each
portidpant may, but Is not required to. check Ihe Nonprocurement List (of exduded parties).

9. Nothing contained in (he foregoing shell be construed to require establishment of e system of recb
in order lo render In good faith the certification required by tiiis dause. The knowledge and -

Cuo«(Sii>ori)

ExNti'i F -CenircxSonRcpordlng OctitTneni. Su>pcnsk>A
And Olher RetponslbHify Mtltert

Papo 1 el 3

Vender infltali
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thformalion oi a participant (9 not required to exceed that which is normal^ possessed by 0 pa>denl
person jn the ordinary'course of busine&s deata^'a.

to. Except tor (ransacUohs aiilhorlzed urtder paragraph 6 of these it^slructlon9, it a participant iri a
covered transactlon'knp^ngty enters into a lower tier covered transaction wth a person v^o Is
susperyted. deb^ed,.irietigible. Or vpluntarlly excluded from psrticipalton In Ihis'transaciior). in
addition to Other reme'dies aypllabla td'the Federal government. OHHS may termite this transaction
for cause Of detaiiii:

PRIMARY COVEREO.TRAf^SACTlONS
11. The prospective prtmary.participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that It and lis

principals:
■ti.i. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for'debarmenl.-dedared ineligible, or

vqluhtarily excluded frorri covered irarisaciiori's by any Federal department or agency:
have not ^tNn.a'three-.<^ar period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had
'a.dv^l iudgmeni rer^ered against them fcr commlssion ol fraud or a criminDl'offense In
conr\^on wtth obtaining, 'attempting to obtain, or performing a pubOc (Federal.- Stale or local)
transaction or'a contra'd under a pubBc'(rahsacti6n:-ylolation'of Feder'al or Stale atititrusl
statutes or'commlstion of embenlemenl. theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, making false siatemer^ts, oy receivir>g sloten'property;

11.3. are not prosenlty indicted for otherwise crtmlnalty or civilly (barged by a governmenlaVeniliy
(Federal. &ate cr.local) wllh commlsiipn.of any of the offenses enumereted'in paragrB^t(l)(b)
pt ihis;certifica!ion: end '

11.4. hove not wdhin a'three-year period preceding this appUcalion/proposal had one or more public,
transactions (Federal,State or .local) lerminalod for uuse or default.

11.2.

12: Where ihe'prospa'diye primary'pan'icipani li unable lo certify (0 any of lha ataiemetiti in this
certirrcoripn. fiuch prospective porticipani shall attach an exfrianation to ihls proposd (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACT
is. .By a'lgning and submining this lower tier proposal (conirad).-ihe'prospectivo tower ller partidpanl. as

derir\ed.ih'4S CfR part .76. certifies lo the best,of hs kno'Me'dge end bctiel that U:end its principals:
13.:1. ore nol preseniiyideborred. suspended, proposed for debarmcni, dedsrcd inelfglble, or '

'ybluritarily exdudod from' p'sdlcipation In this tran'sacUori by any federal depoHmen) pr.agenCy!
. 13.2. where Ihe'prospeetive'lower tier pailldpani is unabie'lo ceriify to any pf the above, su^

prospediva'partiqlpanl 'shalt attach ar) oxplanalipn to this proposal (cdntr^).

"1.4. The prblpective lowv tier psrtlcipahi further agrees by.aubrhKling.ihls proposal (contra.d) thai U will
include tli.is dau&e enUlle'd 'Certil)catiot> Regarding Debarrneril. Suspension. l'neligibll,lly,;eryj
Voluniary. Exclusion • Lower Tier Covered TraniacUons.'-wthout mr^lflcalion in all lower tier covered
transa'ctio/}s and in ell Kpliditatidhs for lower tier covered Irensa'ctions.

Vendor Name: Arkansas Foundotipn'for Medical Gere, Inc.

08/0372020
Dale Namei/Koy.

Title: Pffsidch^oTiiif C'EO

' cup«A'tio>is;

Emroiif - Ceni^.Oon.Regsrdine OeUnTi,ifi. Suspensl'on Verdor
' And other Rtiponsl&Olry Mtti'ert.^

■  Pige}dt:2 DalgOS/0V20W
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CERTIFlCAiriON OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO
FEOERAi NOHOISCRIMINATION. EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIOHS AND

WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

Tho Vendor JdeniirieO (h Sections.3 of the General ProvlsicrisoBrees by signature of (he Contractor's
representative as id.entlflod in Seciiont 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute (he foilowlrig
certiflcaiicfn:

yendqr Wti.cornply. and will require ony eubgranteei or subconiroctors to comply, with'any applicable
federti nortdiseiirninstion requlremontt. which may inciudo:
• the,Omnibus Crlrne Control end Safe Btreels Act of 1868 (42 U.S.C. Section 37B9d) which prohibits
redpienls of lederai fundirtg under this stelule from discriminating, either ir) emplcyment practices or in
the delivery of seMces or benefits; on the basis of race, color, religion.'r^ation3l origin, end sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce en Equal Employment Opporturiity Plan;

' <-

: the Juvenile Justice Delinquency. Preveniiort Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Skiion 8672(b)) which odopis by'
reference. lhe dvij rights obligations of (he Safe Streets.Act. Redplents'.of federal funding imder this.
'slotule are prohibited from discriminating, cither in employment practices or In the delivery of eervicea or
beneflis. onjKe basis of.race, color, religion, national origin, and sex, TherAct inciudes'Equei
Emptoymenl Opportunity Plan requlremenis;
• the (^iyll Rights Act of'1964 (43 U.S.C. Section 20000. which prohibits recipients of (ede.roi financial
assistwe from dlscrimlnaung on'ihe basis of race, color, or national ongin in any program or activity)':

■ the Rehabilitation Act.of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794). which prohibits'recipienis of FedeVal.finaridal
asslsianco from discriminaUrig on (he basis of disability, in regard to employmeni end the delivery 61
aervlcos or bdrtefits. In any program or adlivify; ^
.-the Americans v4ihOisab'iitles Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34). wfueh prohibits
disctlminalion arid onsu'ret equal opportunity (or persons with disdblBties In empioyTTieht.'Stale;8r\d local
.goverryneni services.<p,ubiic aocotTtmodab'ons, commerciai faciiilies. and t/enspoilation:
-.the Education^endmenlsd.l t972(20 U.S.C. Se'cllons, 1681.1683.1685-66). wNch prohibits
rdiscrlmineiion on Iho basis ol sex In federally assisted education progroms;'

^•'the Age Ojs^rninaiip'ri Act Of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07). wh'ich ̂ ohibits'discrimiriation ori the '
-basis ol age In programs or activities rece'tving Federal rmandal asslsjance. (("does riot Include
•=e.mplo';^ent'tfscrimihaiion;
i26C.F.R. pi. 31 (U.S. Oepanmenlof Justice R^ulalions - OJJOPGrantPfogram8);.28<i.F.R. pi..42-
(U.S.'pepahmenl of Justice Regulalloris - Nood'Scrlminotion; Equal Emplbymehropp.orluriliy: Policies
•and Procedures); Executive Order'No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based end cbmmunlly
droanization's):'Exeeulive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamentai.pnnd^es ond pbiicV-maliing
.ailena for partnerships vrilh failh-based and neighborhood organizalloris:

- 26 C.f ;R..pi. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regytdiions - Equal.Trealmeni foir Faith-Based
Organltalions); and WhistieblONvor proleciions 41 tJiS.C. §4712 and The National Defense Aulfrarization
■Act (NOAA)fdf Fiscal Ye8f.2013 (Pub. L. 112-239. enacted January 2,2013) ihe Piiol Prbgrem for
'E'rihancemenl of Contract Employeo WhisUeblower Protections, vi^'ch protocts-employees egalrist
reprisal for certain whislie blo^rig ecthrliles in connection %viih federal grants and contracts..

The certificate eel out'below Is a material ropresenlation of fact upon wlilch reliance is ^aced when iho
•eigenc'y awards iheigfant. .Fefse 'certirtcalipn or violation' ol ihe cenificaUon shall bb'.grbun'ds'fot.
suspension pf payments. suspension or lerrninat'ion of grants, or government wide suspension or
'debarmenl.

M7n*
fi»*. loni/M
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In (he event e Federel or Stele court or Federal or State Bdmlnistrallve.ogency makes a findti^ o('
'discdmlnatlon efter 0 due process Keerir^ ori the grounds of race, color, religion, natior^alorigln. or aex
.BOainst b recipieht of funds, the reapcnt w4n forward a copy of ihe finding to the Office for Civil Righis. to
the applicablo contracting agency or division within the Dopartm'eni of Health and Human Services, end
to the Departmant of.Heelth ond.Humon Services Office of ihe On^budiman.

The Vendor Identtned'^tn Section 1.3.of the General Provisions agrees by signaiure of ihe .Comrbtior'ft
represenioiiyo OS Identified in Sections 1.11 end 1.'12 of the General Provisions, to oxbcuto tho fbtiosvlng
cerbTicellbn: V .

1. By oignlog'cnd submlldng this ptbposei (contiaci) the Vendor ogrees to comply with the provisions
Indicated above.

OS/03/2020

Vendor Name; Arkan.ta.t Foundation Tor Medical Core, Inc.

Dale HaNamo: Rfi)
Title: President nnd CEO

EstitjOG
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVlftONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

PuUlc Lew 103-227, Pert C • Environmeolel Tpbecco. Smoke, also known as (he Pro-jChlldren Act of 1994
(Act), requires (Kat smdkirtg rtot be permitted in any .portion of any irkdoor faciSly owned or leased or
cdhtracled for by.oh erStHy end used routir>ely or regulorly (or the provision of health, day'ciEtrei .educalion'.
or library services lo children under the ege of 16,1/ the services ore funded by Federal progroms eilhe'r
directly or inrpugh'Sieie or local govemmenis, by Federal grant, coriiract. loan, or loan guvantee. The
low does not.apply to children's services provided in private reiider\co6.'fscllIile8 funded soi'ely by
Medicare or Medlcsid funds', and ̂ dions of fadXiies used for Inpatieni dnrg or alcohol treatment. Failure
to com'^ wlih ihe. provisions of Ihe law moy rotyli in the Impdsiilon of a ciw monetary penally of up lo
51000 por'day and/or Ihe imposition of an odministrotive compllarvce order on (he responsible eniiiy'.

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by sig'nature 'of.the.Conlraclor's
repreSerttaiive as identifiMf In iSecUon l.i t and t.l2 of (heGeneral Provisions, (o execute ihe'lollow1r>g
ce^ficatlon:

i

1.. By'tlgning arid submlrting lhls conl/pcl, the Vendor agrees to make reason9b|.e efforts to. cdmply with
oil appDcabte provisions of Public Law td3-227. Port C. knosvn as ihe Pro-Cha'dren of 'i9'94.

Vendor Name:Arkansa$ Fotindsiion for Medical Cdfc, Inc.

08/03/2020

Dale Namet'Rey Hsnley
Title; President and CEO

EiiNbli H - Ce^flcoiion'Regwdino
EnUronrntiSsl Totisao SmaXe

Page \ I'

•Vendor Inltiet}.
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■  HEALTH INSURANCE PORTAbIuTV ^
.&CT.BUSINESS ASSOCIATE

AGREEMENT'

"The Vendor Identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement egfees to,
comply wUh.'Ihe Health Insurance Ponabiiily 8r>d Accduntabiiity Act. Public Lew 91 end j.;
with Ihe.Standards for PrivacV ®hd Security of Individually Idcrilinabie Health lnforTTietton.-4.5
CFR Ports 160 end 1p4 applicable 1o business assodeles. As defined herein. 'Business.
AssodBle'-shall riean (he Vendor end subcontnsclors and agenjs of the Vendor .that receive,
use Of have access idrpfoteci^ health Information under this Agreement 'end "Covered Eritiiy"
shall mean the State of New Hampshire. Department "of Health and Human Scivices.

,  r _

(1 Definitions.

6- IgrfiSfib^'Shall .have Ihe same meaning as the term "Breach* in section 164.402 of Trtle 45.
Code dfPederal Regulations.,

b. ••Bustrress Associate' has the meanirig given such term in-section 160.103 of Tllte 45, Code
of Federal Regutalions.

c. 'Covered Entity' has" the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Tille 45.
Code of Federal Re'gulations. *

d. 'pe'^lpnaied ReMfd Set' shall have the same.meaning as the term "designated record .set"
ln45 CFR Seclibn.164;5pi.

e. 'Data AQo^ggglion' shaH have, the same meaning as the term 'data aggregatiori' in 45 CFR
Secli.ori 164.501'.

.f. 'Health Care Qoerations' shall have Ihe same meaning.as the term "health care opereiions-
in-45 CFR Scctjon .164.501., ' -

g. "'HtTECH Act' means the Health Information Technology for Ecdnorhic and Cr»nical:Health
Act, TilleXlll. Subtitle O. RaH 1 S Z of the American Recovery.and Reinvestment Act of. •
2009.

h. "HIPAA' means Ihe Heatih Insurance Portability 8nd.Acco.umabilily Act of 1.996. Public law
l04-19Vaha ihe'iStandards for Privacy and Security of.lndlvkJuaily ldentifjable^Health
lnfofmaiioh,.45 CFR Parts 160,162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

I. 'Indivlduar shall have the sarne meaning as the ierrTi''indiyiduar In 45 CFR Section '16.p.^103
arid shall include a pempn who qualifies as a personal representalrve in a.ccordance with 45
CFR Section 164,50^(9).'

]• 'PnvacvrRule'^shall'mean'the Slandards.for Privacy of.lndividualty Identifiable Heallh
■  Infwmatiqn at 46CFWParts'l60 and "164",•promulgated under'HlPAA by.the United Slate's

bepartmenl of Health and "Human Services.
[/'

"k. 'PfQiected HR»Uh Informaiion' shail have the same rheaning es the term 'prbiccted h'eaj|^.
Infprrnalion' ln-45 CFR Section 160.103, limited to the iriformation" crealed'or rcceiye^*"
Busifiess Associate'from or on behalf of Covered Entity. ij/Q

H
y20i'4 exNbhi Van4w tf^ali

Hdlin (Mutanca PeAibTirT Act
.Bvitneii Aitotiata ABrNmani.

P«ga 1 p('6

.
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I. "R^^Qulfgd bv Law'^ahall havc'lhe same meaning as the term "required bV'laW-in 45 CFR
Sectipn,ie4.103.

m. 'Sigcreiarv' shall mean Ihe Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or
his/her designee.

n. •Si»etjritv Rule" shiall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164. SubpaaC. and amendments thereto.

0. "Uq^ijcura^f Prdtccte'd Heat^h triformallon' means protected health information that ia not
secured by a technology siainderd that renders protected health inlormation unusable,
unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and Is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards
Irisliluie.

pr OthefDefinilioris • AH tcnris not otherwise defined herein shell have the meaning
established under'45'C.F.R. Pans 160.162 and 164, as amended from .time to time, and the
HitEGH
Act.

(2) Buiilnefts Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Heallh Information.

8.-

d.

Business Associate .shall not use. disclose, maintain or iransmii Prolecied' Healih
irifofmaliori* (PHI) except as reasonably necessary lb provide the services 'outlined under
Exhibit A df the Agreemenl. Further. Business Associate, irvduding but noi..lirniied to all.
its "directors, otticers. ernployees and-.agenis.'^bll nol use. disclose, rhalntain or tterisfrtii
PHI in any manner thai would consliiute e vioiaiion of the'Privacy arid Security Bule.

Business Associate may'use or disclose RHi:'
I.- ■ For Ihe proper management and edminisifaiion dl.lhe Business Associate;
II. As required by law. pursuant to the terrhs sell forth In p.aragraph'd. below; or
III... For data aggregation purposes for the health care, operations of Covered

E.nlKy. ' - "

To the'extent Business Associate is permiiie'd under the. Agreement to disclose PHI to a
Ihird party. Business Associate must, obtain, prior to making any such •diwtosure, "(i)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held conridcrilially find
used or further, disclosed only as required by law or fpr-ihe-purpose for which il was
disclosed tb.the third party; and (ii) en agreement from such third party to notify Business
Associate.. ln"'.accordaricc :wiih the HIPAA .Privacy. Sebu/ity.'and Breach Notification
Rules, of any breaches ;of the. confidentiality of the PHI, to the cxicni K has obtained
kndwjedge of such^breach.

the Business AssociaieViall-not. urtless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disOose.'any PHI in respo.nse to a
request for disclosure on the basis that it Is rcquired byja.w. without firelnqiifylng
Covered Erilllyso'thSt.Covercd'Eritily has a.n opportunity .to cbject.lo the disclosure
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disdosure, the Busi.*^

V7014 EtfVbUi .

HeiUt ImuitnM Poriibi'iiy
Aiiedtie AgtecMM
Pig«2oiB
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b.

d.

e.

♦ • Associate Bhairroffaln from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted ail
remedies.

e. If ihe Covered Efjtity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entlfy has'agreed to
be'bourjd by .additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards pf PHI l^rsuanl to the Privacy ami Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall bo bound by such addUionaVrestrictions.and shall rwi disclose PHI ln^olalior> of
such ̂ ditional restrictions and shflllebide by .any oddiilone! securUy safeguards.

(3) QhiioRtlQiia and ActlvltJea of Biistneia AaaOClatfl-

a. The Business Associate shell notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer immediately
'afte-fthe Business Assodaie becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
heaUh infprmelion not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured
protected health Iriforn^ajion and/or any security incident that rnay have ah impact onthe
project^ heofth information of the Covered Entity.

The Business Associate shall immediately perform e risk ass.essmenfwhcn ilbecdmes
•aware of any of the above sl'lualions. The risk a'ssessmenl shall include, but not be
limHedjO:

0 The'nalufe'and extent of the protected health information involved, including the
types of identifiers and the likelihood 61 re4denUricaiion;

0 The unauthorized person used the protected health information or to wltom.lhe
disclosure vras made; _

p wi«ihcf Ihe protected health information was actually acquU.ed or viewed
6 Ttie extent tp.which ihe risk to the prolcclcd health infcirmatior\h''asbeen

mitigated.

The Business-Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 5 business
.dayiOf the breach'end Immediately report ihe.rmdings of.the risk assessment in -
writing to the Covered Entity.

The'Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy. .S^cu.ri'ty.arid
Breach Notificaiiori Rule.

Business Associate shaii make available all .of its internal policies and prpcedures. books
arid records ro.iating lo'lhe use artd disclosure of PHI. received frprn. or created or
received by tHd Business Associate oh.behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes pf determining Covered Entity's compliance wiih HtPM and the Privacy and
Secuiily" Riiie.

Business Asso.ciate.phall .require a|l of its business associates that receive, use'or have
acces^ to'Prti under the Agreement, to agree in writing to'edhcre to the seme
restrictions and condiifons.on ihe use and disclosure of PHI .contained hereiri. including
the. duly to return or destroy the PHI as provided ur>der Seclion.3 (j). The Covered .Entity
sheij be c.onsidcred a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor's business (a^'nHaM
ag/cernents with iEonlrad.of's intended business associalcs.'who will be recelvin'Sl

ytou
.He<nh Iraurvice PpruUiy Act
Btnlntu AuocTito Agree(nem

■PtgoSdS
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k.

. purauent lo fhis Agrecmcftt, wilh rights of enforcemenl and Indeoinification (rom such
business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph 013 of the standard
; contract provisions <P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use end 'disclosure of
protected health Inforrhaiion.

y-

Wlhtn five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered entity.
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its ofT'ces all
records, books, agreements, policies end procedures relating to the use and disclosure
Of PHI to the Covered Enlily. for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate's compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

VMlhin ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Enlily.
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a designated Record Set to the
Covered Enlily. or as directed by Covered Entity, lo art Individual in order lo meet the

'  requirementsunderASCFR Section 1&4.52^.

within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in e Designated Record
Set. the Business Associate shall make such PHI.available to Covered Enlily for

■  emendmenl and incorporate any such amendment lo enable Covered Entity to fulfill Its
obligations under 45 CFR Scctiori 1W.526. :•

Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and Informaiion related lo
such disclosures as would be required for Covered Enlily lo respond to a request by an
individual for an accounling ol disclosures of PHI In accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.526:

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for.eri accounling of disclosures of PHI. Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require lo lulfill its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures wilh respect to PH! in accordance wilh 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

In the event eny individual requests access to. amendment of. or accounling of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, ihe Business Associate shall within tv/o (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Enlily shall have the_
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the ,
individual's request to Covered Enlily would cause Covered Entity or Ihe Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate

-  shdil instead respond to the individual's request as required by such taw and notify
Cove.red Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

Wilhln ton (10) business days of lerminallon of the Agreemeni. for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or desiro/. as specified by Covered Entity, all I^Hl
received from] or created or received by the Business Associate in connection wllh'lhe
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI, If.return or
destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been olherwise agreed to in
the Agreement. Business Associate shall continue lo extend the protections of the
Agreemeni. to such PHI endjimtl further uses and disclosures of such PHI to tht^
purposes that make the return o.r destruction infeasible. for so long as Busiries's^

V20t4 . EiHbftl
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a.

• • • -Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its spie discreljpn, requires that the
- Business Associate destroy any or all PhI. the'^siness Associafe shall certify to'
'Covered Entily'that the PHI has t>een destroyed.

(4) .ObllofltldnS'Of Covef'ed Ehtltv"

S. Covered Entity,shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limUa(ipn(s) in its
Notice o,f Privacy Practices pro^d.cd to indiytduals in'accordance with 45 CFP Section
164.520. to the extent that such change or lifnitation may affect Business Assodate'.s^
use or disclosure of Phi.

b. Covered Eritity shall promptly'notify Business Associate ol any.changes in, or revocation
of permission provided to Cove/ed Entity by individuals whose PHI may be'used or
disclosed by Business Asspdaie under this Agreemeni. pursuant to 45 CFR Section.
IW.SpS or 4'5 CFR Section 16^500.

c. [Covered entity sHali promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions, on the .use or
disclosureof PHI that'Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance wiifi 45 CFR t64.S2'2.
lo (he exlerrt that such restriction may affect Business Assodaie's use or disclosure of
PHI.

(6) Termination for Cause

Jn addition to Paragraph tO of the standard terms apd condilio'ns {P-37} of this
AgreeiTwnr'the Covered Eniitymay immedlale'ly temiiriate the Agreefn'eni uppo.Coyered

..Eniiiy's knpvdedge.of a breach by Business Associate of-the Business Associate
Agreement set fc/ih herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either immediateiy

'  .'terminate the Agreemenl.pi provide an opportunity for Business'.Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a timefrarne specifi.ed by Covered Enlity. If,Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible, Covered Enlity shall report the
violation lo Ihe Secreiary. ' ' '

:d.

V2014

'MiBcellanoQus
V

Definlliohs flhd Redulaldrv Re'fer'ences..AI) terms used, but not otherwise defined herein,,
^shali.haye.thc same'meaning as those terms in the Privacy arid Security "Rule, amended
from lime to time., A reference in the Agreement, as emended .to include this £*Kiblt'l,-t6
>d:S.eciion.'in the Privacy'arid Security Rule mean's the Section as In effect'or as
•amended.

Amendment; Covered Ehfity end Business .Associate agree.tota.Ke such actio'h as is
nece6Miy;(o afncnd,l|)e'Agrecineni.;from time to lifne:a's Is necessqry for Covered
Erijity lo,comply with the changes rn'thc requlreriic'rils pfWlPAA..tKc Privacy .and
S'ecurily.Rule^ and applicable federal and slate law.

Data bwnershira. 'The Business Associate acHnowtedges'that it.has no.ownership nghls
.withvespect lo the PHl provided by or crealed'an'behsif'pf Covered Entity.-

.inierpretalion. The parties agree.that any ambiguity in the Agreemenj sl^ll b«
:I0 pcrmit.'Covered Enlity to comply with'HIPAA.'the'Privacy and'Securiiy.'Rule.

EtMbai
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Seotoqfllion. If any term or condition of this Exhibit 1 or'th'e eppllcetion thereof to eny
perton(e) or drcumstdnce Is held invalid. sucK lnvoiidlty ehoD rtol elfed other terms or
coridtitone whichCBn .be Qiven effect without the owaiid term or condition; to this end the
terms tin6 conditions of this Exhibit I ere declared eeverebie.

Survtvel. Proytslonsjn this Exhibit I regarding the use ohd disclosure of PHI. return or
destruction of PHI. extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3) I. the
defense and.lndemnificalion provisions of section'(3> e end Peragrsph 13 qtlhe
Btendard term's and conditions (P-37). shaO survive Iho lerminaHqn of the Agreement:

IN WITNESS WHEPEOH. the parlies hereto have duly executed this Exhibit I.

OepsHrneni of Heatih Human Servicei Arliinsis Foundtiion of.Medical Care..lnc.

The Stale ofth yen

Signal Authorized.Knresentalrveure.Signature of^Aui.horized Repre&onlative

Narno^IMuthorized Represeritaiive

TnTe pr,AOthortzed Representative

Date

•Rav Hartley
'Name of Authorized Representai'rve

President and CEO ^
Title of Authorlzed.Rapresehtelive

08/05^030

Date

V70l« Cecn.i
Htann irii;HAe« Pgntfiy Ad
.Ovtihtti Atttfitw Agfccmcnl
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CERTiPrCATldN ftEOAHDINQ THE FEDERAL FUNOIWQ ACCOUNTABIUTY AND TRANSPARENCY'
■ ACTIFFATAI COWPLIANCE

The Federal Funding AccountabtHty end Transparency Act <PF ATA) requires prtme swerdees of individual
Federal grants equal to or greater Ih^ $2S,000 end awarded on or aner October 1. 201.0, to.report on
data related to executive compensation end essodated nrsl'tler gut^granls of $25,000 or more. It the
IrtiUal sward is below $25,000 but lubsequeni grant rhodincations result in a total award equal to or over
$25,000.'lhe bward is subject to the FFATA reporting reqvdremenis, os.o' (he date of ine oward.
in accordance with 2 CF.R Pan i70 (Reporting Subaward er>d Exeouirve Compensation inforrnation). the
OepartmorM of Health end Hutnan Services (OHHS) rnust report the'follpwing iAformalion tor any
subaward oVconi/ect 'ovord subject to the ffata repbrtir>g requtrements;
1. Name of entity
2. Amount of award

3. Fundin'o agency
4. NAICS codo for contracts ICFDA program number for grants'
5.. Program source
i. Award ti.tid descd^ive ofilhe' purpose ol the funding action
7. Lotion of the entity..
8. Prihdple place of perfomnmce
0. Urtlque jdentiner ol.lhe enlHy (DUNS 0}
10. Toial compensation and riames of (he (op'five executives 11:-

10.1. ;More then 80% of annual gross revenues are-from the Federei government, and those
revenues are greater than $2SM annuaUy and '

10.2. CompensaUori Information is r\oi already available through reporting (o Ihe SEC.

Prime grant roclpients must submit FFATA required data by the ervd dl Ihe morith. plus 30 days. Ih which
ihe'bward or'dward amendment Is made.
The Vendor idemified'in Sc«llon.1.3 of the General Provisions agrees.to comply vnth the prpvlsidns of
the'^edcral Fjunding Accounlability-and Transparency Ad. PuWic Law 10^282 and Public l^w 110-252,
and.2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and .Executive Compensation Intormotioh), and turner agrees
to.have the.Conlroctdr's represe'rilalivb. asIdenlified bisections V.11 and l._i2prihe:GenerBlPfdvl8lo'ns
execute the foflowtng'Ce^iicaliori:
Tho below narhod Vcrtdbr agrees to provide "needed informal|on as outlined above to the NH Oepprynenl*
of.lilcaRh and Hu.m8n Services' ond lo com'ply with all applicable provisions of the F^erbl Financiai
'Accountability and TransparencyAci.

.Vendor Name: Arkan.<;as Foundation for Medical Care, Inc.

0a/03f2020

Dale Nemdt RaJtJJanUy.'
Title: Pfcsidcni arid'CEO

Eriia>li J - Crrtiticitlon AegirtSng'ir« FedcfSl Funding
AcccvhieWXy And Tfimpwency Ad (FFaTA) Compliance

Page I of 2
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FORMA

As the Vendor identiried In' Section .1.3 of (be General Provisions, (.certify thai (be responses to (be
bolowdtted questions arc (rue ond occurale.

\. The bUN S number for your cnllty is: 010330993 >: •

2. In your buaineit or organizotion's'preceding comp(eled fiscal year,.did your business or orOdnlaailon
rec^ve (1) 60 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts', iubconlro.cts.
(pans, grants. Bub^grants; end/oi coopeialive agreements; and (2) (25,000,000 or more In annual
gross revenues frbrn (j.S. federal contracts, lubcontrocis. loans, grants, subgronts. and/or
cooperative bgreemenis?

NO •YES

If the answer to 92 above Is NO. stop here

If (te answer 16 02 above is YES. please onswer the following:

3. Does the.-pubdc have access talnformeiion about (he compensation of the executives in your
business or crganlzalioh through.periodic reports tiled under section 13(8) or 15(d) of.the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.76m(a). 76o(d}) or section 6104 ol (he internal Revenue Code^of
1986? ' -

NO YES

If the answer to 03 above is YES. stop here

If the onsw to 03 above is NO. please ans^r.the.fotlovnrfg:

4. The names and compensation of the tivo rhost highly compensated ofticers In your buiinets .or
.org'anlzalioh ere as.fotlows;

.Narne:.

Name':,

Name:

Name:

Nome:

Amount;,

Amount:,

Amouhl:

Amount:

Amount:

'Exhtill J -^Cmtnution RtgiKDng tha Fede/il Funtfbg
Acenunistittry'A^d ftirpp^eocy Aa (FFaTA) CarnpSincc
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DHHS Information Security Requirements

A. Definitions

The following terms may.be reflected arid have the described meaning In this document:

';1. 'Breach' means the lost of control, compromise, uneulhorieed dndoeure.
unauthorized aoqulsltion, unauthorized occeso, or any similar term referring to
situations where persons other than authorized users and for en other then
authorized purpose have access or potential access to-personally Identiriable
information, whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health
Information.' Breach' shall have the same meaning as the term 'Breach' in section
164.402 of Title Code of Federal Regulations.

2. 'Computer Security Incident' shall have the same meaning 'Computer Security
Incident' In section two (2) of NiSt Publication 800-61. Computer Security Incident
Mandiirvg Guide. National Inslilule of Standards and Technology. U.S. tDeparlmeni
of Cornmercc.. r.

3. 'Cbnndential Information' or 'Confidential Data' means all confidential Intormalion
disclosed by one parly to the other such as all medical, health, nnancia), public
assfslance benefits and personal information including without limitation. Subsience
Abuse Treatment Records. Case Records. Protected Health .Information and
Personally Identifiable Information. ,

I
r,

Confidential Information also includes any and all information owned or managed by,
•  the Stale of NH - created, received frorn or on behalf of.the Department of Health and
Human Services (DHHS) or accessed in the course of performing contracted
services • of which collection, disclosure, protection, and disposition is governed by
slate or federal taw or regulation. This informallon includes, but Is not lirrilted to ..
Proteded Health informalion (PHI). Personal Information (PI). Persortal Financial
Information (PFI). Federal Tax information (FTi). Social Security Numbers (SSN).
PaymenI Cerd Industry (PCi). end or other sensitive and conndential information.

"•< . •

4. 'End User' means any person or entity (e.g.. conlractor. contractor's,employee,
business associate, subcontractor, other downslrearn user, etc.) that receives
DHHS data-or derivative data in accordance with the terms of this Goniract.

I

5. 'HIPAA' means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1998 and the
regulations promulgated thereunder.

6. 'Incidoni' means an act that poteniiatiy violates an explicit or Implied security' policy,
which includes 'attempts (either failed or successful) to ̂ ain unauthorized access to a
system or its data, ur>wanied disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of
a system for the processing .or storage of data; and changes to system hardware,
nnmware. or .software characterlsiics without the owner's knowtedge. Instruction, or
consent. Incidents include the loss of data through theft or device misplacement, loss
or misplacement of hardcopy docurrients, and misrouting of physical or eleclroni|'

vs.Luiu^e iQfOartS ecNeiiK
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mail. aU.or y/hich may have the potenliai to put the data at risk of unauthorized
access, use. disclosure, modification or destruction.

'Open VtAreiess Network' means any network or segment of e network that'ls
' not designdted by (he State of New Hampshire's Oepahment of information
Technotogy or detegote as a protected network (designed, tested, end
approved, by means-of the State, to trartsmit) will be considered en open
network and not adequately secure for the tronsrrilsslon of unencrypted'PI.- PPI.
PHI orconifidential OHHS data.

8. 'PersofiaJ, Information" (or'PI') means information which can be used to djsiingulsh
or trace ah indiytdual's Identity, auch as their name, social security number, personal
information as defined in New Hampshire RSA 359-C:i9. biometric records, etc.,
alone, or when combined with other personal or idenl'ifying informBlion which-is linked
or linkable to. a specific Individuai.-such as'date and place of birth, mothers rrtalden
name', etc.

9. 'Privacy Rule* shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identihable Health
Information at 45 C;F.R. Paris 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by .the tinited
Slates Oepartrnent of Health and Human Services.

10. 'Protected Health Information' (or 'PHI') has the same meaning' as provjded In the
definition of 'Protected Health Information* in the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. §
160.103.

11. 'Security Rule' shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
,  Protected Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Part .164. Subpart C. and amendmerils

thereto.

12. 'Unsecured Protected H.cailh information' means Protected Health ̂ formation thatjs
'riot .secured t^ .a lechnolpgy standard that renders Protected Health Infdrthation
unusable', .unreadable, of indecipherable to unauthorized indiyid.uals and~ is
dev6lOPe.d-pr endorsed by a sisndards developing organizaiion that Is accredi.ti^ by
the iVno'ica.ri fi^ation'arsiandards institule.

•  ' >-

f. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS ANO THE CONTRACTOR

.A. Business Usd and Disclosure of.Confidential information.

1. The Contractor rnusl not use. disctpse. maintain or iransmll Confiriential irifprmation
except as reasonably ineceisary es outlined .under this Contractj, Furiher, Coriiraclor.
induding .bul not lirriiie.d to all its directors.-officers, employees and agents.>mys't not
,u'se. disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any mannerJtUl would constitute a violation
of the Privacy and Security Rule.

•2. The Cpr\lractor must not disclose any Confidential Into'fmalion in response to (B ^

v3.L«ivp«fte Kvotfts E«»bnK
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request (or disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, In response lo a
subpoena, etc., v^lhout Tirst notilying OHHS so that DHHS has an opportunity to
consent or object to the disclosure.

3. If OHHS notHies the Contractor that OHHS has opre^ to be bound by eddittonat
restrictions over and ebove those uses or disclosures or security safeguards ot PHI
pursuant.to (he Privacy artd Security Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such
additional restrictions and must hot disclose PHI In violation of such additional
restrictions and must abide by any additional security safeguards.

4. The Contractor agrees that OHHS Data or derivaiive there fronr) disclosed lo an,End
User must only be used pursuant to the terms of thtls Contract.

&. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Conirect may not be used for
any other purposes that are not indicated in (his Contract.

'  6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to (he authorized representatives
of DHHS for the purpose of inspecting lo conFirm compliance with the terms of this
Contract.

II. METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1. Application Encryption. If End , User , is transmitting DHHS data containir>g
Confidential Data between applications, the Contractor attests the applications have
been-evaluated; by an expert Knowledgeable in cyber security arrd that.aald
application's encryption capabilities ensure secure transmission via the Internei

2. Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use, compuler'disKs
or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting OHHS
data.

3. Encrypted Email. End User may only employ email lo transmit Confidcnliai Data if
email is eocrvoted and i>€ing sent to and being received by entail addresses of
persons authorized to receive isuch Information.

4. Encrypted Web Site. If.End User is ernploying the Web lo trBnsrrtt Confidential
pate, the secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must be
secure. SSL encrypts data transmitted vis a Web site.

5. File Hosting Services, also Kfiovm"BS File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file
hosting services, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transrhit
Confidential Data.

6. Ground Mail Service. End User may only transit Conndenlial Data via certified ground
.mail within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named individual.

7. Laptops and PDA. If End User is employing portable devices lo transmit
Confidential Data said devices must be encrwt^ password-protected.

8. Open Wifeless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidential Dale via en open
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wireless network. End Usef must employ a virtual private networi^ (VPN) when
remotely trsr^mltting via an open wireless network.

9. Remote User Communication. U End User is employing remote cqmmurvication to
access or transmit Conndenlial Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be
installed on tho Ertd User's mobile 'device{&) or laptop from which information will be
transmitted or accessed.

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP). also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If
Ertd User is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data. End User will
structure the Folder and access privileges to prevent Inappropriate disdosure of
information. SFTP folders and sub-folders used for transmitting Confidenllat Data win
be coded for 24-hour euio-deielion cycle (i.e. Conridentiai Daia'wii) t>e deleted every 24
hours).

11. Wireless Devices, if End User is transmitting Confidential Oala via wireless devices, alt
data must be encrypted to prevent inappropriate disclosure oMnformallon.

III. RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor will only retain the data and any der'rvaiiva of the data for the duration of this'
Contraci. After such lime, the Contractor vriji have 30 days to destroy the data and any
derivative In whatever form It may exist, unless, otherwise required W '3^ permitted
under this Conlroct. To this end. the parties must:

A. Retention-

1. The Contractor agrees it will not store, transfer or process data collected in
connectiori with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United
States. This physical ..location requirement shall also apply in the implementation of
cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capabilities, qnd includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are In
place to detect potential securlly evenis that can impact Slate ol NH systems
and/or Department confidential Information for contractor provided systems.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Oepahmenl conndenlial information.

4. The Ccniractor agrees to retain all electronic and hard copies of Conndenlial Data
in a secure location and idenlKied in section IV. A.2

5. .The Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored in a Cloud must be in a
FedRAMP/HITECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy and'securlty. All servers and devices must have
currently-supported and hardened operating systems, the latest anti-viral, anli-
hacKer, anii-spam, anll-spyware. and anti-malware utiiiiies. The envirphmsrit, as a
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wtiole, must have aggressive intruslon-deteciion and Hrewan protection.-

6. Trie pontrsclor agrees lo and ensures iis com'pleie cooperation with the State's
Criier infpmialion Offlcer in the detection of any security vulneretxlity of the hosting
inhastructure.

B. Oisposiiion

1. II the Contraclcf win malnialn any Conftdenlial Inlormalion or> Its systems (or its
eut>-contractor systerris). the Contractor will maintain a docyn^nied 'process for
securely disposing of such data upon request or contract termination; and wlii
obtain written certrTrcation for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
Contr8<^of,or any subcontractors as a.pari of ongoing, emergency, end disaster
recovery operations. When no longer in use. electronic media cohlelnlng State of

-  New Hampshire ddia'shali be rendered unrecoverable via a.sMure wipe program
in accordance .with industry-accepted standards for secure deletion arid media
sanitizstion, or otherwise physically destroying the. media (for example,
degaussing) as^described in NiST Sji^'cial Publication 600-88. Rev 1, Guidelines
for Medja Sanitizaiion. Nallonal institute of Standards 'and Technology.' 0. S.
Dcpailment of Cornmerce. The Contraclor will document and certify In wrilirig et
limjB of the data destruction, and will provide written certirication.to.tf^ Oepartrhehl
upon request. The written cehificatlon vnll Include- all details necessary to
demonstrate data has been property destroyed end yehdated. Where-applicaUe.
reguiaioiy and professional slandBrds for retention requirements v^)l be |olntty
evaluated by the Slate and Contractor prior lo deslru^pn.

2. Unless otherwise specified, within. :thirty (30) days of . the termination of this
Contract. Conlraclor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Cohndeniiai Data using a
secu.re method such as shredding..

i  3. Unless ojheiyfee. specified, within thirty (30) days of .the lerminatlbn of -this
Corttract. Contractor agrees to completely'destroy ali ejectrpiiicConfidyritiai Data
t^y.means of data '^asure, also known as secure datja.wiping.

(V. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Corit/actor agrees to sa.feguaid the DHHS Oate received under this Contract, end any
derivalrye data or nies.'as fqllovrs:

1. The 'Contractor wID maintain proper security controls lo protect Oepartmenl
conndenOarinformation coDecied. process.ed. ma.nag^, and/or stored fn the detivery
of coriirac'led seivices.

•2. The -Contractor will maintain policies and procirtures" to protect De'pa'rtiheni
cqrifidenlial '.information throughout t.he ihfq/.matioh lifecycle. .where d'pplicatile. (from
creation, iransformation. use, storage and -secure destruction) reigardtesiS'of |he.
media used to store (he data (i.e., (ape. disk, paper, etc.).

vs.uuun4ai9t(yoane EmwiK

OKHS iniormaSon
S9Ct/»y Rettvi/emeni)

Page s'oi I

Contiaetw inUsit - an

OMsmrmi



Oocuslgn Envelope ID: 0F7E5149-7E8A-4FDF-BCC6-C3692D27DD5C

DocuSIgn Envelope 10: l97C198l-28BO-4E)&-960P-«ADF3OOtB06f

■Now Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

3. The Contractor, will maintain appropriate authentication and access controls to
contractor strstems (hat collect, transmit, or-store Department confidential Information
where applicabie.

' > V. ;

4. The Contractor will ensure proper security monitoring capabiljiies ere In piece to
delect potential .security events that can impact Stale of NH systems and/or
Oepartmeni conHdentiat information for coritractor provided systems. -

5. The Contractor will provide regular security awareness and education for tts End
Users in suppdh of protecting Oepartmeni conndenlial information.

6. If . (he Contractor will be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement
.supporting the services for Slate of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
program of an internal process or processes that defines • specific security
expeclatioris. and monitoring compliance to securtly'requirements that at a minimum
match those for the Contractor, including breach notification requireinents.

7. The Contractor'will work with the Oepartmeni .to sign and comply with all applicabia
State of New Hampshire and Oepadment system' access and authorization policies
and procedures, systems access forms, arid computer use agreements-as part of
obtaining end maintaining eccess to any Department system(s). Agreements will be
compieted and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to
system access being authorized.

6. If the Department determines the Contractor Is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160..t03. the Contractor will execute a .HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) with the Oepartmeni and is .responsible for maintaining compliance v/ilh the

•  egreerneni.

9. The Cor)tractor will work vsnth the Department at its request to complete a System
Managernent Survey. The purpose of the survey is to enable the Department and
Contractor to monitor for any changes In risks, threats, and vulnerabilllies that may
occur ^over the life of the Contractor engagement. The survey will be completed
annually, 'or art alternate time frame al the Deparimenis discretion with egreemient by
the Contractor, or the Department may request the survey be completed when the
scope of the engagement between the Department and the Contractor changes.

10, The Contractor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire
or Department daia offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States unless
prior express written consent Is obtained from the information Security Office
leadership member within the Department.

■ 11. Date Security Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach Contractor shall
make efforts to investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to
prevent future breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting from the.bre.ach.
The Stale shal) recover from the Contractor all costs of response end rec.oyery .fi^.
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the breach, inclucfihg but not limited to; cr^ii monitoring.sen/ices, mailing costs and
costs as^ociateB with website and letephone can center services necessary due to
the breach,

12.-Cortlraclor rrtusl. comply with all'applicable statutes and regutaiions. regarding me
privacy 8fKl security of Conndenildl Information, arxl must in ell'other respects
maintain (he privacy and security of Pi and PHI at e'level af>d scope, iho! is .not tess
than the level 'and scope of requirements applicable' to f^eral 'agencies, thciud'mo,
but not nmlied to, provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 tJ.S,C. § -5523). pHHS
Privacy Act Regulations ,{45 C.F.R. §5b). HIPAA Privacy and Security. Rule's (45
C.F.R. .Pans 160 and 164) thal;gpvern protections for individually identifiable health
information and as appl'icable under Stale taw.

13. Contractor agrees to e'stabtish. and. maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and
physical safeguards-to protect the ..cdhndentiality ,of the ConlidenUal Data and to
prevent unaiithoraed use or access to It. The safeguards must provide a level and
scope of'security that is not less than the level and scope-of security req'uirements
established by the Slate of New. Hampshire. Oepartment of,information -Technology.
Refer .to Vendor Resources/Prpcuremenl at http5://www.nh.gov/d6lt/veridbr/index.Htm
for the !.Departmenl of (nformalibn Technology policies, guidelines, -standards, <and
-procure'mennnformdjion relating to ver>dors.

i{j. CohlrBCtbr ag'rees to maintain a documented, breach notification and jncldehi
respond process. Jhe Contractor wli notify the Stale's Privacy .Officor and the
•iStMe's Security QNlt^r of any security breach imrnediately, el the email-addresses
provided in Seclior> VI. This Includes a confidehiiai Informaiion breach, computer
seburliy Incident, or suspected breach which affects or includes any State of New.
Hampshire systems lhat cohnect tp'the Siale of New Hamp^ire network'.-

'15. Contractor'must restrict access to the Confidential Data Obtained .under this
Conir'act'16. only those authorized Etid Users .who need such OHHS. Data to
perform their official duties in connection with purposes identified i.n this Contract..;

16. The Conlra.clpr must ensure lhal all End Users:

a. comply with such sBteguaVds as referenced in Section |V A: a.t^a,
irhpternenle'd to protect Conndenlial Information .that .is furnished by !OHHS
under this,Contract from loss, theft or Inadvertent disclosure,

b.. :-»fegLjard this Infbrmaii.bn at all times.

.ensure th^t laptops .and other.eleclrpriic devices/media-containing PHI. Ph. or

.PFi ar_d encrypted and passvyprd-protecled.

• Bcnd emails containing Confidential, Information only if encVbted and beirig
'sent to and being .received by .email addresses of persons 'authorized to.
receive such'information.

c.

d.
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e. limit disclosure of (he ConridenUat Information to (he extent permined by law.

f. Confidenltal Information received under this Contracl end individually
Idenunabie data ideriycd from OHHS Data, musi be stored In on area thai is
physically and techrtologicahy secure from access by unauthorized persons
durirtg duty hours as vrel) es norvduty hours (e.g.. door locks, card keys.^
biometric idertllfiers. etc.).

g. only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidehlial Data, .including any
derivative files .containing personally, Ideniifiable Information, -and in jail cases,
such data must^be encrypted a! all limes when-In transit, at rest, or when
stored on portable ntedia as required In section IV above.

h. irt .ell other inslances Conridential Data Nmusl be maintained, used and
disclosed using ' appropriate safeguards, as determined by a risk-based
esscssm'eril of the circumstances Involved.

1. understand thai their user crederftials (user name and password) must not be
■shared vnih anyone. End Users wlll keep'their credential irflormation" secure.
This applies to.credenliais used to access the site directly or indirectly through'
a third party application.

Conlraclof Is resporwible for oyer'sighl and compliance'of their' End Users. OHHS
reserves the right to conduct ensite inspections to monitor compliance, with this
GoriUact. inciuding the prh/a^ and securily requirements provided in herein. HIRAA,
and plhcr applicable laws and Federal regulations until such time the Confidential Data
Is disposed of in accordance with this Contract.

V. LOSS REPORTING

fhe/Cpniractor must notify the .Stale's Privacy Officer and purity pffice.r of any
Security Incidents end Breaches immediately, at the ema.il 'addrcssps provided 'in
Section VI.

The Contractor must fu'rthcr harxlie and report Incidents and Breaches Involving PHi 'ln
accordance with the agenc/s dociirnented Incident Handling ar^d Breach Notification
procedures aridjn 'accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 t 306. In addition to,-and
nolwlihsianding. Contractor's •cd'mpiiahce with .at) applicable obligations end procedures,
Corttraclor'.s prdcedure's musi also address how the Cbnlraclor will:
1. Identity Incidents;
2. Petermi.nie (f personally Ideniifiable informajion is involved in incidents;
3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents es required in this Exhibit or

.4. Identify and converie a core response group to dete.rmlne ,lhe risk-lev.el of incidents
and deierrfiine risk-based responses lo Incidents; and
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5. Determine whether Breach rwtilication is required, end, if so. identify eppropriaio
Breach, notifjcation methods. Umlng. source, end contents from among different
options, end bear costs associated with the Breech notice as os any mitigation
measures.

tncidenls and/or Breaches that implicate'Pi must be addressed and reined, as
applicable. In accordance with NrtRSA359-C:20.

VI. PERSONS TO CONTACT

■  A. OHHS Privacy Officer: . . _

OHH'SPrivacyOHrcerQdhhs.nh.gov

B. OHHS Security Officer

OHHSlnformalionSecurilyOfficeQdhhs.nh.gdv
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